
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Meeting 

 
June 5, 2023 

1 of 154



 
June 1, 2023 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet for a Board 
workshop at 5:30 p.m., Monday, June 5, 2023, in Room 201 of the Thomas S. Sewell District 
Administration Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.  
 
The live-stream of this meeting can be accessed as follows:  
www.sanjac.edu/board-meeting-videos 
 
The open portions of this meeting will be recorded and made available to the public on the 
College’s website. 
 

BOARD WORKSHOP 
AGENDA 

 
I. Call the Meeting to Order 

 
II. Roll Call of Board Members 

 
III. Adjournment to closed or executive session pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Section 551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, for the following 
purposes: 

  
a. Legal Matters - For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney on 

any or all subjects or matters authorized by law. 
b. Personnel Matters - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 

evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee 
or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

 
IV. Reconvene in Open Meeting 

 
V. Update on State and Federal Legislative Sessions and the Texas Commission on 

Community College Finance  
 

VI. Update on Enrollment  
 
VII. Update on Development of Fiscal Year 2024 Budget  
 

VIII. Discuss Proposal to Increase Residential Homestead Exemption  
 
IX. Discuss Board Oath of Office and Officers Election Process   

 
X. Review of Calendar 

 
XI. General Discussion of Meeting Items 

a. Additional Purchasing Support Documents 
 

XII. Adjournment  
 

Additional Closed Session Authority 
2 of 154

http://www.sanjac.edu/board-meeting-videos


If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should determine that a 
closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held or is required in relation to 
any items included in this Notice, then such closed or executive meeting or session as 
authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open Meetings 
Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after 
the commencement of the meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet 
in such closed or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any 
and all purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
Section 551.071 – For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney on any or all 
subjects or matters authorized by law. 
 
Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property. 
 
Section 551.073 – For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a prospective gift or 
donation. 
 
Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints 
or charges against a public officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.076 – To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of 
security personnel or devices.  
 
Section 551.084 – For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a hearing during 
examination of another witness. 
 
Section 551.087– To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the 
Board has received from a business prospect that the Board seeks or may seek to have locate, stay, 
or expand in or near the territory of the College and with which the Board is conducting economic 
development negotiations or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such 
business prospect.  
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the Board with 
regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or session, then such final 
action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either: 
 
A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public meeting, or 

 
B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board shall 

determine. 
 
Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice 

 
On this day, June 1, 2023, this notice was posted to the College’s website, on a bulletin board 
located at a place convenient to the public at the administrative building of the San Jacinto 
Community College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, and is readily accessible to 
the public upon request. 
 
 

      _____________________ 
Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D. 

3 of 154



June 1, 2023 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet for a regularly 
scheduled Board meeting at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, June 5, 2023, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. 
Sewell District Administration Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas. 
 
The live-stream of this meeting can be accessed as follows:  
www.sanjac.edu/board-meeting-videos 
 
An electronic copy of the agenda packet is available on the College’s website as follows: 
www.sanjac.edu/board-meeting-agendas  
 
Members of the public who desire to address the Board must comply with the following 
registration procedures:  
A link to a public comments form is available at: www.sanjac.edu/request-speak-to-board  
The form must be completed prior to 11:00 a.m. on June 5, 2023. After completion of the form, the 
requestor will be contacted with further instructions. Registered participants will be allotted five 
minutes to address the Board of Trustees during the “Public Comment” portion of the meeting. 
Discussion shall be addressed to the Board Chair and the entire membership of the Board. 
Discussion shall be limited solely to the matter indicated on the request form. Members of the 
Board of Trustees and/or administration may not comment or deliberate during a public comment 
period at the meeting except to state that the Chancellor or designee may follow-up, when 
appropriate.  
 
The open portions of this meeting will be recorded and made available to the public on the 
College’s website. 
 
Any questions regarding this meeting notice can be directed to Mandi Reiland, Manager of 
Executive Operations for the Chancellor and Board of Trustees at mandi.reiland@sjcd.edu.  

 
BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call the Meeting to Order 
 

II. Roll Call of Board Members  
 
III. Invocation and Pledge to the Flags 
 
IV. Special Announcements, Recognitions, Introductions, and Presentations 
 

V. Student Success Presentations  
 

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB)    George González 
Accountability System 2022 

 
VI. Communications to the Board of Trustees  

 
VII. Public Comment  

4 of 154

http://www.sanjac.edu/board-meeting-videos
http://www.sanjac.edu/board-meeting-agendas
http://www.sanjac.edu/request-speak-to-board
mailto:mandi.reiland@sjcd.edu


 
VIII. Informative Reports to the Board 

A. San Jacinto College Financial Statements  
a. San Jacinto College Monthly Financial Statements April 2023 
b. San Jacinto College Monthly Investment Report April 2023  

B. San Jacinto College Foundation Financial Statements  
C. Capital Improvement Program  
D. San Jacinto College Board Building Committee Minutes  

 
ACTION ITEMS  

 
IX. Statement of Officer and Oath of Office Administered to Recently Elected Trustees 

 
X. Consideration of Approval of Election of Officers for the Board of Trustees 

 
XI. Consideration of Approval of a Resolution Bestowing the Title of Trustee Emeritus on 

Dr. Ruede M. Wheeler 
 

XII. Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2022-2023 Budget for Restricted 
Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants 
 

XIII. Consideration of Approval of Policy IV.4000.P Tuition Reimbursement and 
Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount – Second Reading  

 
XIV. Consideration of a Resolution to Approve Increase in Ad Valorem Tax Homestead 

Exemption 
 
XV. Consideration of Approval Memorandum of Understanding with Clear Creek ISD to 

Continue the Clear Horizons Early College High School 
 

XVI. Consideration of Approval of Annual Review of the College’s Investment Policy and 
Strategy - First Reading (Informational Item) 
 

PURCHASING REQUESTS 
 

XVII. Consideration of Purchasing Requests   
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

XVIII. Consent Agenda  
(Any item placed on the consent agenda shall be removed and taken up as a separate matter, 
if so requested by any member of the Board, otherwise all items will be voted on with one 
(1) motion.) 
A. Approval of the Minutes for the April 3, 2023, Workshop and Regular Board 

Meeting  
B. Approval of the Minutes for the May 16, 2023, Special Board Meeting  
C. Approval of the Budget Transfers  
D. Approval of Personnel Recommendations, 2022-2023 Part-Time Hourly Rate 

Schedule, and Extra Service Agreements 
E. Approval of the Affiliation Agreements 
F. Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting  

 
XIX. Items for Discussion/Possible Action  

5 of 154



(Items removed from the Consent Agenda or items discussed in closed session, will be 
considered at this time) 
 

XX. Adjournment 
 
Closed Session Authority 
If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should determine that 
a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held or is required in 
relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or executive meeting or 
session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open 
Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour and place given in this Notice or 
as soon after the commencement of the meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may 
conveniently meet in such closed or executive meeting or session concerning any and all 
subjects and for any and all purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open 
Meetings Act, including, but not limited to: 

 
Section 551.071 – For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney on any or all 
subjects or matters authorized by law. 

 
Section 551.072 –For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property. 

 
Section 551.073 – For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a prospective gift or donation. 

 
Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or 
charges against a public officer or employee. 

 
Section 551.076 – To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security 
personnel or devices.  

 
Section 551.084 – For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a hearing during 
examination of another witness. 

 
Section 551.087 – To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the Board 
has received from a business prospect that the Board seeks or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in 
or near the territory of the College and with which the Board is conducting economic development 
negotiations or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such business prospect.  

 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the Board with regard 
to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or session, then such final action, final 
decision, or final vote shall be at either: 

 
A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public meeting, or 

 
B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board shall determine. 

 
Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice 
On this day, June 1, 2023, this notice was posted to the College’s website, on a bulletin board 
located at a place convenient to the public at the administrative building of the San Jacinto 
Community College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, and is readily accessible to 
the public upon request. 
 
 
____________________________________________  
Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D. 

6 of 154



 
 
 
 
 

San Jacinto College Financial Statements 
April 2023 

 

 

7 of 154



Assets 2023 2022

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 90,552,709              $ 109,486,375      
Investments 31,185,238              -                           
Accounts receivable - taxes 5,838,707                5,037,790          
Accounts receivable 20,128,950              22,094,980        
Deferred charges 259,973                   407,525              
Inventories 422,438                   550,602              

Total current assets 148,388,016           137,577,272      

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 93,550,709              111,844,913      
Capital assets, net 716,642,757           714,257,066      

Total noncurrent assets 810,193,467           826,101,979      
Total assets 958,581,483           963,679,251      

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflow related to pensions 12,486,706              16,771,450        
Deferred outflow related to OPEB 19,256,731              22,616,854        
Deferred outflow related to defeased debt 4,858,329                5,838,893          

Total deferred outflows of resources 36,601,766              45,227,197        

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 14,053,400              15,066,943        
Accrued liabilities 4,629,854                5,190,786          
Accrued compensable absences and deferred compensation 2,429,062                2,399,843          
Deferred revenues 4,521,684                4,413,853          

Total current liabilities 25,633,999              27,071,424        

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 20,637,425              46,145,705        
Net OPEB liability 112,279,723           103,762,700      
Bonds and notes payable 658,184,362           670,355,269      

Total noncurrent liabilities 791,101,510           820,263,674      
Total liabilities 816,735,509           847,335,098      

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows related to pensions 25,055,564              7,609,539          
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 18,658,275              29,602,310        
Deferred Inflows - Lease Receivable 1,382,492                2,451,580          

Total deferred inflows of resources 45,096,331              39,663,429        

Net assets

Beginning of year - audited 79,147,476              73,919,642        
Current year addition 54,203,933              47,988,279        

Total net position $ 133,351,409           $ 121,907,921      

San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Net Position

April 30,

1 of 14
8 of 154



11
 U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

Fu
nd

s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

Ad
ju

st
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

Ac
tu

al

Re
ve

nu
es

St
at

e 
Ap

pr
op

ria
tio

ns
41

,3
07

,6
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

25
,6

10
,7

45
$ 

   
 

62
.0

0%
25

,6
10

,7
47

$ 
   

   
   

 
62

.0
0%

Lo
ca

l T
ax

es
 - 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 &
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

79
,5

00
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

,7
34

,6
01

   
   

 
99

.0
4%

72
,3

71
,1

93
   

   
   

   
  

97
.9

4%
Cr

ed
it 

Tu
iti

on
63

,6
00

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
,9

28
,6

65
   

   
 

87
.9

4%
55

,9
32

,3
48

   
   

   
   

  
95

.4
2%

Cr
ed

it 
Ex

em
pt

io
ns

 &
 W

ai
ve

rs
(8

,6
70

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
(7

,8
12

,6
10

)
   

   
  

90
.1

1%
(7

,6
04

,5
90

)
   

   
   

   
   

96
.4

4%
Co

nt
in

ui
ng

 E
du

ca
tio

n
CP

ET
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

7,
26

2
   

   
   

   
 

89
.0

0%
22

5,
50

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

82
.3

2%
M

ar
iti

m
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
1,

50
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

47
5,

32
4

   
   

   
 

98
.3

5%
97

9,
49

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

64
.0

5%
Co

nt
in

ui
ng

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
CP

D
)

6,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
60

5,
87

3
   

   
   

 
60

.1
0%

3,
19

2,
38

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

.0
9%

   
   

 C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

Ex
em

pt
io

ns
 &

 W
ai

ve
rs

 
(7

2,
00

0)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

6,
29

5)
   

   
   

   
  

22
.6

3%
(4

0,
17

0)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
.1

2%
Ba

d 
D

eb
t

(7
00

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(4
66

,6
39

)
   

   
   

   
66

.6
6%

(4
67

,2
93

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

.7
1%

Sa
le

s 
&

 S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

74
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

45
2,

48
1

   
   

   
 

83
.4

8%
1,

76
4,

75
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
.1

4%
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 - 
W

in
te

r S
to

rm
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
5,

79
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
83

.0
9%

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e
1,

00
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

98
9,

35
5

   
   

   
 

29
8.

94
%

89
,6

39
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
.4

6%
H

EE
RF

 L
os

t R
ev

en
ue

7,
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
13

8,
10

8
   

   
   

 
10

7.
08

%
8,

07
3,

33
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

%
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

19
3,

33
0,

65
3

   
   

   
   

  
17

0,
10

6,
87

0
   

  
87

.9
9%

16
0,

36
3,

13
6

   
   

   
  

90
.6

8%
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
In

st
ru

ct
io

n
77

,4
05

,6
32

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
,3

31
,9

78
   

   
 

74
.0

7%
54

,0
43

,0
68

   
   

   
   

  
73

.4
3%

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
23

,7
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
,3

62
   

   
   

   
   

77
.4

0%
9,

39
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
.5

6%
Ac

ad
em

ic
 S

up
po

rt
18

,1
18

,1
14

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,6

30
,8

93
   

   
 

58
.6

8%
10

,1
12

,4
56

   
   

   
   

  
69

.3
2%

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

17
,1

85
,1

55
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
54

,7
25

   
   

 
58

.5
1%

9,
77

0,
48

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
64

.7
9%

In
st

itu
tio

na
l S

up
po

rt
50

,5
16

,5
23

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
,1

69
,2

78
   

   
 

61
.7

0%
28

,9
74

,4
68

   
   

   
   

  
67

.8
0%

Ph
ys

ic
al

 P
la

nt
26

,2
91

,8
68

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,9

17
,1

62
   

   
 

52
.9

3%
12

,1
93

,4
60

   
   

   
   

  
57

.4
4%

W
in

te
r S

to
rm

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

5,
79

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

83
.0

9%
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

18
9,

54
1,

01
8

   
   

   
   

  
12

3,
12

2,
39

8
   

  
64

.9
6%

11
5,

33
9,

11
4

   
   

   
  

68
.8

4%
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

Am
on

g 
Fu

nd
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
In

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
O

ut
3,

78
9,

63
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

49
4,

21
3

   
   

   
 

65
.8

2%
2,

49
2,

66
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
44

,4
90

,2
59

$ 
   

 
42

,5
31

,3
60

$ 
   

   
   

 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
Ap

ril
 3

0,
 2

02
3

2 of 14
9 of 154



Fe
de

ra
l R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

Ad
ju

st
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

Ac
tu

al

Re
ve

nu
es

G
ra

nt
s

81
,4

86
,0

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

60
,4

96
,6

04
$ 

  
74

.2
4%

71
,7

34
,4

26
$ 

   
   

   
 

80
.6

9%
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

81
,4

86
,0

43
   

   
   

   
   

60
,4

96
,6

04
   

  
74

.2
4%

71
,7

34
,4

26
   

   
   

   
  

80
.6

9%
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
In

st
ru

ct
io

n
1,

35
0,

53
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
8,

13
7

   
   

   
  

56
.1

4%
45

1,
75

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
.3

1%
Pu

bl
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

36
0,

12
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

3,
96

9
   

   
   

  
39

.9
8%

12
4,

51
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
67

.6
6%

Ac
ad

em
ic

 S
up

po
rt

11
,5

78
,9

29
   

   
   

   
   

3,
66

4,
24

6
   

   
  

31
.6

5%
2,

91
6,

52
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
.2

3%
St

ud
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
3,

35
1,

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
47

7,
86

7
   

   
  

73
.9

4%
1,

37
7,

42
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

49
.3

9%
In

st
itu

tio
na

l S
up

po
rt

16
,3

12
,5

03
   

   
   

   
   

12
,2

38
,7

47
   

   
75

.0
3%

12
,7

06
,8

07
   

   
   

   
  

10
3.

04
%

Ph
ys

ic
al

 P
la

nt
1,

54
9,

31
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

61
,8

17
   

   
   

   
 

3.
99

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Sc
ho

la
rs

hi
ps

 a
nd

 F
el

lo
w

sh
ip

s
46

,9
83

,3
89

   
   

   
   

   
41

,1
51

,8
21

   
   

87
.5

9%
54

,1
60

,0
31

   
   

   
   

  
90

.2
5%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
81

,4
86

,0
43

   
   

   
   

   
60

,4
96

,6
04

   
  

74
.2

4%
71

,7
37

,0
59

   
   

   
   

  
88

.3
0%

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
Am

on
g 

Fu
nd

s
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

In
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

O
ut

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,6
32

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
Ap

ril
 3

0,
 2

02
3

3 of 14
10 of 154



St
at

e 
Re

st
ric

te
d 

Fu
nd

s

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

A
ct

ua
l

Re
ve

nu
es

St
at

e 
Pa

id
 B

en
ef

its
11

,8
62

,7
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
8,

00
6,

63
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
67

.4
9%

7,
80

4,
44

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

74
.6

0%
G

ra
nt

s
4,

09
8,

48
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

  1
,6

62
,8

97
 

40
.5

7%
2,

30
1,

84
5

   
   

   
   

  
90

.0
4%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
15

,9
61

,2
20

   
   

   
   

   
9,

66
9,

53
3

   
   

   
   

 
60

.5
8%

10
,1

06
,2

86
   

   
   

   
77

.6
3%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

In
st

ru
ct

io
n

6,
86

3,
57

8
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

32
2,

51
5

   
   

   
   

 
62

.9
8%

4,
21

3,
72

4
   

   
   

   
  

73
.7

2%
Pu

bl
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

15
,6

08
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

,6
08

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

00
%

17
,4

16
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
.3

4%
Ac

ad
em

ic
 S

up
po

rt
1,

82
7,

73
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

98
9,

89
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
.1

6%
90

2,
54

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
68

.1
7%

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

1,
50

3,
12

1
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

14
7,

79
5

   
   

   
   

 
76

.3
6%

1,
16

7,
37

7
   

   
   

   
  

73
.3

0%
In

st
itu

tio
na

l S
up

po
rt

3,
05

9,
25

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

72
8,

87
3

   
   

   
   

 
56

.5
1%

1,
69

5,
24

2
   

   
   

   
  

80
.0

8%
Ph

ys
ic

al
 P

la
nt

12
,5

09
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Sc

ho
la

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 F

el
lo

w
sh

ip
s

2,
67

9,
42

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
  1

,4
64

,8
48

 
54

.6
7%

2,
10

9,
98

6
   

   
   

   
  

94
.2

4%
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

15
,9

61
,2

20
   

   
   

   
   

9,
66

9,
53

3
   

   
   

   
 

60
.5

8%
10

,1
06

,2
86

   
   

   
   

77
.6

3%
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

Am
on

g 
Fu

nd
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s I
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Tr

an
sf

er
s O

ut
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

4 of 14
11 of 154



Lo
ca

l R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

Fu
nd

s

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

A
ct

ua
l

Re
ve

nu
es

G
ra

nt
s

5,
59

1,
95

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
93

9,
66

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

70
.4

5%
3,

04
4,

23
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
89

.7
9%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
5,

59
1,

95
5

   
   

   
   

  
3,

93
9,

66
1

   
   

   
   

 
70

.4
5%

3,
04

4,
23

7
   

   
   

   
   

89
.7

9%
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
In

st
ru

ct
io

n
20

,2
64

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
%

87
,9

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

99
.8

5%
Pu

bl
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

21
1,

54
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

96
,6

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
.6

7%
12

1,
24

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
65

.8
5%

Ac
ad

em
ic

 S
up

po
rt

36
,7

91
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,1

26
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
.1

1%
33

8,
59

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
73

.7
3%

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

51
,6

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
,2

46
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.6

7%
19

,3
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
84

.4
3%

In
st

itu
tio

na
l S

up
po

rt
1,

77
8,

46
3

   
   

   
   

  
32

,4
04

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

82
%

6,
68

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.3
4%

Ph
ys

ic
al

 P
la

nt
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Sc

ho
la

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 F

el
lo

w
sh

ip
s

3,
76

3,
13

2
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

  3
,9

03
,4

71
 

10
3.

73
%

2,
60

1,
82

7
   

   
   

   
   

92
.9

9%
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

6,
11

1,
79

0
   

   
   

   
  

4,
06

0,
86

2
   

   
   

   
 

66
.4

4%
3,

17
5,

70
3

   
   

   
   

   
88

.5
8%

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
Am

on
g 

Fu
nd

s
Tr

an
sf

er
s I

n
(5

19
,8

35
)

   
   

   
   

   
 

(9
5,

68
8)

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.4

1%
(1

33
,7

62
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

68
.6

5%
Tr

an
sf

er
s O

ut
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
5,

51
3)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
29

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

5 of 14
12 of 154



27
 T

ex
as

 P
ub

lic
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

G
ra

nt

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

A
ct

ua
l

Re
ve

nu
es

Tu
iti

on
 - 

Cr
ed

it 
&

 N
on

 C
re

di
t

3,
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
94

8,
91

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

95
.1

3%
2,

68
9,

58
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
93

.8
3%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
3,

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
2,

94
8,

91
0

   
   

   
   

  
95

.1
3%

2,
68

9,
58

5
   

   
   

   
   

93
.5

0%
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
Sc

ho
la

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 F

el
lo

w
sh

ip
s

3,
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

2,
75

1,
88

4
   

   
   

   
  

88
.7

7%
3,

24
8,

53
7

   
   

   
   

   
97

.9
3%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
3,

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
2,

75
1,

88
4

   
   

   
   

  
88

.7
7%

3,
24

8,
53

7
   

   
   

   
   

97
.9

3%
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

Am
on

g 
Fu

nd
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s I
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Tr
an

sf
er

s O
ut

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
7,

02
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(5
58

,9
52

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

6 of 14
13 of 154



28
 P

riv
at

e 
G

ift
s 

an
d 

D
on

at
io

ns

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

 A
ct

ua
l  

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

Ad
ju

st
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

Ac
tu

al

Re
ve

nu
es

Sa
le

s 
&

 S
er

vi
ce

s
-

$ 
 

 
-

$
   

-   
25

,9
55

$ 
 

  
99

.3
0%

G
ra

nt
s

- 
10

2,
00

0
 

-   
-   

-   
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

- 
10

2,
00

0
  

-   
25

,9
55

   
99

.3
0%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

In
st

ru
ct

io
n

- 
19

,7
42

 
-   

15
,1

39
  

41
.4

0%
In

st
itu

tio
na

l S
up

po
rt

- 
10

2,
00

0
 

-   
-   

-   
Sc

ho
la

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 F

el
lo

w
sh

ip
s

- 
-

-   
-   

-   
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

- 
12

1,
74

2
  

-   
15

,1
39

   
41

.4
0%

Tr
an

sf
er

s A
m

on
g 

Fu
nd

s
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

In
-   

-  
-   

-   
-   

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
O

ut
-   

-  
-   

-   
-   

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

-
$ 

 
 

(1
9,

74
2)

$
   

 
10

,8
16

$ 
 

   
 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
Ap

ril
 3

0,
 2

02
3

7 of 14
14 of 154



Au
xi

lia
ry

 E
nt

er
pr

is
es

Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

 A
ct

ua
l  

  (
67

%
)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

Ad
ju

st
ed

 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

Ac
tu

al

Re
ve

nu
es

Au
xi

lia
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2,

85
0,

00
0

$ 
 

   
 

1,
89

0,
21

5
$ 

 
  

66
.3

2%
1,

77
3,

82
3

$ 
 

  
62

.7
7%

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
2,

85
0,

00
0

   
1,

89
0,

21
5

   
66

.3
2%

1,
77

3,
82

3
   

62
.7

7%
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
La

bo
r

57
5,

27
0

  
44

9,
38

8
   

 
78

.1
2%

36
3,

68
8

   
62

.0
6%

Be
ne

fit
s

23
3,

99
6

  
82

,6
44

   
35

.3
2%

75
,1

76
  

61
.8

4%
Su

pp
lie

s
51

7,
77

0
  

41
2,

95
8

   
 

79
.7

6%
32

0,
72

8
   

68
.8

5%
Tr

av
el

19
4,

46
0

  
13

7,
25

6
   

 
70

.5
8%

95
,5

05
  

34
.0

0%
Co

nt
ra

ct
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s
27

0,
40

5
  

15
2,

78
5

   
 

56
.5

0%
15

3,
82

7
   

64
.7

1%
U

til
iti

es
20

0
  

-
   

 
-   

-   
-   

Sc
ho

la
rs

hi
ps

 a
nd

 F
el

lo
w

sh
ip

s2
1,

00
8,

35
7

   
92

7,
45

6
   

 
91

.9
8%

79
6,

22
5

   
79

.1
7%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
2,

80
0,

45
8

   
2,

16
2,

48
7

   
77

.2
2%

1,
80

5,
14

8
   

66
.9

1%
Tr

an
sf

er
s A

m
on

g 
Fu

nd
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
In

-  
-

   
 

-   
-   

-   
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

O
ut

-  
-

   
 

-   
-   

-   

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

49
,5

42
$ 

 
   

(2
72

,2
72

)
$ 

 
  

(3
1,

32
6)

$ 
 

  

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
Ap

ril
 3

0,
 2

02
3

8 of 14
15 of 154



Fu
nd

 9
5 

Re
tir

em
en

t o
f I

nd
eb

te
dn

es
s

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 (6

7%
)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

A
ct

ua
l

Re
ve

nu
es

Lo
ca

l T
ax

es
 - 

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

37
,7

80
,0

67
$ 

   
   

   
  

37
,3

99
,0

81
$ 

   
   

   
  

98
.9

9%
35

,3
43

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
97

.9
8%

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e
- 

18
0,

17
1

 
- 

9,
28

3
  

17
.4

5%
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

37
,7

80
,0

67
   

   
   

  
37

,5
79

,2
52

   
   

   
  

99
.4

7%
35

,3
52

,3
82

   
   

   
   

 
97

.8
6%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

In
st

itu
tio

na
l S

up
po

rt
 - 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l
18

,5
30

,6
00

   
   

   
  

15
,1

55
,0

00
   

   
   

  
81

.7
8%

12
,7

03
,4

26
   

   
   

   
 

10
0.

00
%

In
st

itu
tio

na
l S

up
po

rt
 - 

In
te

re
st

22
,5

19
,2

68
   

   
   

  
15

,8
16

,2
45

   
   

   
  

70
.2

3%
16

,8
68

,5
73

   
   

   
   

 
68

.5
6%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
41

,0
49

,8
68

   
   

   
  

30
,9

71
,2

45
   

   
   

  
75

.4
5%

29
,5

71
,9

99
   

   
   

   
 

79
.2

7%
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

Am
on

g 
Fu

nd
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s I
n

(3
,2

69
,8

01
)

   
   

   
   

(2
,3

98
,5

25
)

   
   

   
   

73
.3

5%
(2

,3
58

,9
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

72
.1

9%
Tr

an
sf

er
s O

ut
-

   
 

-
   

 
- 

-
   

   
- 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 D

eb
t P

rin
ci

pa
l P

ay
m

en
t

(1
8,

53
0,

60
0)

   
   

   
(1

5,
15

5,
00

0)
   

   
   

81
.7

8%
(1

2,
70

3,
42

6)
   

   
   

  
10

0.
00

%

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

18
,5

30
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

24
,1

61
,5

31
$ 

   
   

   
 

20
,8

42
,7

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

 P
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
, c

ap
ita

l p
ur

ch
as

es
 a

nd
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 li

ne
 it

em
s 

ab
ov

e 
ar

e 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 d

ed
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 to
ta

l y
ea

r-
to

-d
at

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s 
an

d 
re

cl
as

si
fi

ed
 a

s 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
r 

re
du

ct
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

as
se

t o
r 

lia
bi

lit
y 

lin
e 

ite
m

 o
n 

th
e 

St
at

em
en

t o
f 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

. 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

1

1

9 of 14
16 of 154



Fu
nd

 9
7 

In
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
Pl

an
t

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

Ac
tu

al

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
26

,8
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
18

,2
09

,2
55

$ 
   

   
67

.9
4%

15
,6

53
,7

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
57

.0
9%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
26

,8
00

,0
00

   
   

   
18

,2
09

,2
55

   
   

   
67

.9
4%

15
,6

53
,7

52
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

.0
9%

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
Am

on
g 

Fu
nd

s
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

In
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
O

ut
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 C

ap
ita

l P
ur

ch
as

es
(4

,2
81

,9
96

)
   

   
   

 
(1

,6
98

,9
20

)
   

   
   

 
39

.6
8%

(7
54

,3
56

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
.3

7%

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

(2
2,

51
8,

00
4)

$ 
   

 
(1

6,
51

0,
33

5)
$ 

   
 

(1
4,

89
9,

39
6)

$ 
   

   
   

  

   
  P

er
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
ac

ti
ce

s,
 c

ap
it

al
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 a
nd

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

e 
lin

e 
it

em
s 

ab
ov

e 
ar

e 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 d

ed
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 to
ta

l y
ea

r-
to

-
da

te
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

an
d 

re
cl

as
si

fi
ed

 a
s 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

r 
re

du
ct

io
n 

to
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
as

se
t o

r 
lia

bi
lit

y 
lin

e 
it

em
 o

n 
th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n.
 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

1

1

10 of 14
17 of 154



Ad
ju

st
ed

 B
ud

ge
t

 A
ct

ua
l  

 
   

 (6
7%

)
%

 A
ct

ua
l t

o 
Ad

ju
st

ed
 

Bu
dg

et
PY

 Y
TD

 A
ct

ua
l

%
 o

f 8
/3

1/
22

 
Ac

tu
al

Re
ve

nu
es

St
at

e 
Ap

pr
op

ria
tio

ns
53

,1
70

,3
88

$ 
   

   
 

33
,6

17
,3

81
$ 

   
  

63
.2

3%
33

,4
15

,1
88

$ 
   

  
64

.5
5%

Lo
ca

l T
ax

es
 - 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 &
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

79
,5

00
,0

00
   

78
,7

34
,6

01
   

 
99

.0
4%

72
,3

71
,1

93
  

97
.9

4%
Lo

ca
l T

ax
es

 - 
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
37

,7
80

,0
67

   
37

,3
99

,0
81

   
 

98
.9

9%
35

,3
43

,1
00

  
98

.0
2%

Cr
ed

it 
Tu

iti
on

66
,7

00
,0

00
   

58
,8

77
,5

74
   

 
88

.2
7%

58
,6

21
,9

32
  

95
.3

4%
Cr

ed
it 

Ex
em

pt
io

ns
 &

 W
ai

ve
rs

(8
,6

70
,0

00
)

   
(7

,8
12

,6
10

)
   

  
90

.1
1%

(7
,6

04
,5

90
)

   
96

.4
4%

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n

CP
ET

52
5,

00
0

   
46

7,
26

2
  

89
.0

0%
22

5,
50

1
   

 
82

.3
2%

M
ar

iti
m

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n

1,
50

0,
00

0
   

 
1,

47
5,

32
4

   
98

.3
5%

97
9,

49
6

   
 

64
.0

5%
Co

nt
in

ui
ng

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
6,

00
0,

00
0

   
 

3,
60

5,
87

3
   

60
.1

0%
3,

19
2,

38
5

   
  

62
.0

9%
Co

nt
in

ui
ng

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
Ex

em
pt

io
ns

 &
 W

ai
ve

rs
 

(7
2,

00
0)

   
 

(1
6,

29
5)

  
22

.6
3%

(4
0,

17
0)

   
  

90
.1

2%
Ba

d 
D

eb
t

(7
00

,0
00

)
   

(4
66

,6
39

)
   

 
66

.6
6%

(4
67

,2
93

)
   

32
.7

1%
Sa

le
s &

 S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

74
0,

00
0

   
 

1,
45

2,
48

1
   

83
.4

8%
1,

79
0,

71
2

   
  

46
.5

0%
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 - 
W

in
te

r S
to

rm
-   

-
   

  
0.

00
%

23
5,

79
1

   
 

83
.0

9%
In

ve
st

m
en

t I
nc

om
e

1,
00

0,
00

0
   

 
3,

16
9,

52
6

   
31

6.
95

%
98

,9
22

  
16

.2
8%

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e 
- R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s

- 
2,

18
2,

97
8

 
-

   
  

93
,4

03
  

16
.4

3%
H

EE
RF

 L
os

t R
ev

en
ue

7,
60

0,
00

0
   

 
8,

13
8,

10
8

 
10

7.
08

%
8,

07
3,

33
3

   
  

10
05

.3
4%

Au
xi

lia
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2,

85
0,

00
0

   
 

1,
89

0,
21

5
 

66
.3

2%
1,

77
3,

82
3

   
  

62
.7

7%
G

ra
nt

s
85

,8
34

,5
28

   
62

,2
86

,9
54

 
72

.5
7%

74
,0

36
,2

72
  

80
.4

4%
Lo

ca
l G

ra
nt

s
5,

34
1,

95
5

   
 

3,
91

4,
20

9
 

73
.2

7%
3,

04
4,

23
7

   
  

55
.4

9%
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

34
0,

09
9,

93
8

   
28

8,
91

6,
02

3
   

   
84

.9
5%

28
5,

18
3,

23
4

   
 

87
.8

6%
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
In

st
ru

ct
io

n
85

,6
40

,0
13

   
62

,4
32

,3
72

   
 

72
.9

0%
58

,8
11

,6
46

  
73

.2
8%

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
61

0,
99

5
   

27
4,

55
4

  
44

.9
4%

27
2,

57
0

   
 

64
.0

5%
Ac

ad
em

ic
 S

up
po

rt
31

,5
61

,5
66

   
15

,3
00

,1
58

   
 

48
.4

8%
14

,2
70

,1
20

  
66

.4
7%

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

22
,0

91
,1

26
   

13
,6

93
,6

34
   

 
61

.9
9%

12
,3

34
,6

69
  

63
.3

0%
In

st
itu

tio
na

l S
up

po
rt

11
2,

71
6,

60
9

   
76

,2
42

,5
46

   
 

67
.6

4%
72

,9
55

,2
00

  
77

.1
8%

Ph
ys

ic
al

 P
la

nt
28

,1
03

,6
88

   
13

,9
78

,9
79

   
 

49
.7

4%
12

,1
93

,4
60

  
57

.4
0%

W
in

te
r S

to
rm

-   
-

   
  

-
   

  
23

5,
79

1
   

 
83

.0
9%

Sc
ho

la
rs

hi
ps

 a
nd

 F
el

lo
w

sh
ip

s
56

,5
25

,9
43

   
49

,2
72

,0
24

   
 

87
.1

7%
62

,1
20

,3
81

  
90

.8
6%

Au
xi

lia
ry

 E
nt

er
pr

is
es

2,
80

0,
45

8
   

 
2,

16
2,

48
7

   
77

.2
2%

1,
80

5,
14

8
   

  
66

.9
0%

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
26

,8
00

,0
00

   
18

,2
09

,2
55

   
 

67
.9

4%
15

,6
53

,7
52

  
57

.0
9%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
36

6,
85

0,
39

7
   

25
1,

56
6,

01
0

   
   

68
.5

7%
25

0,
65

2,
73

7
   

 
74

.5
6%

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
A

m
on

g 
Fu

nd
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
In

(3
,7

89
,6

36
)

   
(2

,4
94

,2
13

)
   

  
65

.8
2%

(2
,4

92
,6

62
)

   
32

.5
4%

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
O

ut
3,

78
9,

63
6

   
 

2,
49

4,
21

3
   

65
.8

2%
2,

49
2,

66
2

   
  

32
.5

4%

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 D

eb
t P

rin
ci

pa
l P

ay
m

en
t

(1
8,

53
0,

60
0)

   
 

(1
5,

15
5,

00
0)

  
81

.7
8%

(1
2,

70
3,

42
6)

  
10

0.
00

%
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 C
ap

ita
l P

ur
ch

as
es

(4
,2

81
,9

96
)

   
(1

,6
98

,9
20

)
   

  
39

.6
8%

(7
54

,3
56

)
   

18
.3

7%

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

(3
,9

37
,8

63
)

$ 
   

  
54

,2
03

,9
33

$ 
   

  
47

,9
88

,2
79

$ 
   

   
  

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

   
  P

er
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

, c
ap

ita
l p

ur
ch

as
es

 a
nd

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 li
ne

 it
em

s 
ab

ov
e 

ar
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 d
ed

uc
te

d 
fr

om
 to

ta
l y

ea
r-

to
-d

at
e 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

an
d 

re
cl

as
si

fi
ed

 a
s 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

r 
re

du
ct

io
n 

to
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
as

se
t o

r 
lia

bi
lit

y 
lin

e 
ite

m
 o

n 
th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

. 

1

1

1

11 of 14
18 of 154



Capital 
Improvement 

Program

12 of 14
19 of 154



Fu
nd

 9
1 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
s

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

 A
ct

ua
l  

   
   

   
 

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

A
ct

ua
l

Re
ve

nu
es

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

18
2,

97
8

$ 
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

93
,4

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.4

3%
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
18

2,
97

8
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

,4
03

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

.4
3%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

SE
CO

-E
ne

rg
y 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

3,
29

0,
86

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
95

6,
24

7
   

   
   

  
59

.4
4%

76
0,

73
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Bo
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

82
,6

75
,1

70
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

,9
85

,3
71

   
   

   
14

.5
0%

28
,6

81
,9

54
   

   
   

   
 

73
.8

8%
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

85
,9

66
,0

34
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

,9
41

,6
18

   
   

   
16

.2
2%

29
,4

42
,6

89
   

   
   

   
75

.8
3%

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
Am

on
g 

Fu
nd

s
Tr

an
sf

er
s I

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Tr
an

sf
er

s O
ut

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

(8
5,

96
6,

03
4)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(1
1,

75
8,

64
0)

$ 
   

 
(2

9,
34

9,
28

6)
$ 

   
   

  

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

13 of 14
20 of 154



Fu
nd

 9
3 

Re
ne

w
al

 a
nd

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

 A
ct

ua
l  

(6
7%

)

%
 A

ct
ua

l t
o 

A
dj

us
te

d 
Bu

dg
et

PY
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
%

 o
f 8

/3
1/

22
 

Ac
tu

al

Re
ve

nu
es

La
nd

 S
al

e 
Pr

oc
ee

ds
-

$ 
 

 
-

$ 
   

-   
-

$ 
 

  
-   

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
-   

-   
-   

-   
-   

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

G
en

er
at

io
n 

Pa
rk

-   
-   

-   
19

,0
18

   
10

0.
00

%
En

er
gy

 R
eb

at
e 

Fu
nd

21
7,

40
1

   
-   

-   
-  

-   
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

21
7,

40
1

   
-   

-   
19

,0
18

   
10

0.
00

%
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

Am
on

g 
Fu

nd
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
In

-   
-   

-   
-  

-   
Tr

an
sf

er
s 

O
ut

-   
-   

-   
-  

-   

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

(2
17

,4
01

)
$ 

 
   

-
$ 

 
  

(1
9,

01
8)

$ 
 

   

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 D

is
tr

ic
t

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
Ch

an
ge

s 
In

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

Fo
r t

he
 E

ig
ht

 M
on

th
s 

En
de

d 
A

pr
il 

30
, 2

02
3

1

14 of 14
21 of 154



 
 
 
 
 

San Jacinto College Financial Statements 
Monthly Investment Report  

April 2023 

22 of 154



1 of 3
23 of 154



A
n

n
u

al
iz

ed
In

te
re

st
P

u
rc

h
as

e
F

ai
r 

M
ar

ke
t

B
o

o
k 

%
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l
D

ay
s 

to
 

W
ei

g
h

te
d

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
H

el
d

 A
t

R
at

e
D

at
e

M
at

u
ri

ty
P

ar
V

al
u

e
V

al
u

e
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
M

at
u

ri
ty

A
vg

. 
M

at
.

S
h

o
rt

-T
er

m
 I

n
ve

st
m

en
ts

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 F
u

n
d

s

D
em

an
d 

D
ep

os
its

  
C

re
di

t 
C

ar
ds

 in
 T

ra
ns

it
H

ea
rt

la
nd

N
/A

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

$
N

/A
$

10
4,

94
5

$
10

4,
94

5
  

0.
05

%
1

0.
00

  
JP

M
or

ga
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
P

ay
ab

le
 D

is
bu

rs
em

en
ts

JP
M

or
ga

n 
C

ha
se

 B
an

k
N

/A
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
(5

92
,2

24
)

  
 

(5
92

,2
24

)
  

-0
.2

8%
1

0.
00

  
JP

M
or

ga
n 

O
pe

ra
tin

g
JP

M
or

ga
n 

C
ha

se
 B

an
k

N
/A

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

7,
10

4,
52

2
  

 
7,

10
4,

52
2

  
3.

31
%

1
0.

03
  

JP
M

or
ga

n 
P

ay
ro

ll
JP

M
or

ga
n 

C
ha

se
 B

an
k

N
/A

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

(1
9,

00
2)

  
(1

9,
00

2)
  

-0
.0

1%
1

0.
00

  
JP

M
or

ga
n 

W
or

ke
r's

 C
om

p
JP

M
or

ga
n 

C
ha

se
 B

an
k

N
/A

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

(1
8,

18
8)

  
(1

8,
18

8)
  

-0
.0

1%
1

0.
00

  
P

et
ty

 C
as

h
C

am
pu

s 
B

us
in

es
s 

O
ff

ic
es

N
/A

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

19
,0

67
  

 
19

,0
67

  
0.

01
%

1
0.

00

P
oo

l A
cc

ou
nt

s
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

F
un

ds
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
87

,1
20

,4
06

  
87

,1
20

,4
06

  
40

.5
9%

1
0.

41
  

T
ex

P
oo

l -
 O

pe
ra

tin
g

T
ex

P
oo

l
4.

79
84

%
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
50

9,
16

4
  

50
9,

16
4

  
0.

24
%

1
0.

00

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

  
U

S
 T

re
as

ur
y 

N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 9

12
82

84
U

1
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

2.
62

5%
06

/2
3/

22
06

/3
0/

23
$

5,
00

0,
00

0
  

$
4,

98
0,

70
0

  
 

$
4,

98
7,

71
3

  
2.

32
%

61
0.

02
  

U
S

 A
ge

nc
y 

N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 3

13
38

4F
A

2
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

4.
52

1%
10

/2
1/

22
05

/0
1/

23
10

,0
00

,0
00

  
10

,0
00

,0
00

  
 

9,
76

7,
46

7
  

4.
55

%
1

0.
05

  
U

S
 A

ge
nc

y 
N

ot
e,

 C
U

S
IP

 3
13

0A
T

X
K

8
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

4.
90

0%
11

/2
8/

22
11

/2
8/

23
5,

00
0,

00
0

  
4,

99
8,

40
0

  
 

5,
00

0,
50

0
  

2.
33

%
21

2
0.

02
  

U
S

 A
ge

nc
y 

N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 3

13
0A

U
M

92
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

4.
75

0%
01

/1
9/

23
01

/1
9/

24
5,

00
0,

00
0

  
4,

99
6,

61
5

  
 

4,
99

7,
49

6
  

2.
33

%
26

4
0.

02
  

U
S

 A
ge

nc
y 

N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 3

13
0A

T
V

D
6

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
4.

87
5%

01
/2

7/
23

09
/1

3/
24

5,
00

0,
00

0
  

5,
01

6,
05

0
  

 
5,

02
6,

00
0

  
2.

34
%

50
2

0.
02

  
  

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 D

ep
os

it,
 C

U
S

IP
 0

25
89

A
D

C
3

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
2.

70
0%

07
/2

0/
22

07
/2

0/
23

24
3,

00
0

  
24

1,
56

1
  

 
24

3,
00

0
  

0.
11

%
81

0.
00

  
  

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 D

ep
os

it,
 C

U
S

IP
 8

98
41

M
A

D
9

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
2.

85
0%

07
/1

9/
22

07
/1

9/
23

24
9,

00
0

  
24

7,
68

3
  

 
24

9,
00

0
  

0.
12

%
80

0.
00

  
C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
of

 D
ep

os
it,

 C
U

S
IP

 9
09

55
7J

T
8

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
2.

75
0%

07
/2

2/
22

07
/2

1/
23

24
9,

00
0

  
24

7,
59

3
  

 
24

9,
00

0
  

0.
12

%
82

0.
00

S
h

o
rt

-T
er

m
 I

n
ve

st
m

en
ts

 -
  

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

 (
B

o
n

d
) 

F
u

n
d

s

P
oo

l A
cc

ou
nt

s
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
20

08
 G

O
B

 B
on

d 
P

ro
ce

ed
s

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

-
  

 
-  

0.
00

%
1

0.
00

  
LS

IP
 C

or
po

ra
te

 O
ve

rn
ig

ht
 P

lu
s 

F
un

d 
- 

G
O

B
 D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

11
,5

71
,1

45
  

 
11

,5
71

,1
45

  
5.

39
%

1
0.

05
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
20

04
 B

on
d 

E
ar

ni
ng

s
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
28

,0
45

  
 

28
,0

45
  

0.
01

%
1

0.
00

  
LS

IP
 C

or
po

ra
te

 O
ve

rn
ig

ht
 P

lu
s 

F
un

d 
- 

20
07

 B
on

d 
E

ar
ni

ng
s

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

3,
96

2
  

 
3,

96
2

  
0.

00
%

1
0.

00
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
20

08
 B

on
d 

E
ar

ni
ng

s
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
44

3,
04

4
  

 
44

3,
04

4
  

0.
21

%
1

0.
00

  
LS

IP
 C

or
po

ra
te

 O
ve

rn
ig

ht
 P

lu
s 

F
un

d 
- 

20
09

 B
on

d 
E

ar
ni

ng
s

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

83
1,

76
7

  
 

83
1,

76
7

  
0.

39
%

1
0.

00
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
20

11
 B

on
d 

E
ar

ni
ng

s
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
20

,5
30

  
 

20
,5

30
  

0.
01

%
1

0.
00

  
LS

IP
 C

or
po

ra
te

 O
ve

rn
ig

ht
 P

lu
s 

F
un

d 
- 

20
22

 B
on

d 
P

ro
ce

ed
s

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

41
,3

66
,8

87
  

 
41

,3
66

,8
87

  
19

.2
7%

1
0.

19
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
R

es
er

ve
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
5,

02
2,

03
2

  
 

5,
02

2,
03

2
  

2.
34

%
1

0.
02

  
T

ex
P

oo
l P

R
IM

E
 -

 2
02

1 
B

on
d 

P
ro

ce
ed

s 
T

ex
P

oo
l  

4.
99

16
%

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

30
,5

87
,3

16
  

 
30

,5
87

,3
16

  
14

.2
5%

1
0.

14

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
C

as
h

, 
C

as
h

 E
q

u
iv

al
en

ts
, 

an
d

 I
n

ve
st

m
en

ts
$

21
4,

83
2,

02
0

$
21

4,
62

3,
59

4
10

0.
00

%
1.

00

W
ei

gh
te

d 
A

ve
ra

ge
 t

o 
M

at
ur

ity
 a

t 
E

nd
in

g 
P

er
io

d 
D

at
e 

(D
ay

s)
A

C
F

R
, 

N
ot

e 
4

0.
01

%
$

19
,0

67
  

P
et

ty
 c

as
h 

on
 h

an
d

0.
00

82
.6

2%
17

7,
50

4,
29

8
  

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

po
ol

s
0.

83
3.

07
%

6,
58

0,
05

3
  

B
an

k 
de

po
si

ts
 -

 d
em

an
d 

de
po

si
ts

0.
03

14
.3

0%
30

,7
28

,6
02

  
U

. 
S

. 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
se

cu
ri

tie
s 

&
 C

D
s

0.
14

10
0.

00
%

$
21

4,
83

2,
02

0
  

T
ot

al
 c

as
h,

 c
as

h 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s,
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
1.

00

S
A

N
 J

A
C

IN
T

O
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

C
as

h
, C

as
h

 E
q

u
iv

al
en

ts
, a

n
d

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 A
ve

ra
g

e 
to

 M
at

u
ri

ty
A

p
ri

l 
30

, 
20

23

2 of 3
24 of 154



A
d

d
it

io
n

s/
S

u
b

tr
ac

ti
o

n
s

S
e

p
te

m
b

er
 

A
n

n
u

a
liz

ed
3/

31
/2

02
3

3
/3

1
/2

02
3

4/
30

/2
02

3
4

/3
0

/2
02

3
a

n
d

 C
h

an
g

e
 in

L
T

D
th

ro
u

g
h

In
te

re
st

E
n

d
in

g
E

n
d

in
g

E
n

d
in

g
E

n
d

in
g

F
ai

r 
M

ar
k

et
 V

al
u

e
U

n
re

a
liz

ed
 

A
p

ri
l

A
p

ri
l

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
H

el
d

 A
t

R
at

e 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

P
ar

F
a

ir
 M

ar
k

et
 V

al
u

e
B

o
o

k 
V

a
lu

e
F

a
ir

 M
ar

ke
t 

V
a

lu
e

B
o

o
k 

V
al

u
e

F
o

r 
th

e 
M

o
n

th
G

ai
n

/L
o

s
s

E
ar

n
in

g
s

E
a

rn
in

g
s

S
h

o
rt

-T
e

rm
 In

ve
s

tm
e

n
ts

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri

c
te

d
 F

u
n

d
s

D
em

an
d 

D
ep

os
its

  
C

re
di

t 
C

ar
ds

 in
 T

ra
n

si
t

H
e

ar
tla

nd
N

/A
05

/0
1/

23
$

N
/A

$
(8

,7
5

8)
  

$
(8

,7
5

8)
  

$
10

4,
94

5
  

$
10

4,
94

5
  

$
1

13
,7

03
  

$
N

/A
$

N
/A

$
N

/A
  

JP
M

or
ga

n 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

P
ay

ab
le

 D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
JP

M
or

ga
n 

C
ha

se
 B

an
k

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

(1
,0

1
0,

25
7)

  
(1

,0
1

0,
25

7)
  

(5
9

2,
22

4)
  

(5
9

2,
22

4)
  

41
8,

03
3

  
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
  

JP
M

or
ga

n 
O

pe
ra

tin
g

JP
M

or
ga

n 
C

h
as

e 
B

a
nk

N
/A

0
5/

01
/2

3
N

/A
5

,7
9

9,
29

4
  

5,
79

9,
29

4
  

7,
10

4,
52

2
  

7,
10

4,
52

2
  

1
,3

0
5

,2
2

8
  

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

  
JP

M
or

ga
n 

P
a

yr
ol

l
JP

M
or

ga
n 

C
ha

se
 B

an
k

N
/A

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

(2
7

,4
24

)
  

(2
7

,4
2

4
)

  
(1

9
,0

02
)

  
(1

9
,0

0
2

)
  

8,
42

2
  

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

  
JP

M
or

ga
n 

W
or

ke
r's

 C
o

m
p

JP
M

or
ga

n 
C

h
as

e
 B

a
nk

N
/A

0
5/

01
/2

3
N

/A
(5

,8
0

4)
  

(5
,8

0
4)

  
(1

8
,1

88
)

  
(1

8
,1

8
8

)
  

(1
2

,3
84

)
  

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

  
P

et
ty

 C
as

h
C

am
pu

s 
B

us
in

e
ss

 O
ff

ic
es

N
/A

05
/0

1/
2

3
N

/A
19

,0
67

  
19

,0
6

7
  

19
,0

67
  

19
,0

6
7

  
- 

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
ub

 T
o

ta
l D

em
an

d
 D

ep
os

its
$

N
/A

$
4

,7
66

,1
1

8
  

$
4,

76
6,

11
8

  
$

6,
59

9,
12

0
  

$
6,

59
9,

12
0

  
$

1
,8

3
3

,0
0

2
  

$
N

/A
$

N
/A

$
N

/A

P
oo

l A
cc

ou
nt

s
  

T
e

xP
o

ol
 -

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
T

e
xP

oo
l

4.
79

84
%

0
5/

01
/2

3
$

N
/A

$
1

04
,3

55
  

$
10

4,
35

5
  

$
50

9,
16

4
  

$
50

9,
16

4
  

$
4

04
,8

09
  

$
N

A
$

1,
84

7
  

$
10

,9
9

6
  

 
  

   
LS

IP
 C

or
po

ra
te

 O
ve

rn
ig

h
t P

lu
s 

F
un

d 
- 

O
p

er
at

in
g

 F
un

ds
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
o

ol
5.

02
49

%
0

5/
01

/2
3

N
/A

93
,6

7
3,

25
1

  
93

,6
7

3,
25

1
  

87
,1

20
,4

06
  

87
,1

2
0,

40
6

  
(6

,5
5

2,
84

5)
  

N
A

37
5,

39
1

  
2

,0
5

4,
42

1
  

S
ub

 T
o

ta
l P

o
ol

 A
cc

o
un

ts
$

N
/A

$
93

,7
7

7,
60

6
  

$
93

,7
7

7,
60

6
  

$
87

,6
29

,5
70

  
$

87
,6

2
9,

57
0

  
$

(6
,1

4
8,

03
6)

  
$

N
A

$
37

7,
23

8
  

$
2

,0
6

5,
41

7
  

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

  
U

S
 T

re
a

su
ry

 N
o

te
, 

C
U

S
IP

 9
1

28
28

4U
1

B
N

Y
 M

e
llo

n
2.

62
5

%
06

/3
0/

23
$

5,
00

0,
00

0
  

 
$

4,
97

5,
25

0
  

 
$

4,
98

7,
71

3
  

 
$

4,
98

0,
70

0
  

 
$

4,
98

7,
71

3
  

 
$

5,
45

0
  

 
$

(7
,0

1
3)

  
$

10
,9

37
  

$
8

7,
50

3
  

 
  

U
S

 T
re

a
su

ry
 N

o
te

, 
C

U
S

IP
 9

1
28

28
N

30
B

N
Y

 M
e

llo
n

2.
51

8
%

12
/3

1/
22

-  
 

-  
-  

-  
-  

-  
-  

-  
4

5,
18

2
  

 
  

U
S

 A
g

en
cy

 N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 3

1
33

85
M

60
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

2.
14

4%
1

0/
3

1/
22

-  
 

-  
-  

-  
-  

-  
-  

-  
1

7,
79

2
  

 
  

U
S

 A
g

en
cy

 N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 3

1
35

G
O

T
9

4
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

2.
58

0%
0

1/
16

/2
3

-  
 

-  
-  

-  
-  

-  
-  

-  
4

7,
23

7
  

 
  

U
S

 A
g

en
cy

 N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 3

1
33

84
F

A
2

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
4

.5
2

1%
0

5/
01

/2
3

1
0,

00
0,

00
0

  
9,

96
4,

60
0

  
 

9,
76

7,
46

7
  

1
0,

00
0,

00
0

   
9

,7
6

7,
46

7
  

35
,4

00
   

23
2,

53
3

  
 

3
3,

2
19

  
19

9,
31

3
   

  
U

S
 A

g
en

cy
 N

ot
e,

 C
U

S
IP

 3
1

30
A

T
X

K
8

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
4

.9
0

0%
1

1/
28

/2
3

5,
00

0,
00

0
  

 
5,

00
3,

85
0

  
 

5,
00

0,
50

0
  

4,
99

8,
40

0
  

 
5,

00
0,

50
0

  
(5

,4
5

0)
  

 
(2

,1
0

0)
  

20
,4

17
  

10
2,

08
5

   
  

U
S

 A
g

en
cy

 N
ot

e,
 C

U
S

IP
 3

1
30

A
U

M
92

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
4

.7
5

0%
0

1/
19

/2
4

5,
00

0,
00

0
  

 
5,

00
1,

50
0

  
 

4,
99

7,
49

6
  

4,
99

6,
61

5
  

 
4,

99
7,

49
6

  
(4

,8
8

5)
  

(8
8

1)
 

19
,7

92
 

6
7,

03
6

  
 

  
U

S
 A

g
en

cy
 N

ot
e,

 C
U

S
IP

 3
1

30
A

T
V

D
6

B
N

Y
 M

e
llo

n
4

.8
7

5%
0

9/
13

/2
4

5,
00

0,
00

0
  

 
5,

02
4,

55
0

  
 

5,
02

6,
00

0
  

5,
01

6,
05

0
  

 
5,

02
6,

00
0

  
(8

,5
0

0)
  

 
(9

,9
5

0)
  

20
,3

12
  

10
5,

62
5

   
  

C
e

rt
ifi

ca
te

 o
f 

D
e

po
si

t,
 C

U
S

IP
 0

2
58

9A
D

C
3

B
N

Y
 M

el
lo

n
2

.7
0

0%
0

7/
20

/2
3

24
3,

00
0

  
 

24
1,

17
3

  
 

24
3,

00
0

  
24

1,
56

1
  

 
24

3,
00

0
  

3
88

  
 

(1
,4

3
9)

  
54

7
  

4
,3

7
6

  
 

  
C

e
rt

ifi
ca

te
 o

f 
D

e
po

si
t,

 C
U

S
IP

 8
9

84
1M

A
D

9
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

2.
85

0%
0

7/
19

/2
3

2
49

,0
0

0
  

 
24

7,
33

5
  

 
24

9,
00

0
  

24
7,

68
3

  
 

24
9,

00
0

  
3

48
  

 
(1

,3
1

7)
  

5,
61

8
  

 
  

C
e

rt
ifi

ca
te

 o
f 

D
e

po
si

t,
 C

U
S

IP
 9

0
95

57
JT

8
B

N
Y

 M
el

lo
n

2.
75

0%
0

7/
21

/2
3

2
49

,0
00

  
 

24
7,

21
2

  
 

24
9,

00
0

  
24

7,
59

3
  

 
24

9,
00

0
  

3
81

  
 

(1
,4

0
7)

  
5,

02
4

  
 

S
ub

 T
o

ta
l I

n
ve

st
m

en
ts

$
3

0,
74

1,
00

0
  

$
30

,7
0

5,
47

0
   

$
30

,5
20

,1
76

   
$

30
,7

2
8,

60
2

   
$

30
,5

20
,1

76
   

$
2

3,
13

2
   

$
20

8,
42

6
  

 
$

10
5,

22
4

   
$

6
86

,7
9

1
   

S
ub

 T
o

ta
l -

 S
ho

rt
-T

er
m

 I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 -
 U

nr
e

st
ri

ct
e

d 
F

un
d

s
$

30
,7

41
,0

00
  

$
12

9
,2

4
9,

19
4

  
$

12
9,

06
3,

90
0

  
$

12
4

,9
5

7,
29

2
  

$
12

4,
74

8,
86

6
  

$
(4

,2
9

1,
90

2)
  

$
2

08
,4

2
6

  
 

$
48

2,
46

2
  

$
2

,7
5

2,
20

8
  

S
h

o
rt

-T
e

rm
 In

ve
s

tm
e

n
ts

 -
  R

es
tr

ic
te

d
 (

B
o

n
d

) 
F

u
n

d
s

P
oo

l A
cc

ou
nt

s
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
h

t P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
2

00
8 

G
O

B
 B

on
d 

P
ro

ce
e

d
s

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

o
ol

5.
02

49
%

0
5/

01
/2

3
$

N
/A

$
- 

$
- 

$
- 

$
- 

$
- 

$
N

A
$

- 
$

2,
70

8
  

 
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
h

t P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
G

O
B

 D
eb

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

L
on

e 
S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
11

,3
2

8
,4

8
6

  
11

,3
2

8,
48

6
  

11
,5

71
,1

45
  

11
,5

7
1,

14
5

  
24

2,
65

9
  

N
A

47
,3

41
  

18
0,

17
2

   
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
h

t P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
2

00
4 

B
o

nd
 E

a
rn

in
gs

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

29
,7

26
  

29
,7

2
6

  
28

,0
45

  
28

,0
4

5
  

(1
,6

8
1)

  
N

A
11

9
  

16
,7

78
  

 
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
h

t P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
2

00
7 

B
o

nd
 E

a
rn

in
gs

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

3,
94

6
  

3,
9

46
  

3,
96

2
  

3,
9

62
  

16  
N

A
1

6
  

2,
87

8
  

 
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
h

t P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
2

00
8 

B
o

nd
 E

a
rn

in
gs

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

74
5,

34
1

  
74

5,
34

1
  

44
3,

04
4

  
44

3,
04

4
  

(3
0

2,
29

7)
  

N
A

1,
98

8
  

21
,3

6
2

  
 

  
LS

IP
 C

or
po

ra
te

 O
ve

rn
ig

h
t P

lu
s 

F
un

d 
- 

2
00

9 
B

o
nd

 E
a

rn
in

gs
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
1,

28
8,

15
0

  
1,

28
8,

15
0

  
83

1,
76

7
  

83
1,

76
7

  
(4

5
6,

38
3)

  
N

A
4,

61
4

  
41

,1
3

8
  

 
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
h

t P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
2

01
1 

B
o

nd
 E

a
rn

in
gs

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

oo
l

5.
02

49
%

05
/0

1/
23

N
/A

20
,4

46
  

20
,4

4
6

  
20

,5
30

  
20

,5
3

0
  

84  
N

A
8

4
  

14
,9

4
0

  
 

  
LS

IP
 C

or
po

ra
te

 O
ve

rn
ig

h
t P

lu
s 

F
un

d 
- 

2
02

2 
B

o
nd

 P
ro

ce
e

ds
Lo

ne
 S

ta
r 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
oo

l
5.

02
49

%
05

/0
1/

23
N

/A
41

,1
96

,7
8

7
  

41
,1

9
6,

78
7

  
41

,3
66

,8
87

  
41

,3
6

6,
88

7
  

17
0,

10
0

  
N

A
1

70
,1

00
  

1
,1

3
0,

41
6

  
  

LS
IP

 C
or

po
ra

te
 O

ve
rn

ig
h

t P
lu

s 
F

un
d 

- 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
R

es
e

rv
e

Lo
ne

 S
ta

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

o
ol

5.
02

49
%

0
5/

01
/2

3
N

/A
5,

00
1,

37
6

  
5,

00
1,

37
6

  
5,

02
2,

03
2

  
5,

02
2,

03
2

  
20

,6
56

  
N

A
2

0,
65

6
  

2
2,

03
2

  
 

  
T

e
xP

o
ol

 P
R

IM
E

 -
 2

02
1 

B
on

d
 P

ro
ce

e
ds

 
T

ex
P

oo
l  

4.
99

16
%

0
5/

01
/2

3
N

/A
31

,5
14

,5
30

  
31

,5
1

4,
53

0
  

30
,5

87
,3

16
  

30
,5

8
7,

31
6

  
(9

2
7,

21
4)

  
N

A
12

7,
47

9
  

93
0,

72
5

   
S

ub
 T

o
ta

l P
o

ol
 A

cc
o

un
ts

$
N

/A
$

91
,1

2
8,

78
8

  
$

91
,1

2
8,

78
8

  
$

89
,8

74
,7

28
  

$
89

,8
7

4,
72

8
  

$
(1

,2
5

4,
06

0)
  

$
N

A
$

37
2,

39
7

  
$

2
,3

6
3,

14
8

  

S
ub

 T
o

ta
l -

 S
ho

rt
-T

er
m

 I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 -
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
(B

on
d)

 F
un

ds
$

N
/A

$
91

,1
28

,7
88

  
$

91
,1

2
8,

78
8

  
$

89
,8

74
,7

28
  

$
89

,8
7

4,
72

8
  

$
(1

,2
5

4,
06

0)
  

$
N

A
$

37
2,

39
7

  
$

2
,3

6
3,

14
8

  

G
ra

n
d 

T
ot

al
 -

 C
as

h,
 C

as
h

 E
qu

iv
al

en
ts

, a
nd

 I
nv

es
tm

e
nt

s
$

3
0,

7
41

,0
00

  
$

22
0

,3
7

7,
98

2
  

$
22

0,
19

2,
68

8
  

$
21

4
,8

3
2,

02
0

  
$

21
4,

62
3,

59
4

  
$

(5
,5

4
5,

96
2)

  
$

2
08

,4
2

6
  

 
$

85
4,

85
9

  
$

5
,1

1
5,

35
6

  

S
A

N
 J

A
C

IN
T

O
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

C
as

h
, 

C
a

sh
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n

ts
, 

an
d

 In
ve

s
tm

e
n

ts
In

ve
n

to
ry

 H
o

ld
in

g
s 

R
ep

o
rt

A
p

ri
l 

30
, 

20
23

3 of 3
25 of 154



AS
SE
TS

Fo
un

da
tio

n
St
ud

en
t S

uc
ce
ss
   
 

Fu
nd

To
ta
l

Fo
un

da
tio

n
St
ud

en
t S

uc
ce
ss
   
  

Fu
nd

To
ta
l

Fo
un

da
tio

n
St
ud

en
t S

uc
ce
ss
   
 

Fu
nd

To
ta
l

Cu
rr
en

t A
ss
et
s

Ch
ec
ki
ng
/S
av
in
gs

G
en

er
al
 F
un

d
$2

,8
23

,3
56

‐ 
$2

,8
23

,3
56

$2
,1
64

,4
64

‐ 
$2

,1
64

,4
64

65
8,
89

2
‐ 

65
8,
89

2
O
th
er
 F
un

ds
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
‐ 

To
ta
l C
he

ck
in
g/
Sa
vi
ng
s

2,
82

3,
35

6
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐ 
2,
82

3,
35

6
   
   
   
   
   
 

2,
16

4,
46

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐ 
2,
16

4,
46

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

65
8,
89

2
‐ 

65
8,
89

2

Ac
co
un

ts
 R
ec
ei
va
bl
es

2,
60

7,
93

0
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐ 
2,
60

7,
93

0
   
   
   
   
   
 

3,
06

4,
72

0
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐ 
3,
06

4,
72

0
   
   
   
   
   
 

(4
56

,7
90

)
‐ 

(4
56

,7
90

)

O
th
er
 C
ur
re
nt
 A
ss
et
s

Sh
or
t T

er
m
 In
ve
st
m
en

ts
G
ol
dm

an
 S
ac
hs
 ‐ 
SS
2 
(E
nd

ow
ed

)
18

,4
07

,3
40

   
   
   
   
  

18
,4
07

,3
40

   
   
   
   
  

18
,0
55

,4
96

   
   
   
   
  

18
,0
55

,4
96

   
   
   
   
   

‐ 
35

1,
84

4
35

1,
84

4
G
ol
dm

an
 S
ac
hs
 ‐ 
SS
F 
(N
on

‐E
nd

ow
ed

)
7,
58

9,
59

1
   
   
   
   
   
 

7,
58

9,
59

1
   
   
   
   
   
 

8,
45

8,
87

1
   
   
   
   
   
 

8,
45

8,
87

1
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐ 
(8
69

,2
79

)
(8
69

,2
79

)
G
ol
dm

an
 S
ac
hs
 ‐ 
FD

N
‐S
SE
 (E

nd
ow

ed
)

1,
76

8,
19

8
   
   
   
   
   
 

1,
76

8,
19

8
   
   
   
   
   
 

11
,7
47

 
11

,7
47

 
1,
75

6,
45

1
‐ 

1,
75

6,
45

1
G
ol
dm

an
 S
ac
hs
 ‐ 
FD

N
12

,7
47

,2
47

   
   
   
   
  

12
,7
47

,2
47

   
   
   
   
  

14
,2
30

,0
95

   
   
   
   
  

14
,2
30

,0
95

   
   
   
   
  

(1
,4
82

,8
48

)
‐ 

(1
,4
82

,8
48

)
To

ta
l S
JC
 S
ho

rt
 T
er
m
 In
ve
st
m
en

ts
14

,5
15

,4
45

   
   
   
   
  

25
,9
96

,9
31

   
   
   
   
  

40
,5
12

,3
76

   
   
   
   
  

14
,2
41

,8
42

   
   
   
   
  

26
,5
14

,3
67

   
   
   
   
  

40
,7
56

,2
09

   
   
   
   
  

27
3,
60

3
(5
17

,4
35

)
(2
43

,8
32

)

To
ta
l C
ur
re
nt
 A
ss
et
s

19
,9
46

,7
31

   
   
   
   
  

25
,9
96

,9
31

   
   
   
   
  

45
,9
43

,6
62

   
   
   
   
  

19
,4
71

,0
26

   
   
   
   
  

26
,5
14

,3
67

   
   
   
   
  

45
,9
85

,3
93

   
   
   
   
  

47
5,
70

5
(5
17

,4
35

)
(4
1,
73

0)

TO
TA

L 
AS

SE
TS

19
,9
46

,7
31

   
   
   
   
 

25
,9
96

,9
31

   
   
   
   
 

45
,9
43

,6
62

   
   
   
   
 

19
,4
71

,0
26

   
   
   
   
 

26
,5
14

,3
67

   
   
   
   
 

45
,9
85

,3
93

   
   
   
   
 

47
5,
70

5
(5
17

,4
35

)
(4
1,
73

0)

LI
AB

IL
IT
IE
S 
&
 N
ET

 A
SS
ET
S

Li
ab
ili
tie

s
Cu

rr
en

t L
ia
bi
lit
ie
s

Ac
co
un

ts
 P
ay
ab
le

G
ra
nt
s P

ay
ab
le

13
2,
35

6
‐ 

13
2,
35

6
 

37
,6
76

‐ 
37

,6
76

 
94

,6
80

‐ 
94

,6
80

Pr
og
ra
m
s P

ay
ab
le

2,
03

0
‐ 

2,
03

0
 

2,
03

0
‐ 

2,
03

0
 

‐ 
‐ 

‐ 
En
do

w
m
en

ts
 P
ay
ab
le

18
2,
75

6
‐ 

18
2,
75

6
 

94
,5
71

‐ 
94

,5
71

 
88

,1
85

‐ 
88

,1
85

Sc
ho

la
rs
hi
p 
Pa
ya
bl
es

30
3,
55

1
1,
73

7,
43

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

2,
04

0,
98

5
   
   
   
   
   
 

41
1,
00

8
62

6,
26

5
 

1,
03

7,
27

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

(1
07

,4
57

)
1,
11

1,
16

8
   
   
   
   
   
 

1,
00

3,
71

1
St
ud

en
t S

uc
ce
ss
 P
ay
ab
le
s

92
,4
70

 
‐ 

92
,4
70

 
11

2,
58

4
‐ 

11
2,
58

4
 

(2
0,
11

4)
‐ 

(2
0,
11

4)
To

ta
l A

cc
ou

nt
s P

ay
ab
le

71
3,
16

3
 

1,
73

7,
43

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

2,
45

0,
59

7
   
   
   
   
   
 

65
7,
86

9
 

62
6,
26

5
 

1,
28

4,
13

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

55
,2
94

1,
11

1,
16

8
1,
16

6,
46

3

To
ta
l C
ur
re
nt
 L
ia
bi
lit
ie
s

71
3,
16

3
 

1,
73

7,
43

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

2,
45

0,
59

7
   
   
   
   
   
 

65
7,
86

9
 

62
6,
26

5
 

1,
28

4,
13

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

55
,2
94

1,
11

1,
16

8
1,
16

6,
46

3

To
ta
l L
ia
bi
lit
ie
s

71
3,
16

3
 

1,
73

7,
43

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

2,
45

0,
59

7
   
   
   
   
   
 

65
7,
86

9
 

62
6,
26

5
 

1,
28

4,
13

4
   
   
   
   
   
 

55
,2
94

1,
11

1,
16

8
1,
16

6,
46

3

N
ET
 A
SS
ET
S

N
et
 A
ss
et
s W

ith
ou

t D
on

or
 R
es
tr
ic
tio

ns
2,
24

8,
36

0
   
   
   
   
   
 

24
,5
75

,7
62

   
   
   
   
  

26
,8
24

,1
22

   
   
   
   
  

4,
09

9,
63

3
   
   
   
   
   
 

30
,0
00

,2
53

   
   
   
   
  

34
,0
99

,8
86

   
   
   
   
  

(1
,8
51

,2
73

)
(5
,4
24

,4
91

)
(7
,2
75

,7
64

)
N
et
 A
ss
et
s W

ith
 D
on

or
 R
es
tr
ic
tio

ns
16

,3
22

,3
30

   
   
   
   
  

16
,3
22

,3
30

   
   
   
   
  

15
,9
60

,4
85

   
   
   
   
  

15
,9
60

,4
85

   
   
   
   
   

36
1,
84

4
‐ 

36
1,
84

4
N
et
 A
ss
et
s

18
,5
70

,6
89

   
   
   
   
  

24
,5
75

,7
62

   
   
   
   
  

43
,1
46

,4
51

   
   
   
   
  

20
,0
60

,1
18

   
   
   
   
  

30
,0
00

,2
53

   
   
   
   
  

50
,0
60

,3
71

   
   
   
   
  

(1
,4
89

,4
29

)
(5
,4
24

,4
91

)
(6
,9
13

,9
20

)

N
et
 In
co
m
e

66
2,
87

8
(3
16

,2
64

)
34

6,
61

4
(1
,2
46

,9
62

)
($
4,
11

2,
15

2)
(5
,3
59

,1
13

)
1,
90

9,
84

0
3,
79

5,
88

7
5,
70

5,
72

7
To

ta
l N

et
 A
ss
et
s

19
,2
33

,5
68

24
,2
59

,4
98

43
,4
93

,0
65

18
,8
13

,1
57

   
   
   
   
  

25
,8
88

,1
01

   
   
   
   
  

44
,7
01

,2
58

   
   
   
   
  

42
0,
41

1
(1
,6
28

,6
04

)
(1
,2
08

,1
93

)

TO
TA

L 
LI
AB

IL
IT
IE
S 
&
 N
ET

 A
SS
ET
S

$1
9,
94

6,
73

1
$2

5,
99

6,
93

1
$4

5,
94

3,
66

2
$1

9,
47

1,
02

6
26

,5
14

,3
67

   
   
   
   
 

$4
5,
98

5,
39

3
47

5,
70

5
(5
17

,4
35

)
(4
1,
73

0)

Cu
rr
en

t Y
ea
r

Pr
ev
io
us
 Y
ea
r

D
iff
er
en

ce

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

C
ol

le
ge

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n

St
at

em
en

t o
f F

in
an

ci
al

 P
os

iti
on

As
 o

f A
pr

il 
30

, 2
02

3

1 of 2
26 of 154



Fo
un

da
tio

n
St
ud

en
t 

Su
cc
es
s 

Fu
nd

To
ta
l

Fo
un

da
tio

n
St
ud

en
t 

Su
cc
es
s 

Fu
nd

To
ta
l

Fo
un

da
tio

n
St
ud

en
t 

Su
cc
es
s 

Fu
nd

To
ta
l

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
  

A
nn

ua
l 

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l %

 
of

 A
nn

ua
l 

B
ud

ge
t

O
rd

in
ar

y 
In

co
m

e/
Ex

pe
ns

e
In

co
m

e
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

G
ra

nt
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
12

0,
90

0
   

   
 

- 
12

0,
90

0
 

2,
40

0
   

   
   

  
- 

2,
40

0
 

11
8,

50
0.

00
  

- 
11

8,
50

0.
00

90
,0

00
   

   
   

 
13

4%
En

do
w

m
en

ts
33

1,
18

4
   

   
 

- 
33

1,
18

4
 

63
,2

66
   

   
   

- 
63

,2
66

 
26

7,
91

8
- 

26
7,

91
8

17
5,

00
0

   
   

  
18

9%
Pr

og
ra

m
 S

po
ns

or
sh

ip
12

8,
60

5
   

   
 

- 
12

8,
60

5
 

21
6,

77
0

   
   

 
- 

21
6,

77
0

 
(8

8,
16

5)
- 

(8
8,

16
5)

27
5,

00
0

   
   

  
47

%
Sc

ho
la

rs
hi

ps
43

2,
23

0
   

   
 

- 
43

2,
23

0
 

60
8,

84
9

   
   

 
- 

60
8,

84
9

 
(1

76
,6

19
)

- 
(1

76
,6

19
)

40
0,

00
0

   
   

  
10

8%
To

ta
l C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

1,
01

2,
92

0
   

 
- 

1,
01

2,
92

0
 

89
1,

28
5

   
   

 
- 

89
1,

28
5

 
12

1,
63

5
- 

12
1,

63
5

94
0,

00
0

   
   

  
10

8%

O
th

er
 In

co
m

e
Sp

ec
ia

l E
ve

nt
s

- 
- 

- 
23

6,
25

0
- 

23
6,

25
0

 
(2

36
,2

50
)

- 
(2

36
,2

50
)

- 
In

ve
st

m
en

t I
nc

om
e

41
4,

98
6

84
0,

09
5

   
   

  
1,

25
5,

08
1

   
   

34
2,

46
6

48
6,

63
7

   
   

  
82

9,
10

2
 

72
,5

21
35

3,
45

8
   

   
 

42
5,

97
9

60
0,

00
0

   
   

  
20

9%
R

ea
liz

ed
 G

ai
n 

/ (
Lo

ss
)

(6
,4

48
)

(1
96

,8
15

)
(2

03
,2

64
)

34
,4

12
(2

7,
37

2)
7,

04
0

   
   

   
  

(4
0,

86
0)

(1
69

,4
44

)
(2

10
,3

04
)

- 
U

nr
ea

liz
ed

 G
ai

n 
/ (

Lo
ss

)
41

6,
31

4
1,

14
4,

13
0

1,
56

0,
44

4
(1

,3
61

,8
23

)
(3

,3
13

,8
09

)
(4

,6
75

,6
32

)
5,

09
1,

94
6

4,
45

7,
93

9
6,

23
6,

07
6

- 
To

ta
l O

th
er

 In
co

m
e

82
4,

85
2

1,
78

7,
41

0
2,

61
2,

26
1

(7
48

,6
96

)
(2

,8
54

,5
44

)
(3

,6
03

,2
40

)
4,

88
7,

35
6

4,
64

1,
95

3
6,

21
5,

50
1

60
0,

00
0

   
   

  
13

7%

To
ta

l I
nc

om
e

1,
83

7,
77

1
   

 
1,

78
7,

41
0

3,
62

5,
18

1
14

2,
58

9
   

   
 

(2
,8

54
,5

44
)

(2
,7

11
,9

55
)

5,
00

8,
99

1
4,

64
1,

95
3

6,
33

7,
13

6
1,

54
0,

00
0

   
  

11
9%

Ex
pe

ns
e

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Sc

ho
la

rs
hi

ps
 A

w
ar

de
d 

- S
SF

- 
2,

10
3,

67
4

 
2,

10
3,

67
4

   
   

- 
1,

25
7,

60
8

 
1,

25
7,

60
8

   
 

- 
84

6,
06

6
84

6,
06

6
2,

50
0,

00
0

   
  

84
%

Sc
ho

la
rs

hi
ps

 A
w

ar
de

d 
- F

N
D

82
4,

83
8

   
   

 
- 

82
4,

83
8

 
1,

18
6,

40
1

- 
1,

18
6,

40
1

(3
61

,5
63

)
- 

(3
61

,5
63

)
1,

20
0,

00
0

   
  

69
%

Pr
og

ra
m

s 
Sp

on
so

re
d

26
8,

30
9

   
   

 
- 

26
8,

30
9

 
10

9,
45

2
- 

10
9,

45
2

 
15

8,
85

7
- 

15
8,

85
7

60
0,

00
0

   
   

  
45

%
St

ud
en

t S
uc

ce
ss

 In
iti

at
iv

es
17

,0
09

   
   

   
- 

17
,0

09
 

50
,6

29
- 

50
,6

29
 

33
,6

20
   

   
   

- 
(3

3,
62

0)
15

0,
00

0
   

   
  

11
%

To
ta

l P
ro

gr
am

s
1,

11
0,

15
7

   
 

2,
10

3,
67

4
   

  
3,

21
3,

83
1

   
   

1,
34

6,
48

1
1,

25
7,

60
8

   
  

2,
60

4,
08

9
(1

69
,0

86
)

84
6,

06
6

60
9,

74
1

4,
45

0,
00

0
   

  
72

%

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ba

d 
D

eb
t E

xp
en

se
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

2,
00

0
 

0%

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

Ex
pe

ns
es

61
,8

71
   

   
   

- 
61

,8
71

 
24

,5
55

   
   

   
- 

24
,5

55
 

37
,3

16
- 

37
,3

16
12

0,
75

0
   

   
  

51
%

Fu
nd

ra
is

in
g

- 
- 

15
,3

13
   

   
   

15
,3

13
 

(1
5,

31
3)

Sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

Ex
pe

ns
e

2,
86

5
   

   
   

  
- 

2,
86

5
 

3,
20

0
   

   
   

  
- 

3,
20

0
 

(3
35

)
- 

(3
35

)
5,

00
0

 
57

%
To

ta
l S

up
po

rt
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
64

,7
36

   
   

   
- 

64
,7

36
 

43
,0

69
   

   
   

- 
43

,0
69

 
36

,9
81

- 
21

,6
67

12
5,

75
0

   
   

  
51

%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

1,
17

4,
89

3
   

 
2,

10
3,

67
4

   
  

3,
27

8,
56

7
   

   
1,

38
9,

55
0

1,
25

7,
60

8
   

  
2,

64
7,

15
8

(1
32

,1
05

)
84

6,
06

6
63

1,
40

9
4,

57
7,

75
0

   
  

26
%

N
et

 O
rd

in
ar

y 
In

co
m

e
66

2,
87

8
(3

16
,2

64
)

34
6,

61
4

(1
,2

46
,9

62
)

(4
,1

12
,1

52
)

(5
,3

59
,1

13
)

1,
90

9,
84

0
3,

79
5,

88
7

5,
70

5,
72

7
(3

,0
37

,7
50

)

O
th

er
 In

co
m

e 
/ E

xp
en

se
s

In
cr

ea
se

/D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

$6
62

,8
78

($
31

6,
26

4)
$3

46
,6

14
($

1,
24

6,
96

2)
($

4,
11

2,
15

2)
($

5,
35

9,
11

3)
$1

,9
09

,8
40

$3
,7

95
,8

87
$5

,7
05

,7
27

($
3,

03
7,

75
0)

0

Fo
r t

he
 P

er
io

d 
En

di
ng

 A
pr

il 
30

, 2
02

3
St

at
em

en
t o

f A
ct

iv
iti

es
Sa

n 
Ja

ci
nt

o 
C

ol
le

ge
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n

Cu
rr
en

t Y
ea
r

Pr
ev
io
us
 Y
ea
r

D
iff
er
en

ce

2 of 2
27 of 154



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 Program 
Management 

Fees  
 Total Budget   Encumbered 

Funds 
 Total 

Expenditures 
 Remaining 

Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

Central
731603 - CC Class Room Building              47,155,000                2,195,219              49,350,219                1,788,440              51,138,659                   209,178              46,872,920                4,056,561 92%
71608A - CC McCollum Center Reno Phase II                               -                8,483,421                8,483,421                   338,733                8,822,154                   165,057                8,136,661                   520,436 94%

Sub-total              47,155,000              10,678,640              57,833,640                2,127,173              59,960,813                   374,235              55,009,581                4,576,997 92%
North
732606 - NC Wheeler Renovation              14,300,000               (2,644,106)              11,655,894                   391,191              12,047,085                       6,231                9,981,209                2,059,645 83%
732607 - NC Brightwell Renovation                6,628,000                  (314,641)                6,313,359                   258,531                6,571,890                     28,270                6,542,129                       1,491 100%

Sub-total              20,928,000               (2,958,747)              17,969,253                   649,722              18,618,975                     34,501              16,523,338                2,061,136 89%
South
733605 - SC South Primary Electrical Upgrade                5,800,000                   966,625                6,766,625                   218,639                6,985,264                   557,564                4,812,056                1,615,644 77%
733608 - SC Domestic Water System Rehabilitation                1,160,000                   823,696                1,983,696                     64,096                2,047,792                     38,054                1,086,253                   923,485 55%
733610 - SC Jones Renovation              13,803,000                4,348,177              18,151,177                   605,876              18,757,053                   658,851              16,109,373                1,988,829 89%
73610A - SC Jones Central Plant Relocation                               -              10,570,357              10,570,357                   344,861              10,915,218                               -                8,861,490                2,053,728 81%

Sub-total              20,763,000              16,708,855              37,471,855                1,233,472              38,705,327                1,254,469              30,869,172                6,581,686 83%
 Maritime 
736603 - MC Maritime Expansion              28,000,000             (27,031,300)                   968,700                     31,300                1,000,000                     19,850                   927,274                     52,876 95%

Sub-total              28,000,000             (27,031,300)                   968,700                     31,300                1,000,000                     19,850                   927,274                     52,876 95%
 Generation Park  
726601 - Generation Park                               -                2,916,497                2,916,497                   995,152                3,911,649                               -                3,911,649                               - 100%
76601B - North Access Road                               -                1,030,629                1,030,629                               -                1,030,629                       5,900                1,024,729                               - 100%

Sub-total                               -                3,947,126                3,947,126                   995,152                4,942,278                       5,900                4,936,378                               - 100%
Admin
76605A - CW Deferred Maintenance                               -              30,829,038              30,829,038                   427,385              31,256,423              12,099,920              10,428,206                8,728,297 72%
736606 - Generation Park Opportunities                               -              20,000,000              20,000,000                               -              20,000,000                               -                               -              20,000,000                               - 
720100 - Program Management - AECOM                               -              11,431,567              11,431,567             (11,404,113)                     27,454                     27,454                               -                               - 100%
736601 - Contingency                1,166,180              11,559,900              12,726,080                               -              12,726,080                               -                               -              12,726,080                               - 

Sub-total                1,166,180              73,820,505              74,986,685             (10,976,728)              64,009,957              12,127,374              10,428,206              41,454,377 35%
Previously Completed and Closed Projects

Sub-total            306,987,820             (75,165,079)            231,822,741                5,939,909            237,762,650                               -            237,762,650                               - 100%
TOTALS            425,000,000                               -            425,000,000                               -            425,000,000              13,816,329            356,456,599              54,727,072 87%

2015 Bond Program
  Report as of April 30, 2023

28 of 154



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget  Total Budget   Encumbered 

Funds 
 Total 

Expenditures 
 Remaining 

Balance 

 Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed 

Generation Park  - 726601
904605 - 2015 Revenue Bond - 726601 6,787,977              -                             6,787,977              6,787,977              -                             6,787,977              -                             100%
929603 - Operational - 726601           8,843,556              -                             8,843,556              8,843,556              -                             8,843,556              -                             100%
901609 - 2015 Bond - 726601 6,368,466              (2,456,817)             3,911,649              3,911,649              -                             3,911,649              -                             100%
901610 - Generation Park Site Infrastructure - 726601 4,000,000              (8,725)                    3,991,275              3,991,275              -                             3,991,275              -                             100%
901610 - Generation Park Parking Lot - 76601A 3,521,892              (691,977)                2,829,915              2,829,915              577                        2,720,676              108,662                 96%
901609/10 - North Access Road - 76601B -                             1,816,525              1,816,525              1,816,525              6,271                     1,725,353              84,901                   95%

TOTALS 29,521,892             (1,340,994)             28,180,898             28,180,898             6,849                     27,980,487             193,562                 99%

Generation Park 
Report as of April 30, 2023

29 of 154



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments  Total Budget   Encumbered 

Funds 
 Total 

Expenditures 
 Remaining 

Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

College Wide 
E22001 - UCRM 1 - LED Lighting 811,078                 (231,152)                579,926                 100,548                479,378                -                             100%
E22002 - UCRM 2.1a - A-1 HVAC 10,354                   (5,782)                    4,572                     -                            4,572                    -                             100%
E22003 - UCRM 2.1b - CC Chillers 1,526,400              156,744                 1,683,144              196,518                1,464,382             22,244                   99%
E22004 - UCRM 2.1c -  NC Chiller 593,600                 82,278                   675,878                 111,170                553,830                10,878                   98%
E22005 - UCRM 2.1d - Maritime HVAC  33,000                   (33,000)                  -                            -                            -                             -                             
E22006 - UCRM 2.6a - 35 Acre VFDs 9,946                     20,905                   30,851                   -                            30,851                  -                             100%
E22007 - UCRM 2.6b - S-7 & S-9 VFDs 26,452                   56,684                   83,136                   -                            83,136                  -                             100%
E22008 - UCRM 3 - Retro-Commissioning 280,000                 74,010                   354,010                 81,856                  272,154                -                             100%
E22009 - UCRM 4.2c - Vending Misers 46,224                   (46,224)                  -                            -                            -                            -                             -                             
E22010 - UCRM 5.1 - Water Conserving Faucets 112,669                 (63,192)                  49,477                   -                            49,477                  -                             100%
E22011 - UCRM 8 - Solar PV 1,175,849              (260,598)                915,251                 480,508                434,743                -                             100%
Utility Assessment Report - 720600 96,546                   -                             96,546                   -                            96,546                  -                             100%
E22000 - Contingency Lone Star Loan -                             249,326                 249,326                 -                            -                            249,326                 -                             

TOTALS 4,722,118              -                             4,722,118              970,600                3,469,070             282,448                 94%

 Energy Conservation Project
 Report as of April 30, 2023

30 of 154



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget  Total Budget   Encumbered 

Funds 
 Total 

Expenditures 
 Remaining 

Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

College Wide 
732614 - NC - N7, N8 & N9 Roof Replacement (2008 Bond) -                             133,554                 133,554                 133,554                 -                             133,554                 -                             100%
732614 - NC - N7, N8 & N9 Roof Replacement 2,587,830              (473,203)                2,114,627              2,114,627              1,194,876              919,751                 -                             100%
733615 - SC - S7 & S9 Roof Replacement 1,737,060              473,203                 2,210,263              2,210,263              344,446                 1,865,817              -                             100%

TOTALS 4,324,890              133,554                 4,458,444              4,458,444              1,539,322              2,919,122              -                             100%

Bond Interest Earnings
 Report as of April 30, 2023

31 of 154



 Project  Base       
Budget 

 Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget  Total Budget   Encumbered 

Funds 
 Total 

Expenditures 
 Remaining 

Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

Central
F23001 CC - Central Misc. -                             10,000                   10,000                   10,000                   600                        9,395                     5                            100%
F23016 CC - C34.116 Furniture -                             6,644                     6,644                     6,644                     670                        5,974                     -                             100%
F23027 CC - C45.1328 CPET Furniture -                             22,288                   22,288                   22,288                   12,941                   -                             9,346                     58%
F23037 CC - C3 Office Relocation -                             73,325                   73,325                   73,325                   27,993                   45,332                   -                             100%
F23040 CC - Lifecycle Furniture -                             123,168                 123,168                 123,168                 101,701                 21,465                   2                            100%
F23054 CC - C11 and C19 Electrical -                             3,378                     3,378                     3,378                     3,378                     -                             -                             100%
F23056 CC - C3 & C11 Access Control -                             14,582                   14,582                   14,582                   13,849                   -                             733                        95%
F23057 CC - CPET Worktables -                             6,642                     6,642                     6,642                     6,642                     -                             -                             100%

Sub-total -                             260,025                 260,025                 260,025                 167,774                 82,165                   10,086                   96%
North

F23002 NC - North Misc. -                             10,000                   10,000                   10,000                   -                             -                             10,000                   -                             
F23018 NC - Lab Conversion ECHS -                             18,956                   18,956                   18,956                   6,487                     12,468                   -                             100%
F23025 NC - N17 EMT Doors -                             18,159                   18,159                   18,159                   -                             18,159                   -                             100%
F23028 NC - Primary Electric Repair Design -                             199,826                 199,826                 199,826                 34,840                   162,816                 2,171                     99%
F23041 NC - Lifecycle Furniture -                             33,853                   33,853                   33,853                   -                             33,853                   -                             100%

Sub-total -                             280,793                 280,793                 280,793                 41,327                   227,295                 12,171                   96%
South

F23003 SC - South Misc. -                             9,107                     9,107                     9,107                     -                             9,107                     -                             100%
F23007 SC - S1.257 Digital Anatomy Lab Ph2 -                             4,332                     4,332                     4,332                     -                             4,332                     -                             100%
F23008 SC - S6.122 Career Svc Office Ph2 -                             6,092                     6,092                     6,092                     -                             6,074                     18                          100%
F23009 SC - S1.253 Computational Research -                             3,502                     3,502                     3,502                     1,901                     1,601                     -                             100%
F23042 SC - Lifecycle Furniture -                             28,173                   28,173                   28,173                   28,173                   -                             -                             100%
F23068 SC - Picnic Tables -                             2,975                     2,975                     2,975                     2,975                     -                             -                             100%

Sub-total -                             54,182                   54,182                   54,182                   33,050                   21,114                   18                          100%
Generation Park 

Sub-total -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
District -                             

F23004 DIST - Campus Misc. -                             5,000                     5,000                     5,000                     -                             2,057                     2,943                     41%
F23010 DIST - CW ADA Compliance -                             50,000                   50,000                   50,000                   11,450                   33,517                   5,033                     90%
F23017 DIST - A1.210/212 Cubicles Ext Ph2 -                             2,652                     2,652                     2,652                     -                             2,652                     -                             100%
F23029 DIST - Wayfinding -                             1,675                     1,675                     1,675                     -                             1,675                     -                             100%
F23030 DIST - CW Ping Pong Tables -                             13,780                   13,780                   13,780                   -                             5,512                     8,268                     40%
F23046 DIST - A1.210c Furniture Replacement -                             4,572                     4,572                     4,572                     -                             4,572                     -                             100%
F23053 Dist -  CW Medical Privacy Rooms -                             15,339                   15,339                   15,339                   14,807                   -                             532                        97%
F23061 DIST - A2.102 & 112 Noise Canceling Devices -                             7,615                     7,615                     7,615                     7,615                     -                             -                             -                             
F23062 DIST - A2.208 Workroom Conversion -                             25,000                   25,000                   25,000                   11,041                   -                             13,959                   

Sub-total -                             125,633                 125,633                 125,633                 44,912                   49,985                   30,735                   76%
Contingency (720700) - Major Repairs 200,000                 (195,060)                4,940                     4,940                     -                             -                             4,940                     -                             

Sub-total 200,000                 (195,060)                4,940                     4,940                     -                             -                             4,940                     -                             
 Projects Closed  
F23011 CC - C34.112 Police Furniture and Move -                             14,522                   14,522                   14,522                   -                             14,522                   -                             100%
F23015 CC - C1.151 Corbin Lighting -                             29,568                   29,568                   29,568                   -                             29,568                   -                             100%
F23024 CC - C26.145 Mirrors -                             7,913                     7,913                     7,913                     -                             7,913                     -                             100%
F23038 CC - C31 Welding Lab Demolition -                             10,108                   10,108                   10,108                   -                             10,108                   -                             100%
F23012 NC - N17 Wallpaper -                             54,365                   54,365                   54,365                   -                             54,365                   -                             100%
F23000 SC - S9 Foundation Repair -                             19,898                   19,898                   19,898                   -                             19,898                   -                             100%
F23013 SC - S1.255 Lab Furniture -                             5,398                     5,398                     5,398                     -                             5,398                     -                             100%
F23045 MT - Lifecycle Furniture -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
F23026 GP - G2 Roller Shades -                                 9,564                     9,564                     9,564                     -                             9,564                     -                             100%
F23044 GP - Lifecycle Furniture -                                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
F23032 DIST - A1.212 Ext Relations Furniture -                             6,817                     6,817                     6,817                     -                             6,817                     -                             100%
F23033 DIST - A2.213c Conference to Office -                             4,546                     4,546                     4,546                     -                             4,546                     -                             100%
F23043 DIST - Lifecycle Furniture -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Sub-total -                             162,699                 162,699                 162,699                 -                             162,699                 -                             -                             
 TOTALS                  200,000                  688,273                  888,273                  888,273                  287,063                  543,259                    57,950 93%

Repair and Renovation
Report as of April 30, 2023

32 of 154



May 23, 2023, Board Building Committee Meeting Minutes – Final after Committee approval at 
next meeting 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

BOARD BUILDING COMMITTEE 
SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

May 23, 2023 
 

Members Present:  Dan Mims and John Moon, Jr. 
  

Members Absent:  Marie Flickinger (ex-officio) and Erica Davis Rouse 
 
Other Trustees Present: None  
 
Others Present: Heidi Cartzendafner, Damon Harris, Brenda Hellyer, Carin 

Hutchins, Bryan Jones, Angela Klaus, Deborah Paulson, Genie 
Scholes, Charles Smith, and Teri Zamora  

 
I. John Moon, on behalf of Dan Mims, called the meeting to order at 4:04 p.m. Mr. Mims 

joined the meeting via teleconference.  
 

II. Roll call of the Committee members was taken by John Moon:  
• Marie Flickinger (Ex-officio member), absent 
• John Moon, Jr., present 
• Erica Davis Rouse, absent 
• Dan Mims, present 

 
III. Approval of Minutes from the August 16, 2022, Building Committee Meeting was 

completed. Motion was made by J. Moon to accept the minutes and seconded by D. 
Mims. (Approval of the minutes was postponed until later in the meeting when Mr. Mims 
was physically present.) 
 

IV. Recommended Projects and Delivery Methods which will provide the best value to the 
College (Discussion led by Bryan Jones) 
• Bond Funds  

o Consideration of Approval to Award Professional Services Pool  
 This item requests approval of a pool of professional services vendors 

consisting of engineers and related technical consultants for various 
unspecified construction, renovation, and infrastructure projects.  

 RFQ No. 23-27 was issued on April 18, 2023, to procure professional services 
in compliance with §2254 of the Texas Government Code. Forty-five (45) 
proposals were received and ranked based on the scoring. Ranking and award 
by discipline were provided to the Building Committee for review. 

 Approval of this request will grant the administration authority to award a 
pool of pre-qualified professional services firms and negotiate contracts for 
each project based on the best match of qualifications, experience, and 
applicable skills as determined by subject matter experts within the College.  

 Separate contracts will be issued with firms on a per project basis. All 
contracts that exceed the minimum threshold for Board approval will be 
brought forth for Board approval. The College does not guarantee any firms 
will be engaged for any projects.  
 D. Mims requested clarification as to what they were being asked to 

33 of 154



May 23, 2023, Board Building Committee Meeting Minutes – Final after Committee approval at 
next meeting 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

vote upon. B. Jones and C. Smith explained to the Building Committee 
members and meeting attendees that the College procured a pool of 
professionals approximately seven (7) years ago, and the most recent 
RFQ was initiated to refresh the pool for professional services and 
allow for new consultants to be added as approved vendors.  

o Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Central Campus Marcom 
Capital Renewal (C-2).  
 This item requests approval for expenditures requiring additional funds for 

construction services from Tellepsen Builders, L.P. for Central Campus 
Marcom Building (C-2) Capital Renewal.  

 In June 2022, the Board approved construction manager-at-risk (CMR) #22-
32 contract with Tellepsen Builders, L.P. to renovate the Central Campus 
Marcom Building. In January 2023, the Board authorized a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) not to exceed $10,600,000. On February 20, 2023, the 
Chancellor’s designee approved the GMP for $10,010,621, which was 
$589,379 below the Board authorized GMP. 

 As the project has developed, it became clear that the College would benefit 
by pulling the future planned re-roofing of the Marcom Building into the 
current project. This would eliminate redundancy of roof perimeter work and 
allow for the elimination of interior roof drains.  

 Approval of this action will increase the GMP of the construction contract and 
allow for a replacement roof to be included in the project scope. 
 T. Zamora clarified that the Board had previously approved funding 

for this project, but the additional request for the new roof exceeded 
architectural threshold for funding. 

 B. Hellyer reminded the Committee members that this topic was 
previously discussed in the last Board Workshop on May 1, 2023. 

 D. Mims and J. Moon discussed the issue with internal drainpipes in 
buildings and agreed with the recommendation to move forward with 
additional funding request for the C-2 Marcom Building roof 
replacement. 

o Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Interior LED Lighting Retrofit 
Project. 
 This item requests the Board to approve the expenditure requiring additional 

funds for the LoanSTAR Interior LED Lighting project.  
 In September of 2021, the Board approved a contract with the Texas 

Comptroller of Public Accounts, State Energy Conservation Office (SECO) 
for a low interest loan facilitating energy efficiency improvements to the 
College’s built environment. The anticipated amount of the loan package was 
$4,722,118, including LED lighting retrofits across the College then valued at 
$811,078. 

 Detailed project plans and specifications were developed by ESA (Energy 
Systems Associates, Inc.) and used as part of the documentation package 
required for public solicitation of construction proposals in accordance with 
the Texas Government Code §2269.151. Competitive sealed proposal #22-28 
for the Interior LED Lighting Retrofit Project was issued on February 1, 2022, 
and in April 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a contract with E3 Entegral 
Solutions. 

34 of 154



May 23, 2023, Board Building Committee Meeting Minutes – Final after Committee approval at 
next meeting 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 During execution of the project, changes in scope based on reduced 
maintenance or changed tenant needs resulted in the addition of 950 lighting 
fixtures to the project. Unit pricing per fixture was included in the original 
project award, and these changes met the requirements of the College’s 
LoanSTAR agreement and were approved by SECO. When the final pay 
application was submitted to the College, it was determined that the change 
order exceeded the Board approved amount for the project. 

 Approval of this request will allow the final change order and pay application 
for the project to be processed, allowing the project to be closed. Work was 
completed in December 2022. 

 This item was presented without further discussion or questions from the 
Building Committee.  
 

• Operating Funds 
o None. 
 

V. Project Updates 
• Bond Funds (Reported by Charles Smith)  

o Safety Metrics 
 Zero safety incidents were reported in the past few months.  
 One property damage incident was recorded when a parking lot light pole at 

Generation Park Campus fell during a severe weather condition. No collateral 
damage or injury was reported. 
 C. Smith explained that the poles initially installed suffered from a 

weak weld and after three years, rusted out. New lamp bases will be 
installed and anchored. The contractor took full responsibility and has 
secured a stronger weld as a temporary fix while parts are on order. 
The contractor will complete the replacement of forty-seven (47) light 
pole bases by August 2023 at no charge to the College.  

o Schedule Updates  
 The College is nearing completion on the larger 2015 Bond projects and has 

phased out the program management services. The College will continue to 
manage the remaining projects in house and will use the remaining Bond 
funds for capital renewal projects and deferred maintenance.  

o Progress Updates  
1. Central Campus – Technical Education Building (C-31) 
 Roof replacement is nearly complete with a few shortfalls noted in 

workmanship that are currently under review for resolution.  
2. Central Campus – Marcom Building (C-2) 
 Except for the recently added roof scope, the demolition of C-2 is 

essentially complete.  
 The build back of plumbing, electrical, and HVAC has begun.  

3. North Campus – Central Plant CIT (N-32)  
 This project is nearing completion. The pipeline extends from the west 

plant to about one hundred (100) feet from point of connection to the east 
plant. The last 100 feet will progress slowly due to existing old telephone 
service, hydronic connectors, sanitary sewers, and natural gas pipeline 
requiring hand excavation and shoring of the trenches due to soft soil.  

35 of 154



May 23, 2023, Board Building Committee Meeting Minutes – Final after Committee approval at 
next meeting 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

4. North Campus– Burleson, Spencer & Brightwell Buildings (N-7, N-8, N-9) 
 Replacement of the roofs is now complete, minus a few punch items that 

will be corrected this week.  
5.   South Campus– Primary Electrical   
 There will be a final shutdown to complete the SC Primary electrical 

upgrade which will take place over Memorial Day weekend. At this time, 
a new service will be connected to the CenterPoint meter on Beamer 
Road. The remaining power poles on El Franco Lee will be removed. 

6.   South Campus – Academic North and South Wing (S-7 and S-9)  
 Roof replacement is complete except for the collector boxes, downspouts, 

and overflow scupper trim. Anticipated completion date is set for two 
weeks. 

7.   Additional projects in development and design are as follows: 
 Central Campus Anderson–Ball Classroom Building (C-16) - Continued 

efforts to get solar installation approved by CenterPoint are progressing 
favorably at this point. 

 Central Campus Automotive and Career Center (C-26) - Modifications to 
support the training of electric vehicle technicians are being studied. 

 Central Campus Walkway to traverse the space formerly occupied by the 
Central Campus gym – Project is in the design phase. 

 North Campus General Services Building (N-21) – Minor modifications to 
make the space suitable for auction storage have begun. 

 North Campus Electrical (N-12) – Solicitation for electrical upgrades is 
scheduled for June 1.   

 North Campus Wheeler Building (N-10) – The design for re-roofing 
efforts has begun. 

 South Campus Parking Lot (SP-9) – The design for replacement paving is 
underway.  

 South Campus Academic North and South Wing (S-7 & S-9) – Installation 
of solar photovoltaics is waiting approval of plans by the City of Houston.  

 Maritime Pool – Working on the completion of drawings for the Maritime 
pool heater and chiller. 

 College Wide Sports Fields Upgrades – Financial planning is in progress. 
 BioPharma Institute - Requirements are under development. 
 Utility Master Plan – Plan is in the design phase. 
 North Campus Business Office Renovation – Project is in planning phase. 
 Central Campus Commercial Driving Project – Project is in planning 

phase. 
 LoanSTAR - package development for next fiscal year 
 B. Hellyer requested an update on the District Building A-1 electrical 

repairs.  
 B. Jones reported that the automatic transfer switch had a catastrophic 

failure requiring complete replacement. The lead time on the new item 
is projected to be twenty-eight (28) weeks. A-1 will not have an 
automatic transfer to the back-up generator during this period, but a 
back-up generator will be obtained in less than a day if required.  

 
o Financial Updates 

36 of 154



May 23, 2023, Board Building Committee Meeting Minutes – Final after Committee approval at 
next meeting 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 All reports were presented without questions or comments. 
 2015 Bond – Major projects are substantially complete. 
 Generation Park - Projects are ending, and the remaining funds will be 

moved to Bond contingency. 
 LoanSTAR – The FY22 LoanSTAR loan was initially extended, and a 

second extension was also requested. The project is anticipated to be 
completed by August 31, 2023. C. Smith noted that planning was in 
progress to prepare to apply for another LoanSTAR loan for fiscal year 
FY24.  

 Bond Interest Earnings – Funds are depleted. 
 

• Operating Funds (Reported by Bryan Jones)  
o Safety Metrics 
 Zero minor incidents were reported.  

o Schedule Updates 
 An overview of the Fiscal Year 2023 minor projects was presented without 

question. 
 This report was presented with no further comments or questions. 

o Progress Updates  
 An overview of the College’s Fiscal Year 2023 maintenance requests was 

presented.  
 This report was presented with no further comments or questions. 

o Financial Updates 
 Repair and Renovation – This report was presented with no comments. 

 
VI. Status of Delegation of Authority 

• Presented with no comments or questions; there are no items pending. 
 

VII. Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 4:32 p.m. 

37 of 154



Action Item “IX” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Statement of Officer and Oath of Office Administered to Recently Elected Trustees 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
No administrative recommendation required. The Oath of Office will be administered to re-
elected Trustee Ms. Erica Davis Rouse for Trustee Position One (1) and elected Trustee Dr. 
Michelle Cantú-Wilson for Trustee Position Two (2).  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with Texas Election Code Section 3.004(b), the Board of Trustees, on January 
30, 2023, authorized the execution of an Order for Election of San Jacinto Community 
College District Trustees for a six-year term for Trustee Position One (1) and Trustee 
Position Two (2). The election was scheduled to be held on May 6, 2023, with candidates 
filing from January 18, 2023, through February 17, 2023. The eligible candidates who filed 
for Position 1 were incumbent Erica Davis Rouse and Brad Hance, and candidates who filed 
for Position 2 were Michelle Cantú-Wilson and Karen Wheeler-Hall.  
 
The election occurred on May 6, 2023, with the unofficial results announced by the College 
on May 10. Official canvass results were received from the Harris County Elections Office, 
with whom the College engaged in a joint election, on May 15, 2023. On May 16, 2023, the 
Board of Trustees in accordance with Section 67.004 of the Texas Election Code, accepted 
the canvass results provided by Harris County.  
 
The trustees-elect will be sworn into their elected position today, June 5, 2023, which is after 
the official canvassing date.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION  
 
None 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Each new trustee will complete the following: 
Attachment 1 – Statement of Officer, Erica Davis Rouse 
Attachment 2 – Statement of Officer, Michelle Cantú-Wilson 
Attachment 3 – Oath of Office, Erica Davis Rouse  
Attachment 4 – Oath of Office, Michelle Cantú-Wilson 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer  281-998-6100  brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu  

38 of 154

mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu


STATEMENT OF OFFICER 

Form #2201 Rev. 0 /20
Submit to:
SECRETARY OF STATE
Government Filings
Section P O Box 12887 
Austin, TX 78711-2887
512-463-6334
512-463-5569 - Fax
Filing Fee: None

Statement 
I, , do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I have not 
directly or indirectly paid, offered, promised to pay, contributed, or promised to contribute any money or 
thing of value, or promised any public office or employment for the giving or withholding of a vote at the 
election at which I was elected or as a reward to secure my appointment or confirmation, whichever the case 
may be, so help me God. 

Title of Position to Which Elected/Appointed: 

Execution 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing statement and that the facts stated therein 
are true. 

Date: 
Signature of Officer 

Form 2201 2

Attachment 1 

Erica Davis Rouse

San Jacinto Community College Board of Trustees Position 1

June 5, 2023

39 of 154



STATEMENT OF OFFICER 

Form #2201 Rev. 0 /20
Submit to:
SECRETARY OF STATE
Government Filings
Section P O Box 12887 
Austin, TX 78711-2887
512-463-6334
512-463-5569 - Fax
Filing Fee: None

Statement 
I, , do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I have not 
directly or indirectly paid, offered, promised to pay, contributed, or promised to contribute any money or 
thing of value, or promised any public office or employment for the giving or withholding of a vote at the 
election at which I was elected or as a reward to secure my appointment or confirmation, whichever the case 
may be, so help me God. 

Title of Position to Which Elected/Appointed: 

Execution 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing statement and that the facts stated therein 
are true. 

Date: 
Signature of Officer 

Form 2201 2

Attachment 2

Michelle Cantú-Wilson

San Jacinto Community College Board of Trustees Position 2

June 5, 2023

40 of 154



Form 2204 3

This space reserved for office use 

OATH OF OFFICE 

Form #2204  Rev 9/2017 
Submit to: 
SECRETARY OF STATE 
Government Filings Section 
P O Box 12887 
Austin, TX 78711-2887 
512-463-6334
FAX 512-463-5569
Filing Fee: None 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, 
I, , do solemnly swear (or affirm), that I will faithfully 
execute the duties of the office of of
the State of Texas, and will to the best of my ability preserve, protect, and defend the Constitution and laws
of the United States and of this State, so help me God. 

Signature of Officer 

Certification of Person Authorized to Administer Oath 

State of 

County of

Sworn to and subscribed before me on this _______________ day of _____________________, 20____. 

(Affix Notary Seal,

only if oath 

administered by a

notary.)

Signature of Notary Public or 
Signature of Other Person Authorized to Administer An 
Oath 

Printed or Typed Name 

Attachment 3

Erica Davis Rouse
San Jacinto Community College Board of Trustees Position 1

41 of 154



Form 2204 3

This space reserved for office use 

OATH OF OFFICE 

Form #2204  Rev 9/2017 
Submit to: 
SECRETARY OF STATE 
Government Filings Section 
P O Box 12887 
Austin, TX 78711-2887 
512-463-6334
FAX 512-463-5569
Filing Fee: None 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, 
I, , do solemnly swear (or affirm), that I will faithfully 
execute the duties of the office of of
the State of Texas, and will to the best of my ability preserve, protect, and defend the Constitution and laws
of the United States and of this State, so help me God. 

Signature of Officer 

Certification of Person Authorized to Administer Oath 

State of 

County of

Sworn to and subscribed before me on this _______________ day of _____________________, 20____. 

(Affix Notary Seal,

only if oath 

administered by a

notary.)

Signature of Notary Public or 
Signature of Other Person Authorized to Administer An 
Oath 

Printed or Typed Name 

Attachment 4

Michelle Cantú-Wilson
San Jacinto Community College Board of Trustees Position 2

42 of 154



Action Item “X” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of  
Election of Officers for the Board of Trustees 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
No administrative recommendation required. The Board of Trustees will nominate and 
approve the election of officers for the Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with Texas Education Code Section 130.082(d), Officers of the Board shall be 
elected at the first regular meeting of the Board of Trustees following the regular election of 
Board members. 
 
The Board shall be authorized to elect the following officers: 
 

• Chair 
• Vice Chair 
• Secretary 
• Assistant Secretary 

 
Following the May 1, 2021, unopposed Board Election, the Board of Trustees elected the 
current officers of the Board at the regular Board Meeting held on June 7, 2021. The current 
officers are Marie Flickinger, Chair; John Moon, Jr., Vice Chair; Keith Sinor, Secretary; and 
Erica Davis Rouse, Assistant Secretary.  
 
A Board election for Trustee Positions 1 and 2 was held on May 6, 2023. The votes were 
canvassed on May 16, 2023, and Mrs. Erica Davis Rouse and Dr. Michelle Cantú-Wilson 
were elected to Trustee Positions 1 and 2, respectively. The newly elected trustees will be 
sworn in on June 5, 2023, and the officers of the Board of Trustees should be elected 
thereafter.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION  
 
None 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
According to the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees, Officers are elected for two-year terms 
and are selected following swearing in of the Board members.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Slate of Officers 
The Trustees will propose a slate of Officers on June 5, 2023. 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer  281-998-6100  brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu  

43 of 154

mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu


Action Item “X” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of  
Election of Officers for the Board of Trustees 

 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 
 

1. Chair       ______________________________ 
 
 

2. Vice Chair       _____________________________ 
 
 

3. Secretary ______________________________ 
 
 

4. Assistant Secretary ______________________ 

44 of 154



Action Item “XI” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of a Resolution Bestowing the Title of 
 Trustee Emeritus on Dr. Ruede M. Wheeler 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The Chancellor, on behalf of the Board of Trustees, recommends the adoption of the 
Resolution to award the title of Trustee Emeritus to Dr. Ruede M. Wheeler.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Board recommends adopting a resolution to award the title of Trustee Emeritus to Dr. 
Ruede M. Wheeler, who has served as trustee of San Jacinto College District since 1986.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Trustee Emeritus is an honorary title and does not confer any employment status, rights, or 
duties nor shall it carry with it any material benefit other than that of the honor associated 
with its granting.  
 
This action awards commendation, special tribute, due honor, and recognition to Dr. Wheeler 
for his distinguished service to San Jacinto College, its students, and community.      
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
None 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Resolution 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer 281-998-6100  brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu 

45 of 154

mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SAN JACINTO 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT TO GIVE COMMENDATION, SPECIAL 
TRIBUTE, DUE HONOR AND RECOGNITION AND TO BESTOW THE TITLE OF 
TRUSTEE EMERITUS ON DR. RUEDE M. WHEELER.  

 
WHEREAS, Dr. Ruede M. Wheeler has been a longtime supporter of San Jacinto College and 

served as a dedicated and valued member of the San Jacinto College Board of Trustees from his 

appointment on January 6, 1986, through  retirement on June 5, 2023; and   

 

WHEREAS, in 1989, San Jacinto College honored Dr. Wheeler by celebrating the opening of the 

Dr. Ruede M. Wheeler Occupational/Technical building on the San Jacinto College North Campus, 

and in 2020 renamed that facility to the Dr. Ruede M. Wheeler Building after it was renovated to 

serve the next generation of San Jacinto College students; and  

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler served in several officer roles with the San Jacinto College Board of 

Trustees and its committees, including serving as Chair of the Board of Trustees and Chair of both 

the Finance and Building Committees; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler was appointed by the San Jacinto College Board of Trustees as a member 

of the Chancellor Search Committees in 1995-1996 and again in 2003, and actively participated in 

the Chancellor succession and transition plan developed in 2007; and  

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler has been a longtime supporter and donor of the San Jacinto College 

Foundation since its creation in 1996; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler was instrumental in the Board of Trustees’ committees that worked on 

the 1999, 2008, and 2015 bond referendums which voters approved by wide margins and enabled 

the College to continue to grow and serve the increasing number of students who enroll each year; 

and which created state-of-the-art academic, workforce training, and student support facilities on all 

of the College’s campuses, including providing resources to expand from three to five campuses; 

and 

46 of 154



Attachment 1 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler has been an advocate for the access, success, and completion of all 

students enrolled at San Jacinto College, and through his leadership, the College aggressively 

participated in student success initiatives such as Achieving the Dream and American Association 

of Community Colleges Pathways Project which transformed the College’s focus and investment in 

student success including the strategic allocation of tuition revenue and other resources to enhance 

such work; and  

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler advocated for San Jacinto College to continue to maintain its 

affordability to students including outsourcing the College’s bookstore operations to Barnes & 

Noble College Booksellers in 2007 and supporting the College’s faculty as they have advanced 

innovations such as open educational resources to reduce costs and provide expanded textbook and 

classroom resources to students; and  

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler, along with the Board of Trustees and College leadership, was 

instrumental in initiating and implementing the performance management program that is in place 

for San Jacinto College employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dr, Wheeler is a graduate from Lamar High School in Houston, earned his Bachelor 

of Science degree at Texas A&M University and his Doctor Degree in Dental Surgery at the 

University of Texas Dental Branch in Houston; and  

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler served in the United States Air Force, obtaining the rank of captain; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dr, Wheeler married Charlcya Mack on November 19, 1960, and moved to La Porte 

in 1963 where together they raised two children, and along with the entire family, was active in 

business, school, and community events and activities in the La Porte area; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler is a successful and highly respected businessman and civic leader in the 

La Porte and Bay Area, where he practiced dentistry for more than 40 years; and 

 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler continues to own and operate Wheelstone Auto Sales after retiring from 

dentistry while serving in key positions for numerous community organizations; and 

 

47 of 154



Attachment 1 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wheeler served nine years on the La Porte Independent School District Board of 

Trustees including two years as chair of the Board; served 59 years as a member of the La Porte 

Rotary Club, including as past president and being considered the Heart and Soul of the La Porte 

Rotary Reverse Draw that raised money for student scholarships; and served and supported various 

committees and fundraising initiatives for the LaPorte Chamber of Commerce, La Porte Education 

Foundation, City of La Porte, American Dental Association, Texas Dental Association, Houston 

District Dental Society, and many other organizations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the San Jacinto College Board of Trustees expresses its sincere appreciation to Dr. 

Ruede M. Wheeler for his many years of dedicated and valuable service to San Jacinto College, its 

students, faculty and staff, and the communities in the region; now, therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SAN JACINTO COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES that 

Commendation, Special Tribute, Due Honor and Recognition, is hereby given to Dr. Ruede M. 

Wheeler for his 37 years of service to postsecondary education and is hereby designated as  

Trustee Emeritus of San Jacinto Community College District, Harris County, Texas. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of San Jacinto 

Community College District to be affixed hereto, this 5th day of June 2023. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on June 5, 2023.  

 
ATTEST:       SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY 

COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 
 
                                                                  By: ____________________________ 
Assistant Secretary, Board of Trustees  Chairperson, Board of Trustees 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________________    
Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D., Chancellor 
San Jacinto Community College District 

48 of 154



Action Item “XII” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2022-2023 Budget 
 for Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants 

 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve an amendment to the 2022-
2023 budget for restricted revenue and expenses related to grants. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Federal, state, and local grants may require amendments for receipt of newly awarded grants or 
changes to existing grants. These amendments should be processed in a timely manner to 
provide access to funding to meet the objectives set forth within the grant requirements. This 
budget amendment request includes additions to restricted revenues and restricted expenses as a 
result of new awards and changes to existing grants received during the month of May 2023. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of the budget amendment will allow the College’s staff to implement the programs in 
accordance with the requirements of funded award amounts. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
Restricted revenues and restricted expenses will each be increased by $323,834 so the net 
impact on the College budget is zero.   
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The Office of Grants Management provides continuous monitoring of grant operations, which 
are included in the annual financial report to the Board of Trustees. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1- Budget Amendments- 06-05-23 
Attachment 2- Grant Detail- 06-05-23 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Teri Zamora   281-998-6306  teri.zamora@sjcd.edu  
Tomoko Olson  281-998-6146    tomoko.olson@sjcd.edu  

49 of 154

mailto:teri.zamora@sjcd.edu
mailto:tomoko.olson@sjcd.edu


Amount
Debit

Fund Org. Account Prog. (Credit)

U.S. Department of Education/Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board - Carl Perkins Career and Technical 
Education - Basic Grant 2022 (Additional Funds)

Federal Grant Revenue 528443 56700 554100 110000 (60,404)           
Federal Grant Revenue 528444 56700 554100 110000 (118,050)         
Federal Grant Revenue 528445 56700 554100 110000 (87,833)           
Federal Grant Revenue 528446 56700 554100 110000 (57,361)           
Non-Instructional Labor 528443 56700 610000 460121 8,779               
Fringe Benefits 528443 56700 650000 460121 2,521               
Supplies 528444 56700 710000 460115 27,273             
Supplies 528445 56700 710000 460115 37,181             
Supplies 528446 56700 710000 460115 51,176             
Travel 528443 56700 721000 160125 1,680               
Travel 528444 56700 721000 160112 4,191               
Travel 528445 56700 721000 160112 7,760               
Travel 528446 56700 721000 160112 (5,749)             
Contractual Services 528443 56700 731000 160125 30,000             
Contractual Services 528444 56700 731000 160125 11,825             
Contractual Svcs - Indirect costs 528443 56700 731500 620909 2,424               
Contractual Svcs - Indirect costs 528444 56700 731500 620909 5,520               
Contractual Svcs - Indirect costs 528445 56700 731500 620909 4,533               
Contractual Svcs - Indirect costs 528446 56700 731500 620909 2,935               
Equipment 528446 56700 741000 160118 8,999               
Equipment 528445 56700 741000 160118 38,359             
Equipment 528444 56700 741000 465851 69,241.00        
Student Aid - Stipends 528443 56700 751140 520235 15,000             

-$                    

Robert Wood Johnson Foundation/The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston -
Summer Health Professions Education Program (SHPEP) FY23 (Additional Funds)

Local Grant Revenue 577014 56700 554300 110000 (186)                
Contractual Svcs - Indirect costs 577014 56700 731500 620909 186                  

-                      

-$                    

Net Increase (Decrease)

Note: Credits to revenues are increases and credits to expenses are decreases.
Conversely, debits to revenue are decreases and debits to expenses are increases.

Grant Funding Summary by Agency:
U.S. Department of Education 323,648$         
Robert Wood Johnson Foundation 186                  

323,834$         

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
 Federal, State, and Local Grant Amendments

June 5, 2023

Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-06-05-23 50 of 154



  Attachment 2- Grant Detail-06-05-23 
 
 

June 05, 2023, Board Book – Grant Amendments Detail List 
 
 
U.S. Department of Education/Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board - Carl Perkins 
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grant 2022 (Additional Funds) 
The Carl Perkins Career and Technical Education annual Basic Grant represents an important 
option to expand opportunities for every student to explore, choose, and follow career and 
technical education (CTE) programs of study and career pathways to earn credentials of value.  
 
The most frequent use of funds include occupationally relevant equipment, materials for learning 
labs, curriculum development or modification, staff development, career counseling and 
guidance activities, efforts for academic-technical integration, supplemental services for special 
populations, childcare assistance, and outreach and retention programs. 
 
Robert Wood Johnson Foundation/The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston – 
Summer Health Professions Education Program (SHPEP) FY23 (Additional Funds) 
The SHPEP project is a free six-week academic enrichment summer program to help qualified 
undergraduate students from minority and disadvantaged backgrounds compete successfully for 
medical and dental school admission. The College collaborates with The University of Texas 
Health Science Center at Houston on this project and provides basic science instruction and 
testing including components of Physics, Organic Chemistry, and Statistics. 
 

51 of 154



Action Item “XIII” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and  
Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount – Second Reading 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve revisions to the College’s 
Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of this policy and procedure is to define the Tuition Reimbursement and 
Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount process at the College. 
 
The Board of Trustees previously approved the tuition discount for spouse/dependents of 
full-time College employees on March 6, 2023. The proposed policy and procedure 
incorporate this approved discount. Additionally, the revised procedure defines the 
spouse/dependent tuition discount process. Under the College’s current policy adoption 
process, this policy became effective as of April 10, 2023, under the Chancellor’s authority 
granted by the Board under Policy II.2000.A, Policy and Procedure Development, Review, 
Revision, and Rescission, to address temporary situations. The procedure is effective as of 
April 10, 2023, which will allow for the tuition discount to be in effect in time for the May 
mini semester.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION  
 
The updated policy and procedures were sent to the College community on April 11, 2023, 
through April 24, 2023. Three comments were received that resulted in changes to the 
proposed procedure (see attachment 3 – yellow highlights in tracked changes). Procedures 
are provided for informational purposes and are not voted on by the Board of Trustees.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION  
 
No budgetary impact. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The Board will be notified of any changes that require its action.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Summary of Changes  
Attachment 2 – Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition    

Discount – Tracked Changes  
Attachment 3 – Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition    

Discount – Clean  
 
 

52 of 154

https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sanjac.edu%2Fpolicy-ii2000a-policy-and-procedure-development-review-revision-and-rescission&data=04%7C01%7CSandra.Ramirez%40sjcd.edu%7C3ae8ee384dd34e19cedb08d9e506a765%7C514efd408efe4f15819f34e56acf1562%7C0%7C0%7C637792639583504657%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=37JVyViSuhcQ0Gl0oGdoJfEYVr17OFj3dZm6HYCfzuo%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sanjac.edu%2Fpolicy-ii2000a-policy-and-procedure-development-review-revision-and-rescission&data=04%7C01%7CSandra.Ramirez%40sjcd.edu%7C3ae8ee384dd34e19cedb08d9e506a765%7C514efd408efe4f15819f34e56acf1562%7C0%7C0%7C637792639583504657%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=37JVyViSuhcQ0Gl0oGdoJfEYVr17OFj3dZm6HYCfzuo%3D&reserved=0


Action Item “XIII” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and  
Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount – Second Reading 

Informational items only: 
 
 
 
Attachment 4 – Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 

Tuition Discount – Tracked Changes 
Attachment 5 – Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 

Tuition Discount – Clean  
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Sandra Ramirez 281-991-2648  Sandra.ramirez@sjcd.edu 
Vickie Del Bello 281-998-6357  Vickie.delbello@sjcd.edu 

53 of 154



Attachment 1 

1 
 

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes  

New Policy Number: N/A  
Proposed Policy Name: Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 
Current Policy Number/Name:  Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement 
 
New Procedure Number: N/A  
Proposed Procedure Name(s): Procedure IV.4000,P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 
Tuition Discount 
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement 
 
Action Recommended for Policy: Revised  
Action Recommended for Procedures: Revised  
 
Web Links:  
https://www.sanjac.edu/policy-iv-e-policies-benefits  
https://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-iv4000pa-tuition-reimbursement  
 
Primary Owner: Vice Chancellor, Human Resources, Organizational and Talent Effectiveness 
 
Secondary Owner: Vice President, Human Resources 
 

 

Summary of Changes: 

• Changed the title of the Policy and Procedure to Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 
Tuition Discount 

• Added a section on Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 
• Defined the eligibility requirements 
• If eligible, will receive a tuition percentage discount of approximately $30.00 per credit 

hour 
• Identified the process steps 

 

54 of 154

https://www.sanjac.edu/policy-iv-e-policies-benefits
https://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-iv4000pa-tuition-reimbursement


Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

1 
 

Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to define the Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 
Tuition Discount process at the College. 

Policy 
Full-time employees may request reimbursement for classes taken at San Jacinto College. 
Tuition, books, and fees may be reimbursed up to $1,800 per fiscal year per employee. 
Reimbursement is subject to the availability of funds. The College will also offer a tuition 
percentage discount for an eligible spouse and dependents.   

 
The Authority, Applicability, Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy 
II.2000.A, Policy and Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission.  

Associated Procedures 
Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

 

Date of Board 
Approval 

This policy became effective as of April 10, 2023, under the Chancellor’s authority 
granted by the Board under Policy II.2000.A, Policy and Procedure Development, 
Review, Revision, and Rescission. Permanent affirmation of the change will follow 
the standard policy review process at the next regularly scheduled meetings of the 
Board with first reading anticipated on May 1, 2023, and approval on June 5, 2023. 

Effective Date This policy became effective as of April 10, 2023, under the Chancellor’s authority 
granted by the Board under Policy II.2000.A, Policy and Procedure Development, 
Review, Revision, and Rescission. Permanent affirmation of the change will follow 
the standard policy review process at the next regularly scheduled meetings of the 
Board with first reading anticipated on May 1, 2023, and approval on June 5, 2023. 

Primary 
Owner 

Vice Chancellor, Human Resources, Organizational and Talent Effectiveness 

Secondary 
Owner 

Vice President, Human Resources 

 

 

55 of 154



Attachment 3 - Clean 

1 
 

Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to define the Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 
Tuition Discount process at the College. 

Policy 
Full-time employees may request reimbursement for classes taken at San Jacinto College. 
Tuition, books, and fees may be reimbursed up to $1,800 per fiscal year per employee. 
Reimbursement is subject to the availability of funds. The College will also offer a tuition 
percentage discount for an eligible spouse and dependents.  

 
The Authority, Applicability, Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy 
II.2000.A, Policy and Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission.  

Associated Procedures 
Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

 

Date of Board 
Approval 

This policy became effective as of April 10, 2023, under the Chancellor’s authority 
granted by the Board under Policy II.2000.A, Policy and Procedure Development, 
Review, Revision, and Rescission. Permanent affirmation of the change will follow 
the standard policy review process at the next regularly scheduled meetings of the 
Board with first reading anticipated on May 1, 2023, and approval on June 5, 2023. 

Effective Date This policy became effective as of April 10, 2023, under the Chancellor’s authority 
granted by the Board under Policy II.2000.A, Policy and Procedure Development, 
Review, Revision, and Rescission. Permanent affirmation of the change will follow 
the standard policy review process at the next regularly scheduled meetings of the 
Board with first reading anticipated on May 1, 2023, and approval on June 5, 2023. 

Primary 
Owner 

Vice Chancellor, Human Resources, Organizational and Talent Effectiveness 

Secondary 
Owner 

Vice President, Human Resources 

 

 

56 of 154



 Attachment 4 – Tracked Changes 

1 
 

Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

Associated Policy 
Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

Purpose 
The College will reimburse active, full-time, employees who have completed six (6) months of 
continuous service at the time of enrollment for classes taken at San Jacinto College. Subject to 
the availability of funds, the College will reimburse employees for tuition, books, and related 
charges up to $1,800 each fiscal year. The College will also offer discounted tuition to an 
employee’s eligible spouse and dependents. 

Procedure   
 
Employee Tuition Reimbursement 

• Employees may receive up to $600 for each of three reimbursement periods, not to 
exceed $1,800 each fiscal year. See reimbursement period dates below. The College 
Reimbursement will be allocated and distributed reimbursement on a first come, first 
served basis. 
 

• The College will budget Reimbursement reimbursement funds will be budgeted each 
fiscal year or as authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

 
• For credit courses, the College will reimbursement will be paid employees after classes 

are completed and a grade of “C” or better has been awarded. For continuing education 
(CE) courses, the College will reimbursement will be made employees after classes are 
completed and the requirements of the class have been mastered or the CE credits have 
been awarded. 

 
• The College will not reimburse employees Reimbursement will not be paid for 

auditing courses. 
 
• The College covers the cost of books, supplies, and related charges are covered as long 

asif an itemized receipt for payment is provided.  
 
• It is at the discretion of leadership whether an employee may be released during 

normal standard working hours to attend a class. The adjusted schedule must account 
for the total hours required for the employee’s position. 

 
• Out-of-district tuition will be waived; however, the Registrar's office must be notified 

of residency status prior to payment of tuition and any related charges. 
 
• Funds are not available to waive tuition charges for family members. 

57 of 154



 Attachment 4 – Tracked Changes 

2 
 

 
• Employee tuition cannot be paid or reimbursed from the College’s departmental 

budgets. 
 

• Free courses do not fall within this procedure. 
 
• Courses paid for by grants or scholarships are not eligible for reimbursement under this 

procedure. 
 
• Reimbursements must occur within the fiscal year in which classes are taken. 

To receive tuition reimbursement, employees must follow the steps belowfollowing steps: 

1. As soon as the employee registers for the course(s), they must complete and submit an 
Employee Tuition Reimbursement Form to Human Resources, Benefits. All forms will 
be logged by date of receipt to assess the potential reimbursements requested. As the 
submitted forms near the allotted dollar limit the College allotted for employee tuition 
reimbursement, Human Resources, Benefits will notify the employee that reimbursement 
may not occur due to limited funds. 

2. Employees must submit grades or CE requirements to Human Resources, Benefits by the 
deadlines listed below: 

Reimbursement Period  Deadline to Submit Grades 

Period 1 January 15 

Period 2 May 17 

Period 3 August 15 

  

Grades submitted after the deadline date may not be processed until the next reimbursement 
period and only if funds are available. The date of the original submission (step 1) and the date 
of grade submission (step 2) will be considered in determining the order of reimbursement until 
all available funds are expended. Tuition reimbursement may not cross fiscal years. 

Spouse and Dependent Tuition Discount 

Spouse and dependents of eligible, full-time employees qualify for a tuition percentage discount 
of approximately $30.00 per semester credit hour, to be deducted from in-district, out-of-district, 
or out-of-state rates, as applicable. Out-of-district/state tuition is not waived for the employee’s 
spouse and dependents.  

The discount does not apply to dual credit enrollment or non-credit courses.. 

For a spouse or dependent to qualify for the discount, be eligible, the employee must have 
completed six months of employment. for their dependent to qualify for the discount.  

58 of 154



 Attachment 4 – Tracked Changes 

3 
 

For eligibility purposes, the College will use the same spouse and dependent eligibility criteria as 
defined by the ERS Dependent Eligibility Chart, located at https://ers.texas.gov/Benefits-at-a-
Glance/Dependent-eligibility-chart.pdf. A spouse or dependent does not need to be covered 
under the employee’s health care plan to be eligible for the tuition discount.  

If an employee or dependent is later determined to be ineligible, the discounted fees must be 
repaid to the College. 

Process Steps 

1. To request the spouse/dependent tuition discount, the employee must complete the 
Spouse and Dependent Tuition Discount Request form each semester. The form is 
located at internal.sanjac.edu/College Resources/Forms-Documents/HR and Payroll 
Forms. The completed form will be automatically routed to the employee’s leader for 
approval. 

2. Once the form is received by the leader, the leader should confirm that the employee has 
worked at the College for a minimum of six months and approve the form confirming 
eligibility. 

3. The approved form is automatically routed to the selected Campus Business Office that 
will ensure the necessary steps are taken to apply the discount. 

 

 

 

 

Date of SLT 
Approval 

April 9, 2023 

Effective Date April 10, 2023 

Associated Policy Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 
Tuition Discount 

Primary Owner of 
Policy Associated 
with the Procedure 

Vice Chancellor, Human Resources, Organizational and Talent 
Effectiveness 

Secondary Owner of 
Policy Associated 
with the Procedure 

Vice President, Human Resources 

59 of 154



 Attachment 5 - Clean 

1 
 

Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

Associated Policy 
Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount 

Purpose 
The College will reimburse active, full-time, employees who have completed six (6) months of 
continuous service at the time of enrollment for classes taken at San Jacinto College. Subject to 
the availability of funds, the College will reimburse employees for tuition, books, and related 
charges up to $1,800 each fiscal year. The College will also offer discounted tuition to an 
employee’s eligible spouse and dependents. 

Procedure   
 
Employee Tuition Reimbursement 

• Employees may receive up to $600 for each of three reimbursement periods, not to 
exceed $1,800 each fiscal year. See reimbursement period dates below. The College 
will allocate and distribute reimbursement on a first come, first served basis. 
 

• The College will budget reimbursement funds each fiscal year or as authorized by the 
Board of Trustees. 

 
• For credit courses, the College will reimburse employees after classes are completed 

and a grade of C or better has been awarded. For continuing education (CE) courses, 
the College will reimburse employees after classes are completed and the requirements 
of the class have been mastered or the CE credits have been awarded. 

 
• The College will not reimburse employees for auditing courses. 
 
• The College covers the cost of books, supplies, and related charges if an itemized 

receipt for payment is provided.  
 
• It is at the discretion of leadership whether an employee may be released during 

standard working hours to attend a class. The adjusted schedule must account for the 
total hours required for the employee’s position. 

 
• Out-of-district tuition will be waived; however, the Registrar's office must be notified 

of residency status prior to payment of tuition and any related charges. 
 
• Funds are not available to waive tuition charges for family members. 
 

60 of 154



 Attachment 5 - Clean 

2 
 

• Employee tuition cannot be paid or reimbursed from the College’s departmental 
budgets. 
 

• Free courses do not fall within this procedure. 
 
• Courses paid for by grants or scholarships are not eligible for reimbursement under this 

procedure. 
 
• Reimbursements must occur within the fiscal year in which classes are taken. 

To receive tuition reimbursement, employees must follow the steps below: 

1. As soon as the employee registers for the course(s), they must complete and submit an 
Employee Tuition Reimbursement Form to Human Resources, Benefits. All forms will 
be logged by date of receipt to assess the potential reimbursements requested. As the 
submitted forms near the dollar limit the College allotted for employee tuition 
reimbursement, Human Resources, Benefits will notify the employee that reimbursement 
may not occur due to limited funds. 

2. Employees must submit grades or CE requirements to Human Resources, Benefits by the 
deadlines listed below: 

Reimbursement Period  Deadline to Submit Grades 

Period 1 January 15 

Period 2 May 17 

Period 3 August 15 

  

Grades submitted after the deadline date may not be processed until the next reimbursement 
period and only if funds are available. The date of the original submission (step 1) and the date 
of grade submission (step 2) will be considered in determining the order of reimbursement until 
all available funds are expended. Tuition reimbursement may not cross fiscal years. 

Spouse and Dependent Tuition Discount 

Spouse and dependents of eligible, full-time employees qualify for a tuition percentage discount 
of approximately $30.00 per semester credit hour, to be deducted from in-district, out-of-district, 
or out-of-state rates, as applicable. Out-of-district/state tuition is not waived for the employee’s 
spouse and dependents.  

The discount does not apply to dual credit enrollment or non-credit courses. 

For a spouse or dependent to qualify for the discount, the employee must have completed six 
months of employment.  

61 of 154



 Attachment 5 - Clean 

3 
 

For eligibility purposes, the College will use the same spouse and dependent eligibility criteria as 
defined by the ERS Dependent Eligibility Chart, located at https://ers.texas.gov/Benefits-at-a-
Glance/Dependent-eligibility-chart.pdf. A spouse or dependent does not need to be covered 
under the employee’s health care plan to be eligible for the tuition discount.  

If an employee or dependent is later determined to be ineligible, the discounted fees must be 
repaid to the College. 

Process Steps 

1. To request the spouse/dependent tuition discount, the employee must complete the 
Spouse and Dependent Tuition Discount Request form each semester. The form is 
located at internal.sanjac.edu/College Resources/Forms-Documents/HR and Payroll 
Forms. The completed form will be automatically routed to the employee’s leader for 
approval. 

2. Once the form is received by the leader, the leader should confirm that the employee has 
worked at the College for a minimum of six months and approve the form confirming 
eligibility. 

3. The approved form is automatically routed to the selected Campus Business Office that 
will ensure the necessary steps are taken to apply the discount. 

 

 

 

 

Date of SLT 
Approval 

April 9, 2023 

Effective Date April 10, 2023 

Associated Policy Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent 
Tuition Discount 

Primary Owner of 
Policy Associated 
with the Procedure 

Vice Chancellor, Human Resources, Organizational and Talent 
Effectiveness 

Secondary Owner of 
Policy Associated 
with the Procedure 

Vice President, Human Resources 

62 of 154



Action Item “XIV” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of a Resolution to Approve Increase in Ad Valorem Tax Homestead Exemption 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a resolution establishing the 
exemption on residential homesteads at 5 percent for tax year 2023 and all future years unless 
revised. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Residential homestead exemptions provide tax relief to the qualifying taxpayer. An exemption 
excludes part of the property's value from property taxes and lowers the taxable value and 
subsequent tax levies. 
 
Texas Tax Code Section 11.13 (n) sets the minimum homestead exemption at 1 percent of each 
qualifying home’s appraised value, or $5,000, whichever is higher. That same section sets 20 
percent as the maximum homestead exemption allowable. 
 
The current homestead exemption granted by the College is 1 percent, which provides $458 
million in homestead exemptions, resulting in annual tax savings to homeowners of 
approximately $713,000. 
 
The recommendation at this time is to increase the homestead exemption beginning tax year 
2023 to 5 percent of each qualifying home’s appraised value or $5,000, whichever is higher. 
  
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The proposed homestead exemption rate of 5 percent will provide approximately $935 million in 
homestead exemptions, resulting in total annual tax savings to homeowners estimated at 
$1,454,000.  
 
The average home within the College’s taxing district has a current taxable value of $157,553. 
The increase in the homestead exemption rate will reduce the current ad valorem taxes on the 
average home from $245.16 to $240.29 annually. 
  
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The total tax savings of $1,454,000 is $741,000 more than the savings experienced currently. 
The proposed increase in exemptions decreases the College’s anticipated Maintenance and 
Operating tax revenue by $502,000 and the Debt tax revenue by $239,000, based upon current 
tax rates for tax year 2022. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The expectation is to review the residential homestead exemption annually and evaluate the 
opportunity to increase the exemption percentage. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

63 of 154



Action Item “XIV” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of a Resolution to Approve Increase in Ad Valorem Tax Homestead Exemption 
 
 
Attachment 1 – Resolution 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer  281-998-6100    brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu 
Teri Zamora   281-998-6306   teri.zamora@sjcd.edu 
Carin Hutchins  281-998-6109     carin.hutchins@sjcd.edu 

64 of 154



RESOLUTION AND ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

 ESTABLISHING HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION ON

RESIDENTIAL HOMESTEADS FOR TAX YEAR 2023, 
AND ALL FUTURE YEARS UNLESS REVISED 

WHEREAS, the College's Board of Trustees wishes to establish, and is authorized by the 
Texas Property Tax Code to establish certain exemptions to the taxable values of 
certain properties in the College's tax jurisdiction for the purpose of assessing and 
collecting taxes for the tax year 2023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT THAT: 

With respect to all real property owned by an individual and occupied by that individual as 
a residence homestead (as defined in Section l l.13G)(l) of the Texas Property Tax Code), 
that, in addition to any other exemptions provided by Section 11.13 of the Texas Property 
Tax Code, the first $5,000 or 5% of appraised value, whichever is greater, with respect to 
said property be exempt from ad valorem taxation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED this Resolution and Ordinance shall have an initial term 
of one (1) year from the approved date. Upon expiration of the initial term, this Resolution 
and Ordinance shall automatically renew for successive one (1) year terms unless the 
above-mentioned exemptions are changed. 

     Passed the 5th day of June, 2023.  This Resolution may be signed electronically and in 
counterparts.

 Chair, Board of Trustees
San Jacinto Community College District

Attest: 

Secretary, Board of Trustees
San Jacinto Community College District

Attachment 1

65 of 154



Action Item “XV”  
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval Memorandum of Understanding with Clear Creek ISD  
to Continue the Clear Horizons Early College High School 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a Memorandum of 
Understanding between San Jacinto Community College District (SJCCD) and Clear Creek 
Independent School District (CCISD) for the continuation of the Clear Horizons Early 
College High School (CHECHS). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In the 2006-2007 school year, CCISD and SJCCD implemented a pilot high school for 
seniors, called Project ExCEL. This pilot became Clear Horizons ECHS in 2007. Since 2007, 
the College has partnered with CCISD to continue to offer an Early College High School 
opportunity to their students on the South Campus.  
 
All provisions in a memorandum of understanding (MOU) will follow the rules for Dual 
Credit and Early College High School Partnerships between Secondary Schools and Texas 
Public Colleges as outlined in the Texas Administrative Code, Title 19, Part 1, Chapter 4, 
Subchapter D. The MOU will further the College’s dual credit program goals, which align 
with the goals of the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, which will be included or 
referenced in the MOU. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION  
 
Approval of this action will allow the College and CCISD to continue the operation of the 
CHECHS, a four-year high school with an early college program component that is located at 
SJCCD’s South campus. CHECHS allows eligible CCISD students to earn college credit 
while simultaneously earning credit toward their high school graduation requirements. The 
ECHS will continue to enroll approximately 125 students in grade 9 on a yearly basis, with a 
maximum enrollment not to exceed 500 students in grades 9-12. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION  
 
All elements related to operation of the early college high school programs will be contained 
within the fiscal year 2024 budget and future budgets. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The CCISD Board approved the MOU for Dual Credit with the College during their regular 
board meeting on December 12, 2022. 
 
The agreement will continue through August 25, 2025. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

66 of 154



Action Item “XV”  
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval Memorandum of Understanding with Clear Creek ISD  
to Continue the Clear Horizons Early College High School 

 
Attachment 1 – Memorandum of Understanding   
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Laurel Williamson   281-998-6182   laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 
Joanna Zimmermann   281-476-1863  joanna.zimmermann@sjcd.edu 
  
 

67 of 154



Attachment 1

68 of 154



Attachment 1

69 of 154



Attachment 1

70 of 154



Attachment 1

71 of 154



Attachment 1

72 of 154



Attachment 1

73 of 154



Attachment 1

74 of 154



Attachment 1

75 of 154



Attachment 1

76 of 154



Attachment 1

77 of 154



Attachment 1

78 of 154



Attachment 1

79 of 154



Attachment 1

80 of 154



Attachment 1

81 of 154



Attachment 1

82 of 154



Attachment 1

83 of 154



Attachment 1

84 of 154



Attachment 1

85 of 154



Attachment 1

86 of 154



Attachment 1

87 of 154



Attachment 1

88 of 154



Attachment 1

89 of 154



Attachment 1

90 of 154



Attachment 1

91 of 154



Attachment 1

92 of 154



Attachment 1

93 of 154



Attachment 1

94 of 154



Item “XVI” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Annual Review of the College’s Investment Policy and Strategy - 
First Reading (Informational Item) 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the attached revisions to 
the Investment Policy and Strategy of the College. The Board of Trustees will not vote on 
this item but is creating awareness that the policy revision is being considered and input is 
being gathered.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Investment Policy and Strategy of San Jacinto College requires that the Board of 
Trustees, at least annually, review and approve appropriate changes as required by Texas 
Government Code 2256, the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA). The Board approved the 
last revisions on August 8, 2022.  
 
The Investment Policy and Strategy provides guidance to make investment recommendations 
to the College based on current financial market conditions within the requirements of the 
PFIA. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The revisions to the Investment Policy and Strategy are listed in the attached Summary of 
Changes and include minor updates as part of the annual review. 
 
The updated policy will be sent to the College community on June 5, 2023. Comments will 
be reviewed and any changes, if appropriate, will be addressed prior to the Board’s second 
reading of this policy which is anticipated on August 7, 2023. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
No budgetary impact.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The Board will be notified of any changes that require its action. Evaluation of 
management’s compliance with this policy is periodically reviewed by administration, the 
College’s internal and external auditors and the Texas State Auditor’s Office. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Summary of Changes 
Attachment 2 – Policy III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy (Tracked Changes) 
Attachment 3 – Policy III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy (Clean Version) 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Teri Zamora   281-998-6306   teri.zamora@sjcd.edu 
Carin Hutchins  281-998-6109   carin.hutchins@sjcd.edu 
  
 95 of 154



Attachment 1 
 

1 
 

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes  

New Policy Number: N/A 
Proposed Policy Name: N/A 
Current Policy Number/Name: Policy III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy 
 
New Procedure Number:  N/A 
Proposed Procedure Name(s): N/A 
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): N/A 
 
Action Recommended for Policy: Revise  
Action Recommended for Procedures: N/A  
 
Web Links:  
https://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-o-investment-policy-
and-strategy 
 
Primary Owner: Vice Chancellor, Fiscal Affairs 
Secondary Owner: Associate Vice Chancellor, Finance 
 

 

Summary of Changes: 

Policy Changes:  

The current Policy III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy, requires a revision to include: 

• Added language per Section 2256.017 of the Public Funds Investment Act  

 

Procedure Changes: 

N/A 

 

96 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

1  

Policy III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy 
 

Purpose 
The Board of Trustees of San Jacinto College will review and adopt the College's Investment 
Policy and investment strategies not less than annually in accordance with the Public Funds 
Investment Act. 

 
Policy 
It is the policy of the San Jacinto College District (“College”) to invest its public funds in a 
manner that will provide the highest reasonable investment return with the maximum security 
while meeting the daily cash flow requirements of the College and conforming to all state and 
federal statutes governing the investment of public funds. These funds are accounted for in the 
College's annual comprehensive financial report. 

 
Authority 
The primary state statute controlling the investment of public funds is the Public Funds 
Investment Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256 (Act). 

 
Applicability 
This Investment Policy applies to all assets and investment activity of the College including 
restricted and unrestricted funds. 

 
The Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy II.2000.A, Policy and 
Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission. 

 
OBJECTIVES 
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the College's investment activities shall be: 

 
SAFETY: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment 

program. The College shall undertake investments in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. Use of high-credit quality securities in a laddered 
portfolio structure will assist in minimizing credit risk. 

 
LIQUIDITY: The College's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to 

enable the College to meet all operating requirements that can be reasonably 
anticipated. The College will use cash flow projections to monitor changing needs. 

 
DIVERSIFICATION: The College will strive to create diverse portfolios to 

minimize credit and market risks by addressing diversification in terms of maturity as well as 
security type and issuer. The College will diversify its portfolios to manage market risk resulting 
from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of 
investment instruments. 

 
YIELD: The College will strive to earn a reasonable market yield within the 

restrictions imposed by the Policy’s safety and liquidity requirements, investment strategies, 
and state and federal laws governing investment of public funds. The College will design the 
investment portfolio with the objective of meeting and exceeding the yield of comparable 
benchmark securities chosen to be commensurate with the College's investment risk constraints 

97 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

2  

and the cash flow characteristics. The College will utilize the 1-Year, 2-Year, and 3-Year 
Treasury yields, as appropriate, as benchmarks for the portfolios’ performance and risk levels. 

 
STRATEGY 
The College’s general investment strategy is based on its objectives of (a) safety of principal, 
(b) liquidity, (c) diversification, and (d) reasonable yield. The College’s strategies for individual 
funds will address: 

 
1. The suitability of the authorized investments to the financial and cash flow requirement 

of the College. 
2. The need for preservation and safety of principal. 
3. The need for a measured liquidity to meet the College’s cash flow requirements. 
4. The marketability of every investment if the need arises to liquidate that investment 

before maturity. 
5. Diversification of the investment portfolio to limit market and credit risks. 
6. The recognition of reasonable yield to be used for the needs of the College. 

 
The College maintains three separate portfolios representing the College’s major fund types. 
Each portfolio is guided by individual investment strategy considerations addressing the unique 
characteristics of its fund group. 

 
A. Operating Funds and Commingled Pools Containing Operating Funds 
Investment strategies for operating funds and commingled pools containing operating funds 
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate 
investment liquidity. The College may accomplish this objective by purchasing high credit 
quality, short to medium-term securities, which form a laddered maturity structure and provide 
for a suitable liquidity buffer for unanticipated expenses. The College will maintain a maximum 
dollar weighted average maturity (WAM) of 365 days in these funds and will calculate the 
WAM using the stated final maturity date of each security. 

 
B. Debt Service Funds 
These portfolios contain debt service funds with particular needs. Investment strategies for debt 
service payments shall assure investment liquidity adequate to cover the debt service obligation 
on the required payment date. The next debt service date must always be funded before funding 
subsequent payments. 

 
Included also are debt service reserve funds that are used to generate a dependable revenue 
stream to the appropriate debt service fund from securities with a low degree of volatility. The 
College shall consider bond documents and ordinances specific to an individual issue in the 
investments. Securities should be of high credit quality with short to intermediate term 
maturities. The College shall manage volatility with relatively short and intermediate securities. 

98 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

3  

C. Bond Funds, Construction, Special Projects, or Special Purpose Funds 
Investment strategies for construction, special projects, or special purpose fund portfolios will 
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate 
investment liquidity. These portfolios should include at least 10% in highly liquid securities to 
allow for flexibility and unanticipated project outlays. The College will attempt to match its issue 
costs of bonds (avoid negative arbitrage) without incurring major rebate payables. The stated final 
maturity dates of securities held should not exceed the estimated project completion date and the 
maximum WAM will be guided by anticipated expenditure plans. 

 
STANDARD OF CARE – PRUDENT PERSON STANDARD 
The College shall make investments with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital as well as 
income to be derived. Investment of funds shall be governed by the following investment 
objectives, in order of priority: preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, diversification, and 
yield. 

 
All College Investment Officers will use this standard of prudence in the context of managing the 
overall portfolio. Investment Officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this 
Investment Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal liability for an 
individual security’s credit or market price fluctuations by the College provided that the Investment 
Officers report deviations from expectations in a timely fashion and take appropriate action to 
control adverse developments. 

 
INVESTMENT TRAINING 
It will be the College's policy to provide training for Board members and Investment Officers as 
required by the Act. For the purposes of the Act, community colleges are considered to be state 
agencies. The Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) will provide training for 
Board members that members complete within six months of assuming office. 

 
The designated Investment Officer(s) shall attend at least the minimum required hours of 
investment training within six months of assuming their duties and at least the minimum required 
hours every subsequent two fiscal years. The Board will approve the independent source to 
provide the investment training. For purposes of this Policy, an “independent source” approved by 
the Board from which investment training shall be obtained shall include a professional 
organization, an institute of higher learning or any other sponsor other than a business 
organization with whom the Board of Trustees engages in an investment purchase or sale. 

 
Not later than the 180th day after the last day of each regular session of the legislature, a report on 
investment training attended by Investment Officers of the institution shall be prepared by 
administration and delivered to the Board of Trustees. 

 
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
In accordance with the Act, the Board of Trustees delegates, by resolution, management 
responsibility for the investment program through the Chancellor to the Vice Chancellor of Fiscal 
Affairs as the primary Investment Officer. The daily investment transaction processing and 
reporting are delegated to the following Finance staff who are also considered Investment Officers: 
Associate Vice Chancellor, Finance; Comptroller; and Assistant Comptroller. 

99 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

4  

 
Board of Trustees 
The Board is responsible for reviewing and adopting the Investment Policy on no less than an 
annual basis. The Board is responsible for designating Investment Officer(s) or an Investment 
Adviser responsible for the management of the portfolio(s). The Board may designate an 
investment committee to review reports and approve counterparties, but the Board must receive 
and review quarterly investment reports. The Board retains ultimate fiduciary responsibility for all 
funds. 

 
Investment Committee 
The Board Finance Committee will act as the College’s Investment Committee. The Investment 
Committee shall meet at least quarterly to receive and review quarterly investment reports and 
monitor investment results. The Investment Committee shall include in its deliberation such topics 
as economic outlook, portfolio diversification, maturity structure, risk levels, and performance. The 
Investment Committee will, on no less than an annual basis, review and adopt the list of authorized 
broker/dealers for the Board. 

 
Investment Officer(s) 
The Investment Officer(s) shall monitor and maintain all controls and procedures of the 
investment process as designated by this Policy. The Officer(s) shall obtain training and shall 
establish written procedures and controls consistent with this Investment Policy. Such procedures 
shall include delegation of authority to individual employees responsible for investment 
transactions and documentation of investment transactions and holdings. The Investment 
Officer(s) shall prepare all required reports and maintain broker/dealer files as required. All 
Investment Officer(s) will strictly adhere to the standard of care and conditions prescribed in this 
Policy. 

 
All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public 
trust. Investment Officer(s) will avoid any transaction that might impair public confidence in the 
College. The investment program shall be designed and managed with a degree of professionalism 
that is worthy of that public trust. 

 
All Investment Officers shall be familiar with this Policy and its underlying procedures. No 
Investment Officer may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of 
this Policy and the established procedures. 

 
The Board may designate an SEC registered investment adviser to act as an Investment Officer 
for the College in assisting College staff with all provisions of this Policy. 

 
ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
College Investment Officers involved in the investment process who have personal business 
relationships with any entity seeking to sell an investment to the College shall file a statement 
disclosing the extent of that personal business interest. An Investment Officer who is related 
within the second degree by affinity or consanguinity (as determined by state statute) to an 
individual seeking to sell an investment to the College shall file a statement disclosing that 
relationship with the Texas Ethics Commission in accordance with the Act. 

100 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

5  

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 
This Policy applies to all investment activity of the College. The College will pursue a pro-active, 
conservative approach to investment activity and although other investments may be authorized by 
law, the College may invest only in investments authorized by the Board as listed below: 

 
1. Obligations of the US Government (Treasury Bills and Treasury Notes), its agencies and 

instrumentalities not to exceed three years to stated maturity. Mortgage-backed securities 
with stated maturities not more than three years are authorized only in bond construction 
funds. 

2. Fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit of any bank doing business in Texas that 
are collateralized in accordance with this Policy and with a stated final maturity not to exceed 
one year to include those bought through the CDARS network. 

3. Negotiable certificates of deposit securities issued by a bank that has a certificate of deposit 
rating of at least 1 or equivalent by a nationally recognized credit rating agency or that is 
associated with a holding company having a commercial paper rating of at least A1/P1 or 
equivalent by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

4. Commercial paper rated no less than A1/P1 by two nationally recognized rating agencies 
with a stated maturity less than 90 days. 

5. Fully collateralized direct repurchase agreements with a defined termination date, secured in 
accordance with this Policy and placed with a primary securities dealer. All repurchase 
agreement transactions shall be governed by an executed Bond Market Association Master 
Repurchase Agreement. Maximum stated maturity shall be 90 days except for flex repurchase 
agreements. Bond proceeds from one issue may be invested in a single flex repurchase 
agreement the maximum stated maturity for which shall be matched to the expenditure plan of 
the bonds. 

6. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state 
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A 
or its equivalent, with a stated maturity of not more than three years. 

7. AAA or equivalent rated, Texas local government investment pools striving to maintain a $1 
net asset value (NAV) as defined by the Act and authorized specifically by the Board of 
Trustees for a particular pool. 

8. A money market mutual fund in compliance with SEC Rule 2a-7 and striving to maintain a 
$1 net asset value. 

9. Corporate bonds, debentures or similar debt obligations rated in one of the two highest long- 
term rating categories without regard to gradations in those categories by  two nationally 
recognized rating agencies not to exceed three years to maturity. 

10. FDIC-insured brokered certificate of deposit securities from a bank in any US state, delivered 
versus payment to the College’s safekeeping depository, not to exceed one year to 
maturity. Before purchase, the Investment Officer or Adviser must verify the FDIC status of 
the bank on www.fdic.gov to assure that the bank is FDIC insured. 

11. Fully insured or collateralized interest-bearing accounts in any bank in Texas. 
 

If the State approves additional types of securities for investment by public funds by state 
statute, these securities will not be eligible for investment by the College until this Policy has 
been amended and the amended version adopted by the Board of Trustees. 

101 of 154

http://www.fdic.gov/


Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

6  

PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS 
The Board strictly prohibits the College from investing in any type of mortgage derivatives: 
1. Interest Only Mortgage-Backed Securities (IO). Obligations whose payment represents the 

coupon payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed 
security collateral and pays no principal. 

2. Principal Only Mortgage-Backed Securities (PO). Obligations whose payment represents 
the principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral 
and bears no interest. 

3. Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO) that have a stated final maturity date greater than 
ten years. 

4. Inverse Floaters. Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is determined 
by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index. 

 
If the state prohibits any type of securities for investment of public funds by state statute, 
the College is not required to liquidate investments that were authorized at the time of 
purchase.  

 
DIVERSIFICATION 
The College will use diversification to minimize risk of loss by over-concentration in a 
particular market sector, maturity or security. The College will strive to structure portfolios with 
laddered maturities and securities in accordance with the Policy’s authorized investments and 
maximum maturity constraints. To assure diversification in the portfolio, the College will 
impose the following maximum limits (at time of purchase): 

 
Investment Type Max. % in Portfolio 
US Treasury Obligations 90% 
US Agency and Instrumentality Obligations 85% 
SEC Registered Money Market Funds 60% 
Repurchase Agreements 75% 

Flex Repurchase (Bond Funds) 100% of issue 
Collateralized/Insured CDs 20% 
FDIC insured brokered CDs 20% 
Negotiable CDs 15% 

Limit per bank 5% 
Local Government Investment Pools 100% 

Participation per pool 10% of pool 
Commercial Paper 25% 

Limit per issuer 5% 
Municipal Obligations 50% 

Limit per issuer 10% 
Limit per geographical region 50% 

Corporate Obligations 30% 
Limit per issuer 5% 

102 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

7  

MAXIMUM MATURITIES 
The College will diversify maturity dates and to the extent possible, match investments with 
anticipated cash-flow requirements. No investment stated maturities will exceed three years at 
the time of purchase. 

 
AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS 
The College shall make all investments transactions with a broker/dealer authorized by the 
Board or its Investment Committee. The College will review and adopt the authorized list at 
least annually. The Board or Investment Committee does not need to approve banks utilized for 
time or demand accounts, but the bank must provide all required information to the Investment 
Officer(s) prior to the transaction. The list shall contain no fewer than three to five 
broker/dealers to assure a competitive process. The College does not limit the number of banks. 

 
Authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions may include: 

 
• Broker/dealer subsidiaries of banks doing business in the state of Texas, 
• Security dealers designated as “primary government securities dealers” by the 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York, and/or 
• Secondary institutional brokers/dealers registered with the State, the SEC, and the FINRA. 

 
Financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to transact business with the College must 
supply the following information/documents. The Investment Officer(s), or the College’s 
Investment Adviser, will maintain this information on the authorized financial institutions: 

 
• Annual current year audited financial statements, 
• Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) certification and FINRA’s 

Central Depository Registration (CRD) number (if broker/dealers), and 
• Proof of current Texas State Securities registration (if broker/dealers). 

 
The College may not enter into any investment transactions with a brokerage subsidiary of 
the Authority’s depository bank in order to fulfill all delivery versus payment (DVP) 
requirements for trade independence. 

 
Policy Certification 
The College must provide each authorized local government investment pool and broker/dealer 
a copy of this Policy to assure that the pools or dealers are familiar with the goals and 
objectives of the College. The authorized representative shall sign a written certification, in a 
form acceptable to the College, substantially to the effect that they: 

 
• Received and thoroughly reviewed the Policy and 
• Acknowledge that the pool or broker/dealer has implemented reasonable controls and 

procedures in an effort to preclude investment transactions with the College that are 
not authorized by the College’s Policy. 

 
Any College Investment Adviser shall certify their adherence to the Policy. 

103 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

8  

The College shall not execute any investment transaction with a pool that has not delivered 
this written certification. Material changes in this Policy will require re-certification. The 
College is under no obligation to transact business with any financial institution. 

 
COLLEGE DEPOSITORY 
At least every five years, the College shall select a College Depository through a formal request 
for proposal (RFP). In selecting a depository, the College shall consider the services, cost of 
services, credit worthiness, and collateralization by the institutions. 

 
COMPLIANCE AUDIT 
The College’s independent auditor reviews cash and investments in conjunction with the 
performance of the annual audit. At least once every two years, the College’s independent 
auditor will perform a compliance audit to assure internal controls are in place that provide for 
compliance with the College's Investment Policies and procedures and the Act. The College will 
report the results of this compliance audit to the Board of Trustees and the state auditor not later 
than January 1 of each even-numbered year. 

 
Loss of Rating 
The Investment Officer or Investment Adviser shall monitor, on no less than a weekly basis, 
the credit rating on all authorized investments in the portfolio based upon independent 
information from a nationally recognized rating agency. If any security falls below the 
minimum rating required by Policy, the Investment Officer or Adviser shall notify the 
Investment Committee of the loss of rating, conditions affecting the rating and possible loss 
of principal with liquidation options available, within two weeks after the loss of the required 
rating. 

 
Monitoring FDIC Status 
The Investment Officer or Investment Adviser shall monitor, on no less than a weekly basis, 
the status and ownership of all banks issuing brokered CDs owned by the College based upon 
information from the FDIC. If any bank has been acquired or merged with another bank in 
which the College owns brokered CDs, the Investment Officer or Adviser shall immediately 
liquidate any brokered CD that places the College above the FDIC insurance level. 

 
COLLATERALIZATION 
All College time and demand deposits shall be secured above FDIC coverage by pledged 
collateral. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, 
collateral will be maintained and monitored by the depository at 102% of market value of 
principal and accrued interest on the deposits. The bank shall be responsible for monitoring 
and maintaining the collateral market value daily to assure that the margin on the pledged 
securities is maintained. 

 
Collateral pledged to secure deposits shall be held by an independent financial institution 
outside the holding company of the depository in accordance with a safekeeping agreement 
signed by authorized representatives of the College, the Depository, and the custodian (with the 
exception of the Federal Reserve for which a Circular 7 Pledgee Agreement will be executed). 

104 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

9  

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the College or its independent auditors. 
 

Authorized Collateral 
The College shall accept only the following as collateral for time and demand deposits: 

 
A. FDIC insurance coverage. 
B. Obligations of the United States, its agencies or instrumentalities, or other evidence of 

indebtedness of the United States guaranteed as to principal and interest including 
mortgage-backed securities that pass the bank test. 

C. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any 
state rated A or its equivalent by two nationally recognized rating agencies. 

D. Letter of credit of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, issued by 
the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). 

 
Voluntary Collateral Pooling Alternative 
The College will evaluate collateral pooling alternatives authorized by state statute (TX Gov’t 
Code 2257) on a case-by-case basis for use. 

 
If any depository offers a voluntary collateral pooling alternative for the provision of collateral 
(instead of uniquely pledged securities to the College), the investment officers shall fully 
evaluate the risk factors concerned to determine the efficacy of participation. The College will 
analyze the use of collateral pooling using factors such as anticipated balances, fluctuations in 
balances, duration of deposits and current economic conditions to determine the acceptability 
of the collateral pool. The pool must contain only marketable securities. 

 
SAFEKEEPING 
All securities owned by the College shall be held in safekeeping by the College’s depository 
bank or an authorized third-party financial institution under an executed safekeeping 
agreement. 

 
DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the 
College shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis to assure that the 
College has full control of its funds and assets at all times. 

 
REPORTING 
The Investment Officer shall submit monthly and quarterly reports to the Board of Trustees in 
accordance with the Act containing sufficient information to permit an informed reader to 
evaluate the performance and risks of the investment program. At a minimum, the report shall 
include: 

 
a. Description of each investment and depository position; 
b. Book and market values at the beginning and end of the reporting period; 
c. Additions and changes to the market value during the period; 
d. The book and market value of each separately invested asset; 
e. The maturity date of each separately invested asset; 

105 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

10  

f. The account, fund, or pooled group fund for which each investment was acquired; 
g. The earnings for the period; and 
h. The overall yield for the portfolio(s) and its benchmark yield for the period 

designated as 1-Year, 2-Year or 3-Year Treasury yields, as appropriate. 
 

The College shall obtain market prices for market value calculations from an 
independent source. The report must conform to the contents of the Act and must 
be prepared and signed by all investment Officers of the College. 

 
In accordance with Rider 5, the General Appropriations Act (86th Legislature), the 
College shall file an annual investment report, prepared in the method prescribed 
by the State Auditor’s Office, by December 31 each year. The College shall also 
publish and maintain on its website for at least two years the annual investment 
report, quarterly investment reports, and current investment policy. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROLS 
The Vice Chancellor of Fiscal Affairs shall establish a system of controls to 
regulate the activities of the investment program and staff. The independent auditor 
of the College shall review controls annually. The College shall design the controls 
to prevent loss of funds due to fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third 
parties, unanticipated market changes, or imprudent actions. Controls deemed most 
important would include control of collusion, separation of duties, custody and 
safekeeping, delegation of authority, securities losses and remedial actions, and 
documentation of all transactions. 

 
Cash Flow Forecasting 
Cash flow forecasting is a control designed to protect and sustain cash flow 
requirements of the College. The Investment Officer will maintain a cash flow 
analysis designed to forecast cash positions for investment purposes. 

 
INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 
The Investment Committee may suggest Policy changes to the Board of Trustees at 
any time. The Board of Trustees shall review and adopt, by written instrument, its 
Investment Policy and investment strategies not less than annually, and the adopted 
written instrument shall designate any changes made to the Policy. 

 
Procedures 
There are no associated procedures with this policy. 

 
Date of Board 
Approval 

August 8, 2022Anticipated August 7, 2023 

Effective Date August 9, 2022Anticipated August 8, 2023 
Primary 
Owner 

Vice Chancellor, Fiscal Affairs 

106 of 154



Attachment 2 – Tracked Changes 

11  

Secondary 
Owner 

Associate Vice Chancellor, Finance 

 

107 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

1  

Policy III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy 
 

Purpose 
The Board of Trustees of San Jacinto College will review and adopt the College's Investment 
Policy and investment strategies not less than annually in accordance with the Public Funds 
Investment Act. 

 
Policy 
It is the policy of the San Jacinto College District (“College”) to invest its public funds in a 
manner that will provide the highest reasonable investment return with the maximum security 
while meeting the daily cash flow requirements of the College and conforming to all state and 
federal statutes governing the investment of public funds. These funds are accounted for in the 
College's annual comprehensive financial report. 

 
Authority 
The primary state statute controlling the investment of public funds is the Public Funds 
Investment Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256 (Act). 

 
Applicability 
This Investment Policy applies to all assets and investment activity of the College including 
restricted and unrestricted funds. 

 
The Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy II.2000.A, Policy and 
Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission. 

 
OBJECTIVES 
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the College's investment activities shall be: 

 
SAFETY: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment 

program. The College shall undertake investments in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. Use of high-credit quality securities in a laddered 
portfolio structure will assist in minimizing credit risk. 

 
LIQUIDITY: The College's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to 

enable the College to meet all operating requirements that can be reasonably 
anticipated. The College will use cash flow projections to monitor changing needs. 

 
DIVERSIFICATION: The College will strive to create diverse portfolios to 

minimize credit and market risks by addressing diversification in terms of maturity as well as 
security type and issuer. The College will diversify its portfolios to manage market risk resulting 
from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of 
investment instruments. 

 
YIELD: The College will strive to earn a reasonable market yield within the 

restrictions imposed by the Policy’s safety and liquidity requirements, investment strategies, 
and state and federal laws governing investment of public funds. The College will design the 
investment portfolio with the objective of meeting and exceeding the yield of comparable 
benchmark securities chosen to be commensurate with the College's investment risk constraints 

108 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

2  

and the cash flow characteristics. The College will utilize the 1-Year, 2-Year, and 3-Year 
Treasury yields, as appropriate, as benchmarks for the portfolios’ performance and risk levels. 

 
STRATEGY 
The College’s general investment strategy is based on its objectives of (a) safety of principal, 
(b) liquidity, (c) diversification, and (d) reasonable yield. The College’s strategies for individual 
funds will address: 

 
1. The suitability of the authorized investments to the financial and cash flow requirement 

of the College. 
2. The need for preservation and safety of principal. 
3. The need for a measured liquidity to meet the College’s cash flow requirements. 
4. The marketability of every investment if the need arises to liquidate that investment 

before maturity. 
5. Diversification of the investment portfolio to limit market and credit risks. 
6. The recognition of reasonable yield to be used for the needs of the College. 

 
The College maintains three separate portfolios representing the College’s major fund types. 
Each portfolio is guided by individual investment strategy considerations addressing the unique 
characteristics of its fund group. 

 
A. Operating Funds and Commingled Pools Containing Operating Funds 
Investment strategies for operating funds and commingled pools containing operating funds 
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate 
investment liquidity. The College may accomplish this objective by purchasing high credit 
quality, short to medium-term securities, which form a laddered maturity structure and provide 
for a suitable liquidity buffer for unanticipated expenses. The College will maintain a maximum 
dollar weighted average maturity (WAM) of 365 days in these funds and will calculate the 
WAM using the stated final maturity date of each security. 

 
B. Debt Service Funds 
These portfolios contain debt service funds with particular needs. Investment strategies for debt 
service payments shall assure investment liquidity adequate to cover the debt service obligation 
on the required payment date. The next debt service date must always be funded before funding 
subsequent payments. 

 
Included also are debt service reserve funds that are used to generate a dependable revenue 
stream to the appropriate debt service fund from securities with a low degree of volatility. The 
College shall consider bond documents and ordinances specific to an individual issue in the 
investments. Securities should be of high credit quality with short to intermediate term 
maturities. The College shall manage volatility with relatively short and intermediate securities. 

109 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

3  

C. Bond Funds, Construction, Special Projects, or Special Purpose Funds 
Investment strategies for construction, special projects, or special purpose fund portfolios will 
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate 
investment liquidity. These portfolios should include at least 10% in highly liquid securities to 
allow for flexibility and unanticipated project outlays. The College will attempt to match its issue 
costs of bonds (avoid negative arbitrage) without incurring major rebate payables. The stated final 
maturity dates of securities held should not exceed the estimated project completion date and the 
maximum WAM will be guided by anticipated expenditure plans. 

 
STANDARD OF CARE – PRUDENT PERSON STANDARD 
The College shall make investments with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital as well as 
income to be derived. Investment of funds shall be governed by the following investment 
objectives, in order of priority: preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, diversification, and 
yield. 

 
All College Investment Officers will use this standard of prudence in the context of managing the 
overall portfolio. Investment Officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this 
Investment Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal liability for an 
individual security’s credit or market price fluctuations by the College provided that the Investment 
Officers report deviations from expectations in a timely fashion and take appropriate action to 
control adverse developments. 

 
INVESTMENT TRAINING 
It will be the College's policy to provide training for Board members and Investment Officers as 
required by the Act. For the purposes of the Act, community colleges are considered to be state 
agencies. The Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) will provide training for 
Board members that members complete within six months of assuming office. 

 
The designated Investment Officer(s) shall attend at least the minimum required hours of 
investment training within six months of assuming their duties and at least the minimum required 
hours every subsequent two fiscal years. The Board will approve the independent source to 
provide the investment training. For purposes of this Policy, an “independent source” approved by 
the Board from which investment training shall be obtained shall include a professional 
organization, an institute of higher learning or any other sponsor other than a business 
organization with whom the Board of Trustees engages in an investment purchase or sale. 

 
Not later than the 180th day after the last day of each regular session of the legislature, a report on 
investment training attended by Investment Officers of the institution shall be prepared by 
administration and delivered to the Board of Trustees. 

 
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
In accordance with the Act, the Board of Trustees delegates, by resolution, management 
responsibility for the investment program through the Chancellor to the Vice Chancellor of Fiscal 
Affairs as the primary Investment Officer. The daily investment transaction processing and 
reporting are delegated to the following Finance staff who are also considered Investment Officers: 
Associate Vice Chancellor, Finance; Comptroller; and Assistant Comptroller. 

110 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

4  

 
Board of Trustees 
The Board is responsible for reviewing and adopting the Investment Policy on no less than an 
annual basis. The Board is responsible for designating Investment Officer(s) or an Investment 
Adviser responsible for the management of the portfolio(s). The Board may designate an 
investment committee to review reports and approve counterparties, but the Board must receive 
and review quarterly investment reports. The Board retains ultimate fiduciary responsibility for all 
funds. 

 
Investment Committee 
The Board Finance Committee will act as the College’s Investment Committee. The Investment 
Committee shall meet at least quarterly to receive and review quarterly investment reports and 
monitor investment results. The Investment Committee shall include in its deliberation such topics 
as economic outlook, portfolio diversification, maturity structure, risk levels, and performance. The 
Investment Committee will, on no less than an annual basis, review and adopt the list of authorized 
broker/dealers for the Board. 

 
Investment Officer(s) 
The Investment Officer(s) shall monitor and maintain all controls and procedures of the 
investment process as designated by this Policy. The Officer(s) shall obtain training and shall 
establish written procedures and controls consistent with this Investment Policy. Such procedures 
shall include delegation of authority to individual employees responsible for investment 
transactions and documentation of investment transactions and holdings. The Investment 
Officer(s) shall prepare all required reports and maintain broker/dealer files as required. All 
Investment Officer(s) will strictly adhere to the standard of care and conditions prescribed in this 
Policy. 

 
All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public 
trust. Investment Officer(s) will avoid any transaction that might impair public confidence in the 
College. The investment program shall be designed and managed with a degree of professionalism 
that is worthy of that public trust. 

 
All Investment Officers shall be familiar with this Policy and its underlying procedures. No 
Investment Officer may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of 
this Policy and the established procedures. 

 
The Board may designate an SEC registered investment adviser to act as an Investment Officer 
for the College in assisting College staff with all provisions of this Policy. 

 
ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
College Investment Officers involved in the investment process who have personal business 
relationships with any entity seeking to sell an investment to the College shall file a statement 
disclosing the extent of that personal business interest. An Investment Officer who is related 
within the second degree by affinity or consanguinity (as determined by state statute) to an 
individual seeking to sell an investment to the College shall file a statement disclosing that 
relationship with the Texas Ethics Commission in accordance with the Act. 

111 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

5  

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 
This Policy applies to all investment activity of the College. The College will pursue a pro-active, 
conservative approach to investment activity and although other investments may be authorized by 
law, the College may invest only in investments authorized by the Board as listed below: 

 
1. Obligations of the US Government (Treasury Bills and Treasury Notes), its agencies and 

instrumentalities not to exceed three years to stated maturity. Mortgage-backed securities 
with stated maturities not more than three years are authorized only in bond construction 
funds. 

2. Fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit of any bank doing business in Texas that 
are collateralized in accordance with this Policy and with a stated final maturity not to exceed 
one year to include those bought through the CDARS network. 

3. Negotiable certificates of deposit securities issued by a bank that has a certificate of deposit 
rating of at least 1 or equivalent by a nationally recognized credit rating agency or that is 
associated with a holding company having a commercial paper rating of at least A1/P1 or 
equivalent by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

4. Commercial paper rated no less than A1/P1 by two nationally recognized rating agencies 
with a stated maturity less than 90 days. 

5. Fully collateralized direct repurchase agreements with a defined termination date, secured in 
accordance with this Policy and placed with a primary securities dealer. All repurchase 
agreement transactions shall be governed by an executed Bond Market Association Master 
Repurchase Agreement. Maximum stated maturity shall be 90 days except for flex repurchase 
agreements. Bond proceeds from one issue may be invested in a single flex repurchase 
agreement the maximum stated maturity for which shall be matched to the expenditure plan of 
the bonds. 

6. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state 
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A 
or its equivalent, with a stated maturity of not more than three years. 

7. AAA or equivalent rated, Texas local government investment pools striving to maintain a $1 
net asset value (NAV) as defined by the Act and authorized specifically by the Board of 
Trustees for a particular pool. 

8. A money market mutual fund in compliance with SEC Rule 2a-7 and striving to maintain a 
$1 net asset value. 

9. Corporate bonds, debentures or similar debt obligations rated in one of the two highest long- 
term rating categories without regard to gradations in those categories by  two nationally 
recognized rating agencies not to exceed three years to maturity. 

10. FDIC-insured brokered certificate of deposit securities from a bank in any US state, delivered 
versus payment to the College’s safekeeping depository, not to exceed one year to 
maturity. Before purchase, the Investment Officer or Adviser must verify the FDIC status of 
the bank on www.fdic.gov to assure that the bank is FDIC insured. 

11. Fully insured or collateralized interest-bearing accounts in any bank in Texas. 
 

If the State approves additional types of securities for investment by public funds by state 
statute, these securities will not be eligible for investment by the College until this Policy has 
been amended and the amended version adopted by the Board of Trustees. 

112 of 154

http://www.fdic.gov/


Attachment 3 – Clean 

6  

PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS 
The Board strictly prohibits the College from investing in any type of mortgage derivatives: 
1. Interest Only Mortgage-Backed Securities (IO). Obligations whose payment represents the 

coupon payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed 
security collateral and pays no principal. 

2. Principal Only Mortgage-Backed Securities (PO). Obligations whose payment represents 
the principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral 
and bears no interest. 

3. Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO) that have a stated final maturity date greater than 
ten years. 

4. Inverse Floaters. Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is determined 
by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index. 

 
If the state prohibits any type of securities for investment of public funds by state statute, 
the College is not required to liquidate investments that were authorized at the time of 
purchase.  

 
DIVERSIFICATION 
The College will use diversification to minimize risk of loss by over-concentration in a 
particular market sector, maturity or security. The College will strive to structure portfolios with 
laddered maturities and securities in accordance with the Policy’s authorized investments and 
maximum maturity constraints. To assure diversification in the portfolio, the College will 
impose the following maximum limits (at time of purchase): 

 
Investment Type Max. % in Portfolio 
US Treasury Obligations 90% 
US Agency and Instrumentality Obligations 85% 
SEC Registered Money Market Funds 60% 
Repurchase Agreements 75% 

Flex Repurchase (Bond Funds) 100% of issue 
Collateralized/Insured CDs 20% 
FDIC insured brokered CDs 20% 
Negotiable CDs 15% 

Limit per bank 5% 
Local Government Investment Pools 100% 

Participation per pool 10% of pool 
Commercial Paper 25% 

Limit per issuer 5% 
Municipal Obligations 50% 

Limit per issuer 10% 
Limit per geographical region 50% 

Corporate Obligations 30% 
Limit per issuer 5% 

113 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

7  

MAXIMUM MATURITIES 
The College will diversify maturity dates and to the extent possible, match investments with 
anticipated cash-flow requirements. No investment stated maturities will exceed three years at 
the time of purchase. 

 
AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS 
The College shall make all investments transactions with a broker/dealer authorized by the 
Board or its Investment Committee. The College will review and adopt the authorized list at 
least annually. The Board or Investment Committee does not need to approve banks utilized for 
time or demand accounts, but the bank must provide all required information to the Investment 
Officer(s) prior to the transaction. The list shall contain no fewer than three to five 
broker/dealers to assure a competitive process. The College does not limit the number of banks. 

 
Authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions may include: 

 
• Broker/dealer subsidiaries of banks doing business in the state of Texas, 
• Security dealers designated as “primary government securities dealers” by the 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York, and/or 
• Secondary institutional brokers/dealers registered with the State, the SEC, and the FINRA. 

 
Financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to transact business with the College must 
supply the following information/documents. The Investment Officer(s), or the College’s 
Investment Adviser, will maintain this information on the authorized financial institutions: 

 
• Annual current year audited financial statements, 
• Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) certification and FINRA’s 

Central Depository Registration (CRD) number (if broker/dealers), and 
• Proof of current Texas State Securities registration (if broker/dealers). 

 
The College may not enter into any investment transactions with a brokerage subsidiary of 
the Authority’s depository bank in order to fulfill all delivery versus payment (DVP) 
requirements for trade independence. 

 
Policy Certification 
The College must provide each authorized local government investment pool and broker/dealer 
a copy of this Policy to assure that the pools or dealers are familiar with the goals and 
objectives of the College. The authorized representative shall sign a written certification, in a 
form acceptable to the College, substantially to the effect that they: 

 
• Received and thoroughly reviewed the Policy and 
• Acknowledge that the pool or broker/dealer has implemented reasonable controls and 

procedures in an effort to preclude investment transactions with the College that are 
not authorized by the College’s Policy. 

 
Any College Investment Adviser shall certify their adherence to the Policy. 

114 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

8  

The College shall not execute any investment transaction with a pool that has not delivered 
this written certification. Material changes in this Policy will require re-certification. The 
College is under no obligation to transact business with any financial institution. 

 
COLLEGE DEPOSITORY 
At least every five years, the College shall select a College Depository through a formal request 
for proposal (RFP). In selecting a depository, the College shall consider the services, cost of 
services, credit worthiness, and collateralization by the institutions. 

 
COMPLIANCE AUDIT 
The College’s independent auditor reviews cash and investments in conjunction with the 
performance of the annual audit. At least once every two years, the College’s independent 
auditor will perform a compliance audit to assure internal controls are in place that provide for 
compliance with the College's Investment Policies and procedures and the Act. The College will 
report the results of this compliance audit to the Board of Trustees and the state auditor not later 
than January 1 of each even-numbered year. 

 
Loss of Rating 
The Investment Officer or Investment Adviser shall monitor, on no less than a weekly basis, 
the credit rating on all authorized investments in the portfolio based upon independent 
information from a nationally recognized rating agency. If any security falls below the 
minimum rating required by Policy, the Investment Officer or Adviser shall notify the 
Investment Committee of the loss of rating, conditions affecting the rating and possible loss 
of principal with liquidation options available, within two weeks after the loss of the required 
rating. 

 
Monitoring FDIC Status 
The Investment Officer or Investment Adviser shall monitor, on no less than a weekly basis, 
the status and ownership of all banks issuing brokered CDs owned by the College based upon 
information from the FDIC. If any bank has been acquired or merged with another bank in 
which the College owns brokered CDs, the Investment Officer or Adviser shall immediately 
liquidate any brokered CD that places the College above the FDIC insurance level. 

 
COLLATERALIZATION 
All College time and demand deposits shall be secured above FDIC coverage by pledged 
collateral. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, 
collateral will be maintained and monitored by the depository at 102% of market value of 
principal and accrued interest on the deposits. The bank shall be responsible for monitoring 
and maintaining the collateral market value daily to assure that the margin on the pledged 
securities is maintained. 

 
Collateral pledged to secure deposits shall be held by an independent financial institution 
outside the holding company of the depository in accordance with a safekeeping agreement 
signed by authorized representatives of the College, the Depository, and the custodian (with the 
exception of the Federal Reserve for which a Circular 7 Pledgee Agreement will be executed). 

115 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

9  

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the College or its independent auditors. 
 

Authorized Collateral 
The College shall accept only the following as collateral for time and demand deposits: 

 
A. FDIC insurance coverage. 
B. Obligations of the United States, its agencies or instrumentalities, or other evidence of 

indebtedness of the United States guaranteed as to principal and interest including 
mortgage-backed securities that pass the bank test. 

C. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any 
state rated A or its equivalent by two nationally recognized rating agencies. 

D. Letter of credit of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, issued by 
the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). 

 
Voluntary Collateral Pooling Alternative 
The College will evaluate collateral pooling alternatives authorized by state statute (TX Gov’t 
Code 2257) on a case-by-case basis for use. 

 
If any depository offers a voluntary collateral pooling alternative for the provision of collateral 
(instead of uniquely pledged securities to the College), the investment officers shall fully 
evaluate the risk factors concerned to determine the efficacy of participation. The College will 
analyze the use of collateral pooling using factors such as anticipated balances, fluctuations in 
balances, duration of deposits and current economic conditions to determine the acceptability 
of the collateral pool. The pool must contain only marketable securities. 

 
SAFEKEEPING 
All securities owned by the College shall be held in safekeeping by the College’s depository 
bank or an authorized third-party financial institution under an executed safekeeping 
agreement. 

 
DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the 
College shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis to assure that the 
College has full control of its funds and assets at all times. 

 
REPORTING 
The Investment Officer shall submit monthly and quarterly reports to the Board of Trustees in 
accordance with the Act containing sufficient information to permit an informed reader to 
evaluate the performance and risks of the investment program. At a minimum, the report shall 
include: 

 
a. Description of each investment and depository position; 
b. Book and market values at the beginning and end of the reporting period; 
c. Additions and changes to the market value during the period; 
d. The book and market value of each separately invested asset; 
e. The maturity date of each separately invested asset; 

116 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

10  

f. The account, fund, or pooled group fund for which each investment was acquired; 
g. The earnings for the period; and 
h. The overall yield for the portfolio(s) and its benchmark yield for the period 

designated as 1-Year, 2-Year or 3-Year Treasury yields, as appropriate. 
 

The College shall obtain market prices for market value calculations from an 
independent source. The report must conform to the contents of the Act and must 
be prepared and signed by all investment Officers of the College. 

 
In accordance with Rider 5, the General Appropriations Act (86th Legislature), the 
College shall file an annual investment report, prepared in the method prescribed 
by the State Auditor’s Office, by December 31 each year. The College shall also 
publish and maintain on its website for at least two years the annual investment 
report, quarterly investment reports, and current investment policy. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROLS 
The Vice Chancellor of Fiscal Affairs shall establish a system of controls to 
regulate the activities of the investment program and staff. The independent auditor 
of the College shall review controls annually. The College shall design the controls 
to prevent loss of funds due to fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third 
parties, unanticipated market changes, or imprudent actions. Controls deemed most 
important would include control of collusion, separation of duties, custody and 
safekeeping, delegation of authority, securities losses and remedial actions, and 
documentation of all transactions. 

 
Cash Flow Forecasting 
Cash flow forecasting is a control designed to protect and sustain cash flow 
requirements of the College. The Investment Officer will maintain a cash flow 
analysis designed to forecast cash positions for investment purposes. 

 
INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 
The Investment Committee may suggest Policy changes to the Board of Trustees at 
any time. The Board of Trustees shall review and adopt, by written instrument, its 
Investment Policy and investment strategies not less than annually, and the adopted 
written instrument shall designate any changes made to the Policy. 

 
Procedures 
There are no associated procedures with this policy. 

 
Date of Board 
Approval 

Anticipated August 7, 2023 

Effective Date Anticipated August 8, 2023 
Primary 
Owner 

Vice Chancellor, Fiscal Affairs 

117 of 154



Attachment 3 – Clean 

11  

Secondary 
Owner 

Associate Vice Chancellor, Finance 

 

118 of 154



Purchase Request #1
Consideration of Approval to Award Professional Services Pool (pg. 2-4) -$                      

Purchase Request #2
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Central 
Campus Marcom Capital Renewal

(pg. 5) 150,000                

Purchase Request #3
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Interior LED 
Lighting Retrofit Project

(pg. 6-7) 75,000                  

Purchase Request #4
Consideration of Approval to Renew the Contract for Bookstore 
Operations

(pg. 8-9) 6,000,000             

Purchase Request #5
Consideration of Approval to Contract for Mass Communication 
and Emergency Notification Services

(pg. 10-11) 226,227                

Purchase Request #6
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Electronic Access Control (pg. 12) 200,000                

Purchase Request #7
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Portable Radios (pg. 13) 134,756                

Purchase Request #8
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Catering 
Services

(pg. 14) 100,000                

Purchase Request #9
Consideration of Approval of Funds for Customer Relationship 
Management Solution Contract

(pg. 15) 215,000                

Purchase Request #10
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for 
Fortune Cookie Marketing Campaign

(pg. 16-17) 150,000                

TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS 7,250,983$        

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
PURCHASE RECAP

June 5, 2023

PURCHASE REQUESTS AND CONTRACT RENEWALS

1
119 of 154



Purchase Request #1 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval to Award Professional Services Pool 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a pool for professional 
services consisting of engineers and construction technical consultants for various construction, 
renovation, and infrastructure projects.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Engineers and construction-related technical services are required for various construction and 
facility upgrade projects. Such services are classified as professional services pursuant to §2254 
of the Texas Government Code and are awarded based on firms’ qualifications relative to each 
project. Previously for the 2015 Capital Improvement Bond Program, it was determined the 
College would be best serviced by utilizing a pool of pre-qualified firms in each discipline. A 
pool was approved by the Board of Trustees in November 2016 based on the selection of 
respondents to Request for Qualifications (RFQ) No. 16-10. 
 
To refresh the pool, RFQ No. 23-27 was issued on April 18, 2023, to procure professional 
services in compliance with §2254 of the Texas Government Code. This allows potential new 
vendors to be considered and validates the qualifications of existing providers. Forty-five 
responses were received and evaluated by a team comprised of facilities and capital projects 
staff. Based on the evaluation team’s scores, it was determined that the needs of the College 
would be best served by approving firms from each discipline. Some disciplines are engaged 
more frequently for projects and/or for longer durations. A larger number of firms are being 
recommended to ensure availability for multiple projects anticipated during the contract term.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this request will grant the College administration authority to award a pool of pre-
qualified professional services firms and negotiate contracts for each project based on the best 
match of qualifications, experience, and applicable skills as determined by subject matter experts 
within the College. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
Separate contracts will be issued with firms on a per project basis. All contracts that exceed the 
minimum threshold for Board approval will be brought forth for Board approval. The College 
does not guarantee any firms will be engaged for any projects. Funds required for each 
engagement will be allocated from either an approved project budget or operational budgets.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Professional services firms will be engaged by facilities and capital projects staff on an “as-
needed” basis. The award term for the pool of professional services firms will be for 
approximately five years.  
 

2
120 of 154



Purchase Request #1 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval to Award Professional Services Pool 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Ranking and Award by Discipline 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chuck Smith   281-998-6341   charles.smith@sjcd.edu 
Genie Scholes   281-998-6349   genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 
 

3
121 of 154



# Vendors  Score # Vendors  Score 
  Environmental Services

1 ACR Engineering Inc 95.00            1 Terracon Consultants, Inc. 89.19      
2 Terracon Consultants, Inc. 89.19            2 Alpha Testing, Inc. 83.09      
3 Page (Page Southerland Page, Inc) 85.71            3 WSP USA Buildings Inc. 77.42      
4 Engineered Air Balance Co., Inc. 85.56            4 Braun Intertec Corporation 75.64      
5 WYLIE Consulting Engineers 81.06            5 Raba Kistner 75.36      
6 JonesDBR Engineering 79.82            6 ECS Southwest, LLP 68.58      
7 Command Commissioning, LLC 77.58            7 Geotech Engineering & Testing 67.88      
8 WSP USA Buildings Inc. 77.42            8 Earth Engineering, Inc. 67.42      
9 PBK, Inc. 76.39            9 Atlas Technical Consultants 66.42      

10 Braun Intertec Corporation 75.64            10 EFI Global, Inc. 60.13      
11 EMA Engineering & Consulting 71.71            11 ERC Environmental & Construction Services 52.40      
12 Campos Engineering, Inc. 69.01            
13 McKinstry 64.07              Geotechnical/Materials Testing

1 Terracon Consultants, Inc. 89.19      
2 HTS, Inc. Consultants 86.19      

1 Walter P Moore 96.88            3 Alliance Geotechnical Group, Inc. 83.38      
2 HTS, Inc. Consultants 86.19            4 Alpha Testing, Inc. 83.09      
3 Dally + Associates 85.13            5 Braun Intertec Corporation 75.64      
4 PBK, Inc. 76.39            6 Raba Kistner 75.36      
5 Lentz Engineering, LLC 66.32            7 Riner Engineering 69.81      

8 ECS Southwest, LLP 68.58      
9 Geotech Engineering & Testing 67.88      

1 ACR Engineering Inc 95.00            10 Earth Engineering, Inc. 67.42      
2 Terracon Consultants, Inc. 89.19            11 Atlas Technical Consultants 66.42      
3 Page (Page Southerland Page, Inc) 85.71            
4 E&C Engineering 82.29              Testing and Balancing
5 Infrastructure Associates, Inc. 81.35            1 Page (Page Southerland Page, Inc) 85.71      
6 WYLIE Consulting Engineers 81.06            2 Engineered Air Balance Co., Inc. 85.56      
7 JonesDBR Engineering 79.82            3 Technical Air Balance Texas 78.17      
8 WSP USA Buildings Inc. 77.42            4 PBK, Inc. 76.39      
9 PBK, Inc. 76.39            5 Braun Intertec Corporation 75.64      

10 EMA Engineering & Consulting 71.71            6 Campos Engineering, Inc. 69.01      
11 O'Connell Robertson 71.40            7 Geotech Engineering & Testing 67.88      
12 LTY Engineers 68.37            
13 MEP Green Design & Build 60.18              Other Professional Services
14 English + Associates Architects, Inc. 41.26            Architectural Programming and Planning

1 Facility Programming and Consulting 95.50      
Acoustic and Performance Venue Consulting

1 Walter P Moore 96.88            1 Wrightson, Johnson, Haddon & Williams, Inc. 87.19      
2 Terracon Consultants, Inc. 89.19            Land Surveying 
3 Dally + Associates 85.13            1 JPM Survey Group, LP (Miller Survey Group) 80.17      
4 Ensight Haynes Whaley 81.82            2 West Belt Surveying, Inc. 75.15      
5 PBK, Inc. 76.39            Technology Consulting
6 Amtech Solutions, Inc. 60.50            1 TechKnowledge Consulting Corp 60.07      
7 English + Associates Architects, Inc. 41.26            Program and Project Management

1 9 Ether Global Services, LLC. (Mitchell) 38.00      

1 Walter P Moore 96.88            
2 Zero Six Consulting, LLC 93.03            
3 Terracon Consultants, Inc. 89.19            
4 Armko Industries, Inc. 78.19            
5 PBK, Inc. 76.39            
6 Braun Intertec Corporation 75.64            Award recommended firms highlighted in green.
7 Raba Kistner 75.36            
8 ECS Southwest, LLP 68.58            
9 Amtech Solutions, Inc. 60.50            

10 BLUEFIN, LLC 59.04            
11 English + Associates Architects, Inc. 41.26            

Envelope Consulting & Testing Services 

RFQ 23-27 - Professional Services
Attachment 1 - Ranking and Award by Discipline

Building Commissioning Consultant

Civil Engineering 

Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing Engineering 

Structural Engineering 

4
122 of 154



Purchase Request #2 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for 
Central Campus Marcom Capital Renewal 

  
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the expenditure of additional 
funds for the Central Campus Marcom Building Capital Renewal construction contract with 
Tellepsen Builders, L.P.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In June 2022, the Board approved a construction manager-at-risk (CMR) #22-32 contract with 
Tellepsen Builders, L.P. to renovate the Central Campus Marcom Building. In January 2023, the 
Board authorized a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) not to exceed $10,600,000. On February 
20, 2023, the Chancellor’s designee approved the GMP for $10,010,621, which was $589,379 
below the Board authorized GMP.  
 
As the project has developed, it has become clear that the College would benefit by pulling the 
future planned re-roofing of the Marcom Building into the current project. This would eliminate 
redundancy of roof perimeter work and allow for the elimination of interior roof drains. 
 
In accordance with the Local Government Code, Section 252.048, an increase in the total contract 
price may be made if funds are appropriated for that purpose, if approved by the governing board, 
and if the increase is less than twenty-five percent of the original contract price.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this action will increase the GMP of the construction contract and allow for a 
replacement roof to be included in the project scope.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
This request will increase the Board authorized GMP limit by an additional $150,000 to a total of 
$10,750,000. The GMP to the contractor will increase by $739,379. This project will be funded 
from the 2015 Bond Program and is within budget. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Completion of the project is expected for the fall of 2024. This project will be managed by capital 
projects personnel. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chuck Smith   281-998-6341   charles.smith@sjcd.edu 
Genevieve Scholes  281-998-6349   genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 

5
123 of 154



Purchase Request #3 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for 
Interior LED Lighting Retrofit Project 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the expenditure of additional 
funds for the LoanSTAR interior LED lighting retrofit project.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In September of 2021, the Board approved a contract with the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts, State Energy Conservation Office (SECO) for a low interest loan facilitating energy 
efficiency improvements to the College’s built environment. The anticipated amount of the Loan 
package was $4,722,118, including LED lighting retrofits across the college then valued at 
$811,078.  
 
Detailed project plans and specifications were developed by ESA Energy Systems Associates, 
Inc. and used as part of the documentation package required for public solicitation of 
construction proposals in accordance with the Texas Government Code §2269.151. Competitive 
sealed proposal #22-28 for the Interior LED Lighting Retrofit Project was issued on February 1, 
2022, and in April 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a contract with E3 Entegral Solutions.  
 
During execution of the project, changes in scope based on reduced maintenance or changed 
tenant needs resulted in the addition of 950 lighting fixtures to the project. Unit pricing per 
fixture was included in the original project award, and these changes met the requirements of the 
College’s LoanSTAR agreement and were approved by SECO. When the final pay application 
was submitted to the College, it was determined that the change order exceeded the Board 
approved amount for the project.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this request will allow the final Change Order and pay application for the project to 
be processed, allowing the project to be closed. Work was completed in December 2022. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
In April 2022, the Board approved an expenditure of $507,537 for interior LED lighting retrofit 
project. This request will increase the total amount approved by $75,000 to a total of $582,537. 
This expenditure will be funded from the LoneSTAR Contract CL-380.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Construction of LoanSTAR projects are being managed by capital projects personnel. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 

6
124 of 154



Purchase Request #3 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for 
Interior LED Lighting Retrofit Project 

 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chuck Smith    281-998-6341  charles.smith@sjcd.edu 
Genie Freeman-Scholes  281-998-6349  genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 
 

7
125 of 154



Purchase Request #4 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval to Renew the Contract for Bookstore Operations 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees exercise a one-year renewal option 
on the contract with Barnes & Noble College Booksellers LLC (B&N) for continued operations 
of the College’s bookstores. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
B&N has operated the campus bookstores since June 15, 2007, procured through Request for 
proposals (RFP) #07-21 and RFP #18-22. Since 2007, B&N has provided the College with 
monetary and capital improvement packages and has worked closely with the College to control 
and reduce resource material and textbook costs for the students.  
 
RFP #18-22 was issued March 27, 2018, to procure bookstore operations services, which 
complied with the competitive procurement requirements per Texas Education Code §44.031(a). 
The Board approved the contract with B&N on June 4, 2018, which was for five years with three 
one-year renewal options. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this contract renewal will continue to provide the following benefits to the College 
and its students: 

• Guaranteed annual commission of 90 percent of current the previous year’s commission 
• Higher commission rates for sales tiers with lower sales requirements 
• $10,000 annual scholarship for students 
• $10,000 annual unrestricted donation 
• Major reductions in the cost of resource materials via the B&N First Day Program 
• Price matching for students 

 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated annual expenditure is $6,000,000, primarily funded from restricted financial aid 
funds on behalf of students. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
This renewal will exercise the first of three one-year renewal options available. The renewal term 
will be June 15, 2023, through June 14, 2024. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 

8
126 of 154



Purchase Request #4 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval to Renew the Contract for Bookstore Operations 
 

Matt Prasifka   281-991-2627    first.last@sjcd.edu 
Farrah Khalil   281-998-6326   farrah.khalil@sjcd.edu 

9
127 of 154



Purchase Request #5 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval to Contract for Mass Communication  
and Emergency Notification Services 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract with Rave Mobile 
Safety for mass communication and emergency notification services for the Office of Emergency 
Management (OEM) Department. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The College is required under the Jeanne Clery Act to deliver emergency and timely notifications 
to students, employees, visitors, and contractors at all College locations for any safety or security 
threat. This communication is done through a software service that allows for rapid 
dissemination of information using multiple modalities such as voice, text, e-mail, digital 
signage, computer screens, and social media.  
 
Request for proposal #23-25 was issued on March 9, 2023, to procure mass communication and 
emergency notification services, which complied with the competitive procurement requirements 
per Texas Education Code §44.031(a). Four responses were received and evaluated by a team 
comprised of representatives from marketing, office of emergency management (OEM), police 
department, and information technology services determined the proposal submitted by Rave 
Mobile Safety (Rave) will provide the best value to the College. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Procuring services with Rave will allow the College to continue to meet its alert messaging 
responsibilities as required by the Jeanne Clery Act. Since Rave is the incumbent providing these 
services, there is not an implementation cost included with this new contract.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The three-year initial term expenditure is $226,227 and will be funded from the OEM 
department’s 2022-2023 operating budget and subsequent year budgets. The total expenditure for 
the maximum seven-year contract is estimated at $527,143. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The initial three-year award term will commence on July 1, 2023, with four one-year renewal 
options for a maximum seven-year contract. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Tabulation 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Ali Shah    281-998-6311   ali.shah@sjcd.edu 
Karen Allen   281-998-6106   karen.allen@sjcd.edu 

10
128 of 154



# Vendor Points (Max 30) Shortlist
1 Rave Mobile Safety 23.60 Yes
2 BlackBerry Corporation 20.17 Yes
3 Regroup Mass Notification 14.30 Yes
4 Alertus Technologies 13.87 Yes

# Vendor Points (Max 40)
1 Rave Mobile Safety 23.00
2 BlackBerry Corporation 22.57
3 Alertus Technologies 17.00
4 Regroup Mass Notification 14.00

# Vendor Points (Max 30)  Price - 7 Years
1 Regroup Mass Notification 18.69 398,740.00$        
2 BlackBerry Corporation* 17.10 423,317.00$        
3 Rave Mobile Safety 17.09 527,143.00$        
4 Alertus Technologies* 10.31 566,400.00$        
*

# Vendor Final Score 
(Max 100)  Price - 7 Years

1 Rave Mobile Safety 63.69 527,143.00$        
2 BlackBerry Corporation 59.84 423,317.00$        
3 Regroup Mass Notification 46.99 398,740.00$        
4 Alertus Technologies 41.18 566,400.00$        

Price includes additional costs to the College not included in scope.

PRICING SUMMARY

FINAL RANKING

RFP 23-25
Mass Communication Emergency Notification Services 

Attachment 1 – Tabulation 

QUALIFICATIONS SUMMARY

PRESENTATIONS SUMMARY

11
129 of 154



Purchase Request #6 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Electronic Access Control 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of electronic 
access control, electronic hardware, card readers, proximity cards, and services from Custom 
Access and Integration (Custom Access) for the facilities services department. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Custom Access has historically provided services related to the installation, repair, maintenance, 
licensing, and programming of access control systems and equipment throughout the College. 
These services range from planned events to unforeseen and emergency situations when a quick 
response is essential. Custom Access can provide a range of services to support College needs 
related to access control.  
 
Custom Access has a contract to provide security systems products and services through the 
TIPS cooperative contracts program, contract #230202, that complies with competitive 
procurement requirements in Texas Education Code §44.031(a)(4) and is permitted through 
Texas Government Code §791.001(g). 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Having a reliable and responsive company such as Custom Access provides a critical resource to 
support the facilities services department, allowing them to quickly respond to projects, service 
requests, and repair needs. These services are also vital for the completion of planned 
maintenance and repairs. Without access to these services, the College would be hindered in its 
ability to quickly respond to issues which may negatively impact the College and its students. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated annual expenditure for this request is $200,000 and will be funded from the 
facilities services department’s 2022-2023 operating budget and subsequent year budgets. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones    281-998-6343   bryan.jones@sjcd.edu  
John Maslonka  281-542-2029   john.maslonka@sjcd.edu 
Genie Freeman-Scholes 281-998-6348   genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 

12
130 of 154



Purchase Request #7 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Portable Radios 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the expenditure of additional 
funds for the purchase of portable radios from Motorola Solutions for the police and emergency 
management vehicles. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
In August 2022, the Board of Trustees approved the purchase of new portable radios, providing 
one radio for each employee of the police and emergency management departments. This 
purchase replaced radios that averaged ten years old. In coordination with the police dispatch 
console upgrade project, twenty-six additional vehicle radios are required to replace vehicle 
radios that are at the end of their lifecycle.  
 
Motorola Solutions has a contract for radio communications and emergency response equipment 
through the H-GAC cooperative contracts program, contract #RA05-21, that complies with 
competitive procurement requirements in Texas Education Code §44.031 and is permitted 
through Texas Government Code §791.001(g). 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this request will allow Motorola Solutions to complete the police dispatch console 
upgrade project by adding twenty-six new radios to the police vehicles for the police and 
emergency management departments.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated expenditure for this request is $134,756 and will be funded from HEERF funds.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
This purchase will be completed by the HEERF deadline of June 30, 2023.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Sabrina Naulings  281-998-6150   sabrina.naulings@sjcd.edu 
Ali Shah   281-998-6311   ali.shah@sjcd.edu 
Karen Allen   281-998-6106   karen.allen@sjcd.edu 

13
131 of 154



Purchase Request #8 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Catering Services 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the expenditure of additional 
funds for the purchase of catering services from City View Catering for College events. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The College hosts a variety of events that are best supported by contracting with qualified full-
service catering companies. As the College’s community and outreach activities continue to 
grow, the number of events that require catering has continued to grow as well. Having access to 
full-service catering firms, such as City View Catering, allows the College to receive reliable and 
quality catering services.  
 
Request for proposals #23-13 was issued November 7, 2022, to procure catering services for 
College events. There were five responses received, and City View Catering is one of five 
catering services providers that was awarded a contract by the Board in January 2023. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this request will allow City View Catering to continue providing quality catering 
services for College events as needed.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
In January of 2023, the Board approved an expenditure of $150,000 for catering services. This 
request will increase the total amount approved by $100,000 to a total of $250,000. This 
expenditure will be funded from multiple departments’ 2022-2023 operating budgets and 
subsequent year budgets.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The current contract term with City View Catering is February 6, 2023 through February 5, 2024 
with four one-year renewal options remaining. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Damon Harris    281-998-6103   damon.harris@sjcd.edu 
Farrah Khalil   281-998-6326   farrah.khalil@sjcd.edu 

14
132 of 154



Purchase Request #9 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Funds for Customer Relationship  
Management Solution Contract 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the expenditure of the second 
contract year term with TargetX for a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) solution for the 
College. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In June 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a contract TargetX for a CRM solution with the 
ability to assign advisors based on pathway, manage early alerts and interventions, implement a 
student communication plan, connect students to the appropriate resources/staff members, and 
manage prospects and applicants through the enrollment funnel.  
 
Request for proposals #22-04 was issued on February 16, 2022 to procure a CRM solution. Nine 
responses were received, and the solution proposed by TargetX was determined to provide the best 
value for the College.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this request will allow the College to continue to use the CRM platform to track and 
personalize student communication, bridge the gap between faculty and staff advising notes, and 
use just in time interventions based on data points.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
In June 2022, the Board of Trustees approved the initial three-year term and the first-year costs of 
$340,000. The second-year expenditure for this request is $215,000 and will be funded from the 
2022-2023 institutional unrestricted budget. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Year two of the three-year initial term begins June 30, 2023, through June 29, 2024. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Carin Hutchins  281-998-6109   carin.hutchins@sjcd.edu 
Joanna Zimmermann  281-476-1863   joanna.zimmermann@sjcd.edu 
Jessica Tello    281-998-6150 x1126   jessica.tello@sjcd.edu 
Karen Allen    281-998-6106   karen.allen@sjcd.edu 

15
133 of 154



Purchase Request #10 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for  
Fortune Cookie Marketing Campaign 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of additional 
fortune cookie marketing campaign services from Fortune Media Inc. dba OpenFortune 
(OpenFortune) for the external relations department. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In Spring 2023, the College executed a contract with OpenFortune to provide fortune cookie 
advertising and analysis services, which includes writing the advertisement fortunes and working 
with their suppliers for distribution of 315,000 future cookies to 24 restaurants within the San 
Jacinto College taxing district. They also provide campaign measurement and effectiveness data 
and reporting. San Jacinto College is the only higher education institution in Texas that has 
partnered with OpenFortune. 
 
The fortunes were in market beginning April 1, 2023. For measurement purposes, the College 
considered a 45-day campaign in which social media was monitored and measured, and a during 
which a brand lift study was conducted. The College included messaging within the fortunes for 
three campaigns: general brand awareness, adult populations, and San Jac Online. Each 
campaign included two fortune slips - one with a QR code that individuals could scan to learn 
more (the link took them to a page on the San Jacinto College website), and one without the QR 
code. The most scanned QR code was tied to the adult populations campaign. 
 
Among a group of approximately 200 individuals who received the fortune, more than 70% were 
between the ages of 20 and 45. 63.5% recalled seeing the ad on the fortune cookie slip, 12.5% 
took a picture of their San Jacinto College branded fortune, 5.5% shared their fortune on social 
media, 7% shared their fortune via text message, 44.5% started a conversation about San Jacinto 
College, and 14.5% Googled San Jacinto College to learn more. 91.8% of individuals had a 
positive reaction to seeing the San Jacinto College fortune. One restaurant patron posted their 
fortune on social media with the caption: “Leave it to a fortune cookie to make me re-think 
college. San Jacinto College can you help with that?” 
 
OpenFortune is a sole source provider of fortune cookie marketing campaign services and is 
exempt from the competitive bidding per Texas Education Code §44.031(j). Sole source #1588 
has been assigned. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This brand awareness tactic is another layer in the marketing and advertising toolbox that is 
showing success in penetrating the adult populations who reside within the San Jacinto College 
district. This approach supports the College’s annual priority: Expand Outreach Efforts Through 
College-Going Opportunities by targeting the adult populations and those who may be interested 
in obtaining their degree online through a unique and different advertising medium. By engaging 
in another campaign cycle with OpenFortune, we will have a baseline for measurement and 
better be able to analyze social media and track website traffic to determine the overall impact of 
this marketing tactic. 

16
134 of 154



Purchase Request #10 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for  
Fortune Cookie Marketing Campaign 

 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
In March 2023, the College executed a contract with OpenFortune for $75,000. This request will 
increase the total amount by $75,000 for a total approval of $150,000. This expenditure will be 
funded from the marketing and public relations department’s 2022-2023 operating budget. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
This second marketing campaign is projected to being mid-July through August 2023. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Amanda Fenwick  281-998-6160   amanda.fenwick@sjcd.edu 
Angela Klaus   281-998-6327   angela.klaus@sjcd.edu 

17
135 of 154



Item “A” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Approval of the Minutes for the May 1, 2023, Workshop and Regular Board Meeting  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the  
May 1, 2023, Workshop and Regular Board Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

136 of 154



Page 1 of 7 
 

San Jacinto College District Board Workshop 
May 1, 2023 

 
The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met for a Board 
Workshop at 5:00 p.m., Monday, May 1, 2023, in Room 201 of the Thomas S. Sewell 
District Administration Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.  

 
MINUTES 

 
 Board Workshop 

Attendees: 
Board Members: Marie Flickinger, Erica Davis Rouse, 
Dan Mims, John Moon, Jr. Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede 
Wheeler, Larry Wilson 
Chancellor: Brenda Hellyer  
Other: Attorney Micki Morris (via conference call), 
Sandra Ramirez, Mandi Reiland, Teri Zamora 
 

 Agenda Item: Discussion/Information 
I.  Call the Meeting to 

Order 
Chair Flickinger called the workshop to order at 5:04 p.m. 

II.  Roll Call of Board 
Members 
  

Board Chair Flickinger conducted a roll call of the Board 
members: 
 
Erica Davis Rouse  
Marie Flickinger  
Dan Mims (arrived during closed session)  
John Moon, Jr.  
Keith Sinor  
Dr. Ruede Wheeler (arrived during closed session) 
Larry Wilson  
 

III.  Adjournment to 
closed or executive 
session pursuant to 
Texas Government 
Code Section 
551.071 and 
551.074 of the 
Texas Open 
Meetings Act, for 
the following 
purposes: Legal 
Matters and 
Personnel Matters 

Chair Flickinger adjourned to closed session at 5:05 p.m. 
 
The Board members listed above as attending, Chancellor 
Brenda Hellyer, Sandra Ramirez, Mandi Reiland, and Teri 
Zamora were present for the closed session. Other 
attendees are noted below.  
 
a. Legal Matters - For the purpose of a private 

consultation with the Board’s attorney on any or all 
subjects or matters authorized by law. 
Conference call with Attorney Micki Morris.  

b. Personnel Matters - For the purpose of considering the 
appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, 

137 of 154



Board Workshop Minutes Page 2 of 7 
May 1, 2023 

 duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a 
public officer or employee. 
 

IV.  Reconvene in Open 
Meeting 
 

Chair Flickinger reconvened to open meeting at 5:58 p.m. 

V.  Review of Board 
Election Calendar 
and Processes 
 

Teri Zamora provided an update on the 2023 Board 
election activities. The announcement of early voting 
locations was made on April 11, and the notice of the 
election was published in the newspaper on April 13. The 
first day of early voting was April 24, and the last day of 
early voting is on May 2. Election information, including 
voting locations, dates, and times, were added to the 
College’s website on April 26. Signage listing where to 
vote in the San Jacinto College election was placed at area 
early voting locations for entities that chose not to 
participate with the Harris County election. Similar signage 
will be posted on May 5 to address voting locations on 
election day (May 6). Regarding post-election activities, 
the preliminary election results will be available on the 
Harris County website May 6-17. The Special Board 
Meeting to canvass election results has been cancelled. 
Harris County canvasses their own votes and will send the 
College final results by 4:00 p.m. on May 17. An 
announcement of the unofficial election results will be 
made on May 8, and an announcement of the canvassed 
election results will be made by May 18. The newly elected 
Board members will take their Oaths of Office on June 5, 
and an updated group photo to include the new trustees will 
be scheduled.  
 
Teri provided a list of the 13 early voting locations 
throughout the College’s taxing district.  
 
Dr. Brenda Hellyer clarified that the list the Board was 
given indicates voting for the College will be in different 
rooms than the local city and school district elections since 
we are holding a joint election with the county.  
 
Keith Sinor asked if the County pays for these additional 
sites.  
Brenda responded that the College pays a flat rate to 
partner with the County, and the sites are included in the 
fee.  
 

138 of 154



Board Workshop Minutes Page 3 of 7 
May 1, 2023 

Note: It was subsequently determined that the College was 
required to hold a Special Board Meeting to canvass the 
election results. This occurred on May 16, 2023. 
 

VI.  Review New Board 
Member 
Orientation 
Outline and 
Training  
 

Brenda explained that the Board received a rough draft of a 
list of the items that will be included in the new Board 
member training manual. The training required by the 
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) is 
included, and the required cybersecurity training will be 
moved to August to allow the new Board members to 
participate in this training at the same time as current 
members. She provided an overview of what is being 
covered and asked the group if they have anything to add 
to the list. 
 
Erica Davis Rouse recommended adding Board workshops 
and retreats to the Board calendar portion. 
 
The group agreed all topics being covered will be helpful 
and did not have any other items to add to the list.  
 
Erica mentioned that Board members reaching out to 
provide assistance when she was onboarding was helpful 
and recommended they do the same for the new Board 
member.  
 

VII.  Update on 
Development of 
Fiscal Year 2024 
Budget  
 

Brenda explained that the College is at a place where we 
have a lot of unknowns in the budget revenue projections. 
We have the new tuition increase and are working to model 
enrollment projections for next year. From the State 
standpoint, the current estimate that the College could 
receive ranges from a $4.5 million up to $19 million annual 
increase. House Bill 8, which is the community college 
finance recommendations, is moving into the Senate, but 
we do not have approval on the funding model designs or 
the final process for development. Teri Zamora is on an 
advisory committee working through these details. 
Regarding property taxes, there was a significant increase 
of 7.8 percent in the preliminary projections from the 
Harris County Appraisal District (HCAD) across all types 
of valuations. We are waiting for more details and will 
have another update at the June 5 Board meeting. The July 
25 Building and Finance committee meetings will be 
cancelled, and a budget retreat will be held instead. The 
budget will go to the Board for approval at the August 
Board meeting.  

139 of 154



Board Workshop Minutes Page 4 of 7 
May 1, 2023 

VIII.  Update on Deferred 
Maintenance 
Requests  

Teri provided an overview of the deferred maintenance 
requests. The College currently has a $27.7 million budget 
for deferred maintenance. A majority of these dollars have 
been committed to 20 different projects. We have 
encumbered $12.4 million and spent $9.8 with $5.4 
remaining. We have allocated $20 million for new 
opportunities at Generation Park and have approximately 
$15.5 million in contingency. Most of the larger projects 
have been completed, and many are waiting to close out.  
 
Teri is requesting the following projects be added to the 
approval list: replacement of South Campus P9 parking lot, 
replacement of N10 Wheeler roof at North Campus, and 
replacement of the roof on the C2 Marcom building. The 
third project does not require a budget change but will 
require the Board to approve an increase of the existing 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) by $150,000 at the 
June Board meeting.  
 
The Board was supportive of adding the three projects. 
 

IX.  Discuss Foreign 
Trade Zone 
Application from 
Gulf Stream 
Marine, Inc. 
 

Brenda explained the College receives these applications 
periodically but has not had one in a couple of years so 
Teri will provide an overview. There will also be an action 
item regarding this application during tonight’s Board 
meeting.  
 
Teri provided an overview of the Foreign Trade Zone 
(FTZ) application including the process, the College’s 
history with the FTZ, and the current request. The College 
has historically agreed to provide letters of non-opposition 
as long as a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) agreement is 
executed. The current request is from Gulf Coast Marine, 
Inc, who has applied for participation in the FTZ program 
at three leased properties.  
 
The College’s next steps are to approve the draft PILOT 
agreement and approve issuing a letter of non-opposition.  
 
Larry Wilson asked how many years this will be effective.  
Teri responded that it is effective until some action or 
move causes it to go away.  
 

X.  Update on State 
and Federal 
Legislative Sessions 

Brenda provided an update on the State and Federal 
legislative sessions.  
 

140 of 154



Board Workshop Minutes Page 5 of 7 
May 1, 2023 

and the Texas 
Commission on 
Community 
College Finance  
 

On the Federal side, Dan Mims, Brenda Hellyer, and Teri 
Crawford traveled to Washington D.C. April 19-20 to 
attend the Aspen Prize luncheon. While in Washington, 
D.C., they hosted a dinner for Congresswoman Sylvia 
Garcia, her Chief of Staff and Legislative Director, 
Congressman Randy Weber, Brenda Weber, and 
Congressman Weber’s Legislative staff. In addition, Tom 
Downs with Downs Government Affairs and Carrie 
Warwick Smith with Association of Community Colleges 
Trustees (ACCT) also joined the dinner. As the College has 
discussed policy issues multiple times, this was more of a 
social visit, and policy was touched on briefly. 
 
Brenda explained that we continue to work with members 
of Congress regarding a $30 million appropriation in fiscal 
year 2024 for the Domestic Maritime Centers of 
Excellence workforce training grants. Congresswoman 
Sylvia Garcia’s office is leading this effort, and our 
members said they would review the legislation and 
consider signing onto it.  
 
On the State side, with 28 days left in the Legislative 
Session, the members are spending more time on the 
chamber floor and less time in committee hearings. The 
following is an update on key bills being monitored: 
 
House Bill (HB) 1 – This is the State budget bill. It 
includes a $650 million rider for community college 
funding. The bill passed the House and had a committee 
substitute in the Senate. Both the House and Senate have 
appointed conferees, and this bill is now behind closed 
doors being discussed by the conferees. 
 
HB 8 – This is the authorizing bill for the new funding 
model for community colleges. It has passed out of the 
House and was received by the Senate on April 12. It has 
not been assigned to a committee, yet which would keep it 
moving through the legislative process. The rationale for 
the bill not moving is thought to be due to a disagreement 
between Lt. Governor Patrick and Speaker Phelan. The Lt. 
Governor has passed his priority bills out of the Senate, but 
they are moving slowly in the House. Therefore, the low 
House Bill number indicating that this is a priority for 
Speaker Phelan may be causing the Lt. Governor to slow 
down House Bills in the Senate. 
 

141 of 154



Board Workshop Minutes Page 6 of 7 
May 1, 2023 

Senate Bill (SB) 15 – This bill is related to requiring 
students in public higher education institutions who 
compete in athletic competitions to compete based on their 
biological sex at birth. This bill has passed out of the 
Senate and was referred to the House Higher Education 
Committee and was heard today, Monday, May 1, in 
Committee. 
 
SB 17 – This is known as the Diversity, Equity, and 
Inclusivity (DEI) bill and would limit higher education 
from having an office of diversity or requiring diversity 
statements or giving preference in hiring practices. There 
are several other items in the bill that may be amended by 
the House, so we continue to watch this bill carefully. This 
bill has passed out of the Senate and was referred to the 
House Higher Education Committee on Friday, April 28. 
 
SB 1887 – This bill is another attempt to make transferring 
courses between institutions of higher education easier for 
students and having those course credits transfer as a 
degree rather than as an elective. This bill has a companion 
in the House, HB 3486. SB 1887 has passed out of the 
Senate and was referred to the House Higher Education 
Committee on Friday, April 28.  
 
SB 2335 – This bill would create a Texas Higher Education 
Accreditation Commission, independent state agency 
directly accountable to the Governor. The Accreditation 
Commission would be appointed by the Governor, Lt. 
Governor, and the Speaker. Two-thirds of the Commission 
must be an employer, or a representative of an employer 
association in a target occupations field determined by the 
Texas Workforce Commission. This bill has passed in the 
Senate and was referred to the House Higher Education 
Committee on Friday, April 28. 
 
We continue to watch the Texas State Technical College 
(TSTC) expansion bills. At this time, those bills are stalling 
in the Senate and individual community colleges that could 
be impacted by the expansion are working with Senators to 
slow these expansion bills down or kill them. San Jacinto 
College would not be immediately impacted, but we are 
closely watching. As mentioned previously, there is 
funding created in HB 1 to provide an endowment for 
TSTC and the Lamar colleges. The Senate allocated 

142 of 154



Board Workshop Minutes Page 7 of 7 
May 1, 2023 

differently than the House, so this is an item being 
considered in the conference committee. 
 
We are also monitoring the House and Senate Property Tax 
bills. Currently, we are not seeing a bill with significant 
impact to community colleges, so we are trying to keep out 
of the fight occurring with these bills. The House and 
Senate have significant disagreements on how to 
implement these bills, so it is a significant headline. The 
disagreement has to do with buying down property taxes, 
increasing homestead exemptions for ISDs, and limiting 
increases from the appraisal districts. The House and 
Senate do not concur specifically on buying down property 
taxes versus limiting appraisal district increases.  
 

XI.  Review of Calendar 
 

Brenda reviewed the Board calendar with the group and 
asked them to let Mandi Reiland know if they would like to 
attend any of the listed events.  
 
She highlighted the employee celebration event on May 5 
and asked if any of the Board members would like to 
attend and say a few words. Marie Flickinger, Erica Davis 
Rouse, and Dan Mims agreed to attend and speak at the 
event.  
 

XII.  General Discussion 
of Meeting Items 
 

Brenda provided supporting documents on purchase 
request #3, which is the contract for beverage vending. On 
the second page, the scores for the four vendors that 
participated in the process are listed. Dr. Pepper’s financial 
return to the College was greater than the others. They are 
offering a 20 percent sales commission and guaranteeing a 
$100,000 sponsorship payment annually. If approved by 
the Board, this contract will begin August 2, 2023. 
 

XIII.  Adjournment Chair Flickinger adjourned the workshop at 6:40 p.m. 

 

143 of 154



 Page 1 of 5 

San Jacinto College District 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
May 1, 2023 

 
The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 7:00 p.m., 
Monday, May 1, 2023, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas for a regular Board Meeting.  

 
Board of Trustees: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Erica Davis Rouse, Assistant Secretary  
 Marie Flickinger, Chair  
 Dan Mims  
 John Moon, Jr., Vice Chair  
 Keith Sinor, Secretary 
 Larry Wilson 
 Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
  

Chancellor:  Brenda Hellyer 
 

Others Present: Shunta Antuli Susana González Mandi Reiland 
Rhonda Bell Kevin Hale R Ridley 
Jimmie Bennett Brad Hance Shelley Rinehart 
Lynne Brandt Allatia Harris Eddy Ruiz 
Bailey Butler Damon Harris S Rushing 
Mary Jane Caddell LaTasha Henderson Romeo Saenz 
Robert Cage Jerelyn Hughes-Glen Joseph Schenck 
Michelle Cantu-Wilson Carin Hutchins Sebastian Solis 
Debra Clarke Sallie Kay Janes Janice Sullivan 
Laura Cole Robert Jeter III Ken Tidwell 
Jacquelynn Conger Matt Keim Graham Tobin 
Teri Crawford Aaron Knight Steven Tristan 
Gloria Davis Carrol LaRowe Jordan Tucker 
Wiley Davis Kalena Leonard Shanedria Wagner 
Marcy Deajon Jemina MacHarry Richard Watson 
Vicente DelAngel DeRhonda McWaine Sarah Watson 
Kim DeLauro Lamar McWaine Karen Wheeler-Hall 
Chris Duke Bernie Milstein Niki Whiteside 
Jonathan Estrada Mike Mizma Van Wigginton 
Teddy Farias Kevin Morris Laurel Williamson 
Rachel Garcia Joe Pena Teri Zamora 
Scott Gernander JR Ragisis Joanna Zimmermann 

 

  
Call the Meeting to 
order: 
 

Chair Flickinger called the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees to 
order at 7:01 p.m. 
 

Roll Call of Board 
Members:  
 

Chair Flickinger conducted a roll call of the Board members:  
 
Erica Davis Rouse  

144 of 154



Regular Board Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 5 
May 1, 2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Marie Flickinger  
Dan Mims  
John Moon, Jr.  
Keith Sinor  
Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
Larry Wilson  
 

Invocation and 
Pledges to the Flags: 
 

The invocation was given by Dr. Aaron Knight. The pledges to the 
American flag and the Texas flag were led by Dan Mims.   
  

Special 
Announcements, 
Recognitions, 
Introductions, and 
Presentations:  
 

1. Van Wigginton recognized the See to Succeed Program.   
2. Van Wigginton recognized the Texas Music Educators Association 

Awardees.  
3. Teri Zamora recognized San Jacinto College for receiving the Claims 

Administrative Services Receipt of CAS Safety Award for Superior 
Loss Control Results for 2021-2022 Plan Year.  

4. Faculty Senate President Kevin Hale provided the 2022-2023 Faculty 
Senate update.  
 

Student Success 
Presentations:  

1. Niki Whiteside and Amanda Fenwick provided a presentation on San 
Jac Online.  

2. The presentation on Career and Workforce Pathways was tabled.  
 

Communications to 
the Board: 

The following items were reviewed and distributed to the Board as 
communication items:  
 

1. A thank you was sent to the Board from Michael Marchuk for the 
plant sent in memory of his grandson.  
 

Public Comment:  
 

There were two citizens desiring to speak before the Board.  
 

1. Robert Jeter III 
2. Shanedria Wagner 

 
Informative Reports: Chair Flickinger indicated such reports were available in the Board 

documents and online.  
 

A. San Jacinto College Financial Statements  
a. San Jacinto College Monthly Financial Statements March 

2023 
b. San Jacinto College Monthly Investment Report March 2023  

B. San Jacinto College Foundation Financial Statements  
C. Capital Improvement Program  

 
Motion 10269 
Consideration of 
Approval of 
Amendment to the 
2022-2023 Budget for 
Restricted Revenue 

Motion was made by Keith Sinor, seconded by Dan Mims, for approval 
of Amendment to the 2022-2023 Budget for Restricted Revenue and 
Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants. 
 
 
Motion Carried.  

145 of 154



Regular Board Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 5 
May 1, 2023 
 

and Expenses 
Relating to Federal 
and State Grants 
 

 
Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None  
 

Motion 10270 
Consideration of 
Approval of Non-
Credit Course 
Enrollment Charges   
 

Motion was made by Dan Mims, seconded by Larry Wilson, for 
approval of Non-Credit Course Enrollment Charges.   
 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None  
 

Motion 10271 
Consideration of 
Approval to Execute a 
Payment in Lieu of 
Taxes Agreement 
with Gulf Stream 
Marine, Inc. and 
Issue a Letter of Non-
Opposition 
 

Motion was made by Larry Wilson, seconded by John Moon, Jr., for 
approval to Execute a Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement with Gulf 
Stream Marine, Inc. and Issue a Letter of Non-Opposition.  
 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None  
 

Consideration of 
Approval of Policy 
IV.4000.P Tuition 
Reimbursement and 
Spouse/Dependent 
Tuition Discount – 
First Reading 
(Informational Item)  
 

Consideration of Approval of Policy IV.4000.P Tuition Reimbursement 
and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount – First Reading (Informational 
Item).  
 
 
No vote required.  
 

Motion 10272 
Consideration of 
Purchasing Requests  

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by Keith Sinor, for 
approval of the purchasing requests. 
 
Purchase Request #1   
RFP 23-23, Consideration of Approval to Contract for  
Landscaping and Grounds Maintenance Services        $850,000  
   
Purchase Request #2   
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for  
DOL H1-B Grant Subrecipients                                          1,096,237  
   
Purchase Request #3   
RFP 23-15, Consideration of Approval to Contract for  
Beverage Vending and Pouring Rights                                   70,000  
   
Purchase Request #4   
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Electrical Supplies and 
Equipment                                                                                   160,000  

146 of 154



Regular Board Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 5 
May 1, 2023 
 

   
Purchase Request #5   
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Temporary  
Staffing Services                                                                     150,000  
   
Purchase Request #6   
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Ballistic Shields         127,200  
   
Purchase Request #7   
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Upfitting for Police  
Vehicles                                                                                   108,000  
   
Purchase Request #8   
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Food  
Distributor Services                                                          100,000  
   
Purchase Request #9   
Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for  
Semi-Tractor and Bus Repair                                                         100,000  
   
TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS                 $2,761,437 
 
  
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None  
 

Motion 10273 
Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by Larry Wilson, to 
approve the consent agenda.  

 
A. Approval of the Minutes for the April 3, 2023, Workshop and 

Regular Board Meeting  
B. Approval of the Budget Transfers  
C. Approval of Personnel Recommendations, 2023-2024 Part-Time 

Hourly Rate Schedule, Extra Service Agreements, and 2023-2024 
Faculty Contract Recommendations 

D. Approval of the Affiliation Agreements 
E. Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting on June 5, 

2023 
F. Approval of Corrections to the Minutes for the March 6, 2023, 

Regular Board Meeting   
 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None  
 

147 of 154



Regular Board Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 5 
May 1, 2023 
 

Items for Discussion/ 
Possible Action 

There were no additional items discussed.  

Adjournment: Chair Flickinger adjourned the meeting at 8:02 p.m.  
 

148 of 154



Item “B” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Approval of Minutes for the May 16, 2023, Special Board Meeting  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the  
May 16, 2023, Special Board Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

149 of 154



1 
 

San Jacinto Community College District  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

 
May 16, 2023 

 
The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met for a Special 
Board Meeting at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 16, 2023, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. 
Sewell District Administration Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas. Per 
Election Code 67.004, two members of the Board constitute a quorum for purposes of 
canvassing an election. 
 
Chancellor: 
 

Brenda Hellyer  
 

Others Present: Matt Keim  
Rosie Helms  
Bo Hopper 
Mandi Reiland 
Teri Zamora 
 

Call the Meeting 
to order: 
 

Chair Marie Flickinger called the special meeting of the Board of 
Trustees to order at 5:01 p.m.  

Roll Call of 
Board Members:  
 
 
 

Erica Davis Rouse – absent  
Marie Flickinger 
Dan Mims  – absent 
John Moon, Jr.  
Keith Sinor  – absent 
Dr. Ruede Wheeler  – absent 
Larry Wilson  – absent 
 

Public Comment:  There were no citizens desiring to speak before the Board. 

Motion 10274 
Consideration of 
Approval to 
Adopt Order 
Canvassing 
Results and 
Declaring 
Winners of the 
May 6, 2023, 
Election for 
Board of Trustee 
Positions 1 and 2   
 

Motion was made by John Moon, Jr., seconded by Marie Flickinger, for 
approval to Adopt Order Canvassing Results and Declaring Winners of 
the May 6, 2023, Election for Board of Trustee Positions 1 and 2.    
 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Moon, Jr. 
Nays: None  

Adjournment: Chair Flickinger adjourned the meeting at 5:04 p.m.  
 

150 of 154



Item “C” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Consideration of Approval of Budget Transfers 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve budget transfers for April 
2023 which have been made in accordance with appropriate accounting procedures.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Adoption of the budget by the Board of Trustees prior to September 1 of each year serves as 
the authorization to expend funds for the next fiscal year. The budget is adopted by 
functional classification (or cost elements: Instruction, Public Service, Academic Support, 
Student Services, Institutional Support, and Operation and Maintenance of Plant) as defined 
by the National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO). 
Realizing that the budget is a living document that reflects the evolving needs of the College 
in terms of meeting goals and objectives, occasional movement of budgeted funds between 
cost elements is desirable and warranted. The budget transfers under consideration represent 
previously authorized expenditures that are requested to be reclassified from one cost 
element to another cost element. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of the budget transfers allows the College to more effectively utilize existing 
resources in fulfilling its instructional objectives. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
This request is a reclassification of existing authorizations. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Budget Transfers 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Teri Zamora   281-998-6306   teri.zamora@sjcd.edu 
Carin Hutchins  281-998-6109   carin.hutchins@sjcd.edu 
Dianne Duron   281-998-6347   dianne.duron@sjcd.edu 
  
 

151 of 154



ELEMENT OF COST DEBIT CREDIT

INSTRUCTION 2,667$                  315,806$              
PUBLIC SERVICE -$                      -$                      
ACADEMIC SUPPORT 60,956$                3,740$                  
STUDENT SERVICES 1,650$                  -$                      
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT 210,000$              7,311$                  
PHYSICAL PLANT 51,583$                -$                      
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -$                      -$                      

326,856$              326,856$              

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
Budget Transfers Related to Fiscal Year 2022-23

for April 2023

Attachment 1 – Budget Transfers 152 of 154



Item “E” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Approval of the Affiliation Agreements 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following Affiliation 
Agreements: 
 
North Campus  
Department      Affiliation Entity 
Health Information Management    Skinner Medical Billing & Consulting LLC 
 
South Campus  
Department      Affiliation Entity 
Occupational Therapy Assistant  University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer 

Center 
 
Physical Therapy Assistant    Houston Physicians’ Hospital 
 
Physical Therapy Assistant    Independence Rehab LLC 
 
Central Campus  
Department      Affiliation Entity 
Medical Imaging    Gulf Coast MRI & Diagnostic 
 
Surgical Technology    Houston Physicians’ Hospital 
 
District-Wide  
Department      Affiliation Entity 
Allied Health  AD Hospital East dba East Houston Hospital 

& Clinics and River Oaks Hospital & Clinics 
 
RATIONALE 
 
The Affiliation Agreements were reviewed by the College’s external legal counsel. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE 
 
N/A 
 
 
CONTACT PERSONNEL 
 
Daniel J. Snooks, Attorney  
Laurel Williamson   281-998-6184   laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 

153 of 154

mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu


Item “F” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2023 

Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees will be Monday, August 7, 
2023.  
 
 

154 of 154


	01 Cover Sheet 6-5-23
	02 Board Workshop Agenda 6-5-23
	03 Board Meeting Agenda 6-5-23
	08.a Financials 6.5.23
	08.1 San Jacinto College Financial Statements
	08.2 SJC Financials April 2023
	08.3 San Jacinto College Financial Statements monthly investments
	08.4 Investment Holdings 04-03-23

	08.b Foundation Financials - Apr23
	08.c Revised (02) Combined CIP Reports 4.30.2023
	08d BBC Minutes 05.23.23 DRAFT
	BOARD BUILDING COMMITTEE
	SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
	May 23, 2023

	09 Agenda Item Statement of Officer & Oath of Office 2023
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	09.1 Statement of Officer Davis Rouse
	09.2 Statement of Officer Cantu-Wilson
	09.3 Oath of Office Davis Rouse
	09.4 Oath of Office Cantu-Wilson
	10 Election of officers June
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	11 Emeritus Ruede Wheeler
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	11.1 Wheeler Resolution 6.23 (1)
	12 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FISCAL AFFAIRS June 05 2023
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	12.1 Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-06-05-23
	06.05.23

	12.2 Attachment 2-Grant Detail 06-05-23
	13 P&P Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse Discount 6.5.23
	00 Policy Action Item 6.5.23
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	01 Summary of Changes for Policy and Procedure on Tuition Reimbursement 4.10.23
	02 Proposed Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement with track changes 4.10.23
	Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount
	Purpose
	The purpose of this policy is to define the Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount process at the College.
	Policy
	Associated Procedures


	03 Proposed Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement clean 6.5.23
	Policy IV.4000.P, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount
	Purpose
	The purpose of this policy is to define the Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount process at the College.
	Policy
	Associated Procedures


	04 Proposed Procedure IV.4000.P.a Tuition Reimbursement with track changes 5.2.2023
	Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount
	Associated Policy
	Purpose
	The College will reimburse active, full-time, employees who have completed six (6) months of continuous service at the time of enrollment for classes taken at San Jacinto College. Subject to the availability of funds, the College will reimburse employ...
	Procedure


	05 Proposed Procedure IV.4000.P.a Tuition Reimbursement clean 6.5.23
	Procedure IV.4000.P.a, Tuition Reimbursement and Spouse/Dependent Tuition Discount
	Associated Policy
	Purpose
	The College will reimburse active, full-time, employees who have completed six (6) months of continuous service at the time of enrollment for classes taken at San Jacinto College. Subject to the availability of funds, the College will reimburse employ...
	Procedure



	14 Action Item Homestead Exemption Rate cah
	14.1 Homestead Exemption Resolution
	15 Board Action Item 2022- CCISD Clear Horizons ECHS MOU
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	15.1 CHECHS_SanJac MOU
	16 Investment Policy 6.5.23
	00 Agenda Item - Investment Policy
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	01 Policy and Procedures Summary of Changes
	Current Policy Number/Name: Policy III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy
	Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): N/A

	02 III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy 8-8-22 tracked changes
	Purpose
	Policy
	Authority
	Applicability
	OBJECTIVES
	STRATEGY
	A. Operating Funds and Commingled Pools Containing Operating Funds
	B. Debt Service Funds
	C. Bond Funds, Construction, Special Projects, or Special Purpose Funds

	STANDARD OF CARE – PRUDENT PERSON STANDARD
	INVESTMENT TRAINING
	DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	Board of Trustees
	Investment Committee
	Investment Officer(s)

	ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
	AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS
	PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS
	DIVERSIFICATION
	MAXIMUM MATURITIES
	AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS
	Policy Certification

	COLLEGE DEPOSITORY
	COMPLIANCE AUDIT
	Loss of Rating
	Monitoring FDIC Status

	COLLATERALIZATION
	Voluntary Collateral Pooling Alternative

	SAFEKEEPING
	DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT
	REPORTING
	INTERNAL CONTROLS
	Cash Flow Forecasting

	INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION
	Procedures


	03 III.3001.A, Investment Policy and Strategy 8-8-22 clean
	Purpose
	Policy
	Authority
	Applicability
	OBJECTIVES
	STRATEGY
	A. Operating Funds and Commingled Pools Containing Operating Funds
	B. Debt Service Funds
	C. Bond Funds, Construction, Special Projects, or Special Purpose Funds

	STANDARD OF CARE – PRUDENT PERSON STANDARD
	INVESTMENT TRAINING
	DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	Board of Trustees
	Investment Committee
	Investment Officer(s)

	ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
	AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS
	PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS
	DIVERSIFICATION
	MAXIMUM MATURITIES
	AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS
	Policy Certification

	COLLEGE DEPOSITORY
	COMPLIANCE AUDIT
	Loss of Rating
	Monitoring FDIC Status

	COLLATERALIZATION
	Voluntary Collateral Pooling Alternative

	SAFEKEEPING
	DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT
	REPORTING
	INTERNAL CONTROLS
	Cash Flow Forecasting

	INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION
	Procedures



	17 Purchasing 6.5.23 updated
	00 Bid Recap June Rev. 6.1.23
	Sheet1

	PR1 - RFQ 23-27 Professional Services, gs AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR1.1 Attachment No. 1 RFQ 23-27 - AK Rev. 5-24-23
	Attachment# 1

	PR2 - Additional Funds CC Marcom - GMP gs - AK
	PR3 - Additional Funds CSP 22-28 Retrofit Lighting, gs - AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR4 - Barnes  Noble Contract Renewal fk - AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR5 - RFP 23-25 Mass Communication, KA
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR5.1 - Attachment 1 RFP 23-25
	Summary

	PR6 - Electronic Access Control - Custom Access gs - AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR7 - Portable Radios, KA - AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR8 - Full Catering Services, Additional Funds, fk AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR9 - RFP 22-04 - CRM -AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR10 - Fortune Cookie Advertisements - AK
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL


	25 Item A
	25.1 Board Workshop Minutes 05-01-23
	25.2 Board Meeting Minutes 05-01-23
	26 Item B
	26.1 Special Board Meeting Minutes 5-16-23
	27 Budget Transfers June 2023
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	27.1 Budget Transfers June 2023 Board
	29 Item E
	RECOMMENDATION
	FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE
	CONTACT PERSONNEL

	30 Item F
	RECOMMENDATION




